
Agenda



CITI{ ÛF NEVADA
424E FM 6 NEVADA, TX75173 | 972-853-0027

AGEI\{DA
COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, February 21, 2023
7:00PM at City Hall

Mayor - Ben Ponce

Council Member Place 1 - Mike Laye Council Member Place 4 - Karl Fisher
Council Member Place 2- Donald Deering Council Member Place 5 - John McBride
Council Member Place 3- Kerrie Longoria

1. Call to Order and Declaration of Quorum
Time:

2. Invocation

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the United States of America
I pledge Allegiønce to thetlag, of the Uníted States of Americø, ønd to the Repablicfor
whích ít stønds, one natíon under God, índivísìble, wíth Líberty ond lustícefor all.

4. Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag
Honor the Texøsflag,I pledge øllegíance to thee, Texas, one støte under God, one and
índivßible.

5. Public Comment
Citizens are invited to address the City Council with publíc comments. Comments regarding
items for which notice has not been given will be limited to three minutes, príor to discussion
of agenda items, and Council responses shall be in accordance with Sec. 5 5 I .042 of the Texas
Government Code. Comments regarding an item on the agenda may be given beþre or during
discussion of that item. An intentional act intended to disrupt a Government meeting is
prohibited.



REPORTS

6. Reports:

a. City Secretary Report

b. Code Enforcement Report

c. Financial Report (2nd Council Meeting)

d. Mayor Pro Tem Report

e. Mayor's ReporlStatus

f. NVF'O Report (2nd Council Meeting)

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION

7 . Approval of previous meeting's minutes- February 7,2023, Minutes

REGULAR AGENDA

8. Discuss and take appropriate action on the applications of Walt Newell, Russell Newton,
Thad Anderson, and Mark Hill, for the Nevada Economic Corporation Board.
Summary: Applications are in the packet and the applicants are here to answer any
questions.

9. Discuss the use of Building Code Consulting Services (BCCS) for Code Enforcement
and Building Inspections.
Summary: City Secretary Waters, Mayor Ponce, Mayor Pro Tem Longoria, City
Attorney Shepherd and Chief Anderson met with BCCS Building Inspector, James
Chumley and Code Enforcement Officer Dennis Wagner. Mr. Chumley and Mr. W'agner
are here tonight to answer any questions the Council may have moving forward.

10. Discuss and take appropriate action on Ordinance No. 022123, an ordinance of the City
of Nevada, Texas adopting the construction, conservation, energy electric and related
codes listed herein, as the official codes of the city as modified by the regional changes
to the code records by the North Central Texas Council of Governments; providing a
severability clause; providing penalty of a fine not to exceed $2,000.00 per day, for each
day of violation; repealing conflicting ordinances; and establishing an effective date.

I l. Discuss and take appropriate action on the Joint Election Services Contract with Collin
County Elections Administration and the City of Nevada.
Summary: City Secretary Waters reached out to Collin County Deputy Elections
Administrator, Kaleb Breaux, who sent the contract that is in the agenda packet. City
Secretary Waters sent the contract to City Attorney Shepherd for review.



12. Discuss and take appropriate action on the replat of 5.001 acres of land in Community
Corners known as tract 2A-l and tract 2A-2 as requested by Canoll Consulting
Group. The property is generally located.16 miles east from North FM ll38 on
Community Drive and .46 miles west from County Road 939 on Community Drive in
Collin County and the ETJ of Nevada, Texas 75173.
Summary: Planning andZoning Chairman Russell Newton will speak on this agenda
item.

13. Discuss and take appropriate action on the Telecom Sales Tax Ordinance.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

14. Future Agenda Items

Future agenda items shall be designated by the Mayor. In addition, a motion and a
second from any two Councilpersons shall be sfficient to add an agenda item for a
future meeting. Staffand counsel shall have prior consent of the Mayor to add an agenda
item for a future meeting.

15. Executive Session - Time

Texas Government Code 551.074 Personnel---deliberation regarding the City
Secretary and City Clerk's positions or other personnel for city stffi

As authorizedby SectÌon 551.071 (2) of the Texas Government Code, this meetingmay be
convened into closed Executive Sessionfor the purpose ofseeking confidential legal advice
from the City Attorney on any agenda item listed herein.

Texas Govt. Code 551.07I of the Texas Government Code legal advicefrom the City Attorney,
regarding legal process requirements for code enþrcement, building permits, inspections,
and municipal court appointment and process.

14. Regular Session: Reconvene from Executive Session - Time:

I 5. If required, act on items reviewed in Executive Session.

16. Adjoumment / Closing - Time:



NOTE: The City of Nevada, Texas, City Council meets regularly on the first and third Tuesday
of each month at 7:00 P.M. The Council adheres to the printed Agendafor fficial action. Any
individuals desiring fficial action on a matter should submit a request þr the item to be
considered for inclusion on a future Agenda to the ffice of the City Secretary no later than
fourteen (14) days prior to the Council Meeting.

CERTIFICATION

This meeting will be conducted pursuant to the Texas Government Code Section
551.001 et seq. At any time during the meeting, the Council reserves the right to adjourn
into executive session on any of the above-posted agenda items in accordance with the
sections 551.071 fiitigation and certain consultation with attorney], 551.072 [acquisition
of an interest in real propertyl, 551.073 [contract for gift to City], 551.074 [certain
personnel deliberations] or 55 1'076 [deployment/ implementation of security personnel
or devices] 551.087 [deliberation regarding economic development negotiations]. The
City of Nevada is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.
Reasonable modif,rcations and equal access to communications will be provided upon
request. Please call the City Secretary at (469) 788-7610 Ext: 102 for information.

Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: It is anticipated that members of
other city boards, commissions andlor committees may attend the meeting in numbers
that may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or committees.
Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as
a meeting of the other boards, commissions andlor committees of the City, whose
members may be in attendance. The members of the other boards, commissions andlor
committees shall not deliberate or decide any matters relating to items listed on this
agenda and no minutes shall be prepared.

A member or member of the government body holding this meeting may attend via
videoconference pursuant to the provisions of Tex. Gov't Code 551 .l27.Inthe event that
a member or members of the government body holding this meeting attend via
videoconference, a quorum of the government body holding this meeting will be
physically present at the location identified above.

I certifr that the above agenda for this meeting of the City Council of the City ofNevada,
Texas, was posted on the bulletin board at City Hall, in Nevada, Texas, on Fridayn
February 1712023, by 5:00 pm pursuantto Chapter 551 ofthe Texas Government Code.

Douglas "Deuce" Waters II, City Secretary



Agenda ltem #6 Ð.

City Secretary's
Report



Documents will be
avaitable at the City

Council meeting.



Agendaltem #6 c.

Finùncial Report



City of Nevada - General Fund
2022-2023 ActualVs. Budget Financiat Report
For the four months ended January 31,2023

BL

$ ss,ooo

66,000

1,000

4,000

75,000

70

70

36I,206

36L,246

531,276

33,000

7,0(X,

500

55,000

2,5@

98,000

98,æ0

629,276

600

2,500

37%

a2%

V/.
24%

tt6%

79%

o%

o%

85"Á

a3%

75%

23%

9496

3%

too%
096

LA%

0Á
g%

o%

o%

66%

7%

ú/o

BH

34,887s

54,t73

24
4,630

59,046

10

10

305,343

305,343

399,286

8,39s

450

7,O30

t,slo_

L7,445

t7,445

416,73L

39

50

L20

2o1.3oo I 6,170

AH IAI M

I
7

63,000

s

7

4s00
1,000

re,ooo I r,4r3
T

86,s00 I ss,s93

50

¡zo,s¡o I 74.t7s
370,s36 I 74,t7s
s82,o86 I rz7,z2s

550

24,750

I

I
4,500 I

zos.aoo I 6,170

787,886 - 143,395

39725

163

AF

34%

94%
o%

24%

3t%

7s%

u%
u%

tt4%

25%

32%

t%
tt%

%

L7%

t6%

sa%

Vo
50%

AD

S 43,0s7

59,364

236
s,562

65,162

8

194

202

3t2,709

3t2,709

42L,t6O

30,104

175

510

2,420

220

_ 11.829_

33,829

454,989

19

364

V

5 ro,sez

s9,364

r325

60,690

88,156

88,156

159,413

19,o24

510

2,080
110

2t,724

2t,724

181,137

39

D

tlectric Franchise Fee

Gas Franchise Fee

Telephone Franchise Fee

Trash Service Franchise Fee

Franchise Fees - Other

Donation
Miscellaneous lncome

General Property Taxes

Subdivision/Development Fees

Health/Food Perm¡t Fees

Sept¡c Perm¡t Fe€s

Perm¡t Fees - Other

Council Meetíng Supplies

Election Fees and Supplies

Dues and Memberships

c

C¡ty Sales Taxes

Franch¡se Fees

Total Franchíse Fees

Other Revenue

lnterest lncome

Total Other Revenue
Property Taxes

Totâl Property Taxes

Totâl Revenue from Adminístrât¡on

Perm¡t Fees

Permit Fees

Bu

Total Permit Fees

Code and Traffic Enforcement

Code Enforcement
Traffic Violations

I

Total Code and Traffic Enforcement

Consultant Fees

Council

B

Revenue

Total Revenue from City Services

C¡ty Admin¡strâtion Expenses

2

3

5
6
7
8
I
10
11

12

13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22

24
25
26
27
28
29
30

32
33
34
35
37

39

41
42
43
44
45
46
47

Jan 2023

Actuals

Curtent Period Revenue and Expenses
Current YTD % of Budget

Actuals Current YTD

FY 2022-2023

Budget

lan 2072

Actuals

Prior Period Revenue ond Expenses
Prior YTD % of Budget
Actuals Prior YTD

FY 202L-7022

Total Revenue



City of Nevada - General Fund
2022-2023 ActualVs. Budget Financial Report
For the four months ended January 31,2023

BL

3,100

20,000

4,000

7,500

1,600

r]?s
?,000

750
10,000

15,000

100

L,750

36,000

2,500

1,000

1,Q90

250

750

s,000

1,!90
1,000

tr3,275

95,760

8,000

800

1,500
1s,600

BJ

t%

vÁ

40%

t2%

%

o%

134%

36%

39%

t46%

%

u%

æ%
46%

1Vo
29%

o%

6t%
39%

35%

37%

4A%

3æÁ

26/o

22%

38%

29%

BH

39

7,238

t,562

638

925

2,750

s,83s

_9iq8
1,093

110

384

2,loo

?L?88
804

614

502
72

t,9u

520

128

53,813

28,688

2,O72

180

434
5,965

AH IAI M

I
I

3,970 I 39

27,OOA a 1,958

3,12s I 78t

3,153

7l
836

32

249

706

44L

62

18

56,161

3,88s

104

715

3,s72

169

7Ls

?2s00

777

7,s33115,000

s,798 I 5M
e2o I 180

630 7

743

AF

t09o

v%
Wo

%

tL4%
to6lo

%

%

90%

23%

63%

o%

%

%

%

%

o%

9a%

25%

tu%
W"
OYo

Wo

68%

2@6

6%

%

57%

23%

25%

25%

2%

3%

tt%

AD

383

9,045

78L
36

2,498
5,L57

2,833

3,082

1,198

2,356

26

962

3,698

2,434

46

4M

285

34,879

28,851

2,207

18

L7

1,68s

39

36

4,545

3,t41

973
973

1,002

138

46

t79

186

t3.,224

10,265

785

10

1,685

D

Legal Services

Training/Seminars

Accounting Services

An¡mal Control

Central Appraisal Disü¡ct
Bank Service Fee

C¡ty Property Maintenance

Dues and Subscriptíons

Contracted Serv¡ces

Continsencv

Electricity
Equipment and Furniture
tinancial Audit
lnsurance

Legal Notices

lnternet
Legal Fees

NSF Return Check

Milease
Miscellaneous

Office Supplies
Postage

Property Tax Collection Fees

Software/Cloud Services

Technical/Leeal Books

Training/Seminars
Telephone

Payroll Taxes

Unemployment Taxes

Employee Health lnsutance
Payroll Processing Fees

c

Totãl City Council Expenses

City Government Expenses

Travel & Lodeine Expenses

Water
Website

Governmênt

Salaries

B
2

3
48
49
50

52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71

72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
EO

81

83
84
85
E6
87
88

Jan 2023

Actuals

Current Period Revenue ond Expenses
Current YTD % of Budget

Actuals Current YTD

)an 2022

Actuals

Prior Period Revenue and Expenses
Prior YTD % of Budget

Actuals Prior YTD

FY 202t-2022
Budget

tY 2027-2023



City of Nevada - General Fund
2022-2023 ActualVs. Budget Financial Report
Forthe four months ended January 31,2023

BL

121,660

50,000

2,500

2,000

226,291

230,79L

- -18.9Qq32,000

22,500

450

30,000

3-0,99q

10,000

92,9s0

?,990
1¡00
1,000

8,000

13,s00

625,276

4,000

3t%

eÁ
t009c

%

æ%

o%

%

o%

o%

4%

9A%

300%

t23%

o%

73%

9t%

ú/o

o%

a%

o%

%

2%

35%

BH

_ -!?.!1q

32,000

32,000

8,950

8,950

22,tSO

2,000

1,350

36,E03

22,O34

84,337

211

ztL

2t6,690

200,041

AH IAI M

140,94s I s,o27

25,000 I
75,000 I

45,000 I

35,000 r
I

181,000

110,000 I 4,O4r
22,275 4

s00 I 900

49,500 I 3,084

36,000

tr,438

2,000

787,886 I 33,281

15

AF

23%

2096

t00/o

54%

o%

o%
g?6

o%

o%

!6%

285%

Wo

4W6

%

L7%

æÁ

31t%

%

o%

5%

t9%

AD

?2,777

2,42O

38,000

æ,424

t7,987

t,427
3,600

14,533

?7,547

900

900

146,907

308,082

r2,745

2to
1,3s0

77

1,637

25,6M

155,493

D

Ambulance Service

Fire Department Service
Police Services

Ditch and culvert upkeep

Street Repairs
CR 537 lmprovements
Trim bushes/trees

Building lnspections
Septíc lnspections

Health/Food lnspections

Planning and Development
Engineerine Fees

Other lnspections

Clean up of Properties
Code Enforcement - Other
Judge Fees

c

Totâl Pãyroll Expenses

Publ¡c Safety

Total Public Safety

Streets and Roads

Total Streets and Roads

lnspections and P&D Expenses

ÊxpensesTotal lnspecl¡ons/P&D

Municipal Court & Code Enforcement

Fees

Mileage Reimbursement

Court Code EnfM

B
2

3
89

91

92
93

97
98
99
100
101
1lJz
103

105
106
1ld7

108
109
110
111
112

114
115
116
117
118
119
120

124

Jan 2023

Actuals

Current Peilod Revenue ond Expenses
Current YTD % of Budget

Actuals Current YID
lan 2022

Actuals

Prior Period Revenue and Expenses
Prior YTD % of Budget FY 202I-2022
Actuals Prior YTD Budget

FY 2022-2073



City of Nevada - Economic Development Corporation
2022-2023 Actualvs. Budget Financial Report
For the four months ended January 31,2023

BL

s

s

BJBH

S t7,444

4

17,449

L7,449

AII M

$ 3,727

727

3,727

AH

s

s

AFAD

5 zt,sqq

a7

21,631

2t,631

S s,za¿

5,244

5,244

D

lnterest lncome

c

Sales Taxes

Other Revenue

B

Revenue

2

3

5
Þ

7

I
I
10

11

'12

13

14

Prior Period Revenue & Expenditures

Current YTD

Cuftent Period Revenue & Expenditures

Surplus / (Deficit)

Total Revenue

Expenses

% of Budget FY 2022-2021 tY 202t-2022% of Budget

Prior YTD

Prior YTD

Actuals

Jan 2022

Actuals

Current YTD

Actuals

lan 2023

Actuâls



Gity of Nevada
Bank Balance Report
As ofJanuary 31,2023

H

s1ss,733
So

57s6,042

s3Lr,775

F

s330,466

5o

543,77s

s374,241

ED

51.,482,202

$o
-s1s6,042

-543,77s

s1.282.385

B

Eank Account Balance as of Ot I 3tl 2OZ3

Funds

Pending ARPA Funds Transfer
Pending Sales Tax Transfer - FY 2023

A
1

2

3
4
5
6
7
I
I Working Balance

Bank Account Balances
ARPA

General Fund EDC Fund Special Fund



Agenda ltem #6 d.

Mayor Pro Tem
Report



Agenda ltem #6 e.

Mayor's Report



Agendr ltem #6 f.

NVFD Report



Nevada Volunteer Fire Department 8Nevada, TX
This report was generated on 211612023 6:28:20 PM

lncident Statistics

Zone(s):AllZones I Start Date: 0110112023 | End Date: 0113112023

TOTAL

INCIDENT TYPE

EMS

FIRE

TOTAL

4

Station EMS

0:09:41

FIRE

Station 1 0:1 1:38

AVERAGE FOR ALL CALLS 0:10:53

# INCIDENTS

TOTAL # of PATIENT
CONTACTS

# of PATIENT TRANSPORTS

50

APPARATUS # ofAPPARATUS
TRANSPORTS

BRSHl 0 0 4

cH301 0 0 1

cH302 0 0 1

E1 0 0 7

SQ2 0 0 5

ST1 0 0 3

210

$0.00

Total

TOTAL

Aid Type

0

$0.00

Aid Given 10

Aid Received

# OVERLAPPING

13

% OVERLAPPING

8

'fìiti I r,r.ri rli')illfì;ir

11 ,r,,,1,,r 'l,/,llir . r {, ,) .1,'. iù¡, ;,ri,,],¡r11¡,

33

17

,i,t i ",ù ' 1... t'j 'ì.",' .,,"1, ,;i I .fi ,ril liir 1 ,ri r,, ìl tij,r: ,,ì i. )

Station EMS

O:04:21

FIRE

ó'óe,is

0:04:33

Only Reviewed lncidents included. EMS for lncident counts includes only 300 to 399 lncident Types. All other incident
types are counted as FIRE. CO Checks only includes lncident Types: 424,736 and 734. # Apparatus Transports = #
of incidents where apparatus transported. # Patient Transports = All patients transported by EMS. # Patient Contacts
= # of PCR contacted by apparatus. This report now returns both NEMSIS 2 &3 data as appropriate. For overlapping
calls that span over multiple days, total per month will not equal Total count for year.

CEærcfttttroRfnae
emergencyreporting.com
Doc ld: 1645
Page# 1 of 2

Station 1

AVERAGE FOR ALL CALLS



Nevada Volunteer Fire Department 39:11

Only Reviewed lncidents included. EMS for lncident counts includes only 300 to 399 lncident Types. All other incident
types are counted as FIRE. CO Checks only includes lncident Types:424,736 and 734.# Apparatus Transports = #
of incidents where apparatus transported. # Patient Transports = All patients transported by EMS. # Patient Contacts
= # of PCR contacted by apparatus. This report now returns both NEMSIS 2 & 3 data as appropriate. For overlapping
calls that span over multiple days, total per month will not equal Total count for year.

CM
emergencyrêporting.com
Doc ld: 1645
Page#2 o1 2



Nevada Volunteer Fire Department 8Nevada, TX

This report was generated on 211612023 6:32:11 PM

Average Number of Responding Personnel per lncident Type for Date Range
StartDate: 0110112023 | EndDate: 0113112023

100 - Fire, other 4

111 - Building fire 6

140 - Natural vegetation fire, other 3

143 - Grass fire 3

311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 4

320 - Emergency medical service, other 5

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 2

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 3

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 6

41 1 - Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill 4

500 - Service Call, other 4

511 - Lock-out 2

561 - Unauthorized burning 12

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 1

.i;,i, . ' r :.ti ,ri; tli¡r¡,,,1rlììf:: "¡

Reviewed lncidents only GM
emergencyreporting.com
Doc ld: 1143
Page#1 of1



Agenda ltem # 7



 

 

 

Documents will be 

available at the City 

Council meeting. 



Agenda ltem # I



 

 

 

Documents will be 

available at the City 

Council meeting. 



Agenda ltem # 9

a



Date Violation V¡olation Status

22NEV-00001 - CenÞrSt, Nevada, D(75173 - Open
11312023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -

Friendly Reminder

22NEV-00002 - 201 Center, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -

Friendly Reminder

1t3t2023 Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

1t3t2023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

1t3t2023

Code Enforcement Activity
Nevada

01 t01 t2023 - 01 t31 t2023
Next lnspection Date

1t17t2023

1t17t2023

1t10t2023

1t17t2023

Notes Code Enforcement Officer Corrections

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Trees, Shrubs and
Other Vegetation

Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
35'16

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

Allvehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

All trees must kept at a
minimum height of
seven (7) feet above
the sidewalk and
twelve (12) feet above
the street.

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

1t17t2023

1t17t2023

22NEV-00004 - 308 Kerens St, Nevada, D( 75173 - Closed
11312023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection

22NEV-00006 - 409 Kerens, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11312023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -

Friendly Reminder

22NEV-00007 -324 Collin Strcet, N€vada, D(75179 - Closed
113t2023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection



22NEV-00008 - 316 Collin Street, Nevada, TX75173 - Closed
11312023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection

11312023 Trees, Shrubs and Passed lnspection
Other Vegetation

22NEV-00009 - Collin Street, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed
113t2023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection

22NEV-00010 - 205 Collin Street, Neyada, TX75173 - Glosed
1t312023 Junk Vehicles Passed lnspection

1t3t2023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection

22NEV-00011 - 117 Wanen Street, Nevada, D( 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -

Friendly Reminder

1t3t2023 Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

1t3t2023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

1t17t2023

1t10t2023

1t17t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Allvehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

Allvehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

22NEV-00012-2O2 South Farm To Market 1138, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
1t3t2029 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection - 1t17t2023

Friendly Reminder

1t3t2023 Trash and Debris 1t17t2023

22NEV-00013 - 116 South Fm 1138, Nevada,TX75173 - Ctosed
11312023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection

22NEV-00014 - 130 Maple Circle, Nevada, fX 75173 - Ctosed
11312023 OFF-STREET Passed tnspection

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

22NEV-00015 - 210 Maple Circle, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed

a



11312023 OFF-STREET Passed lnspection
PARKING
REOUIREMENTS

22NEV-00016 - 240 Maple Circle, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed
1t3t2023 OFF-STREET Passed lnspection

PARKING
REOUIREMENTS

22NEV-00017 -251Maple Circle, Nevada, TX75173 - Closed
11312023 OFF-STREET Passed lnspection

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

22NEV-00018 - 263 Maple Gircle, Nevada, D( 75173 - Open
1t312023 OFF-STREET Failed lnspection -

PARKING Friendly Reminder
REQUIREMENTS

1t3t2023 Unsanitary Conditions Passed lnspection

22NEV-00021 -216 Farm to Martet 6, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
1t312023 OFF-STREET Failed lnspection -

PARKING Friendly Reminder
REQUIREMENTS

22NEV-00023 - 509 Water Fall Lane, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed
11312023 OFF-STREET Passed lnspection

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

22N,flt-00024 - 505 Water Fall Lane, Nevada, D( 75173 - Glosed
11312023 OFF-STREET Passed lnspection

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

22NEV-00025 - Fann to Market 6, Nevada, T)( 75173 - Closed
11312023 Weeds Passed lnspection

22NEV-00027 - 121 Center Street, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Faited tnspection -

Friendly Reminder

1t10t2023

'u10t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
35'16

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3s16

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Vehicles/trailers must
be parked on approved
hard surface.

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.
This includes all
vehicles parked on
grass.

All vehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

1t17t2023



1t3t2023

1t9t2023

1t9t2023

1t3t2023

1t3t2023

1t3t2023

PropertyMaintenance ComplaintFiled

Property Maintenance

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t10t2023

1t3t2023

2t20t2023

1t10t2023

1t17t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

house in disrepair

Residence must be
maintained and all
disrepair fixed.
lncluding but not
limited to rotting wood,
broken windows, etc.

trash in yard

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

pickup parked in
backyard
All vehicles must have
current registration and
operable.
Pickup in back of
house must be
operable.

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

22NEV-00030 - 327 Kerens Street, Nevada, D( 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Complainr Fited

1t3t2023 Junk Vehicles

Trash and Debris

Trash and Debris

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Complaint Filed 1t4t2023

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t17t2023

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t4t2023

1t17t2023

22NEV-00038 - 208 Kercns Strcet, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
1t3t2023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -

Violation Notice

Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Allvehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

1t3t2023 1110t2023



1t3t2023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

22NEV-00041 - 120 Warren Street, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed
11312023 OFF-STREET Passed lnspection

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

22NEV-00042 - 125 Center Street, Nevada, D( 75173 - Closed
11312023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection

22NEV-00045 - Collin Street, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed
11312023 Trees, Shrubs and Passed lnspection

Other Vegetation
22NEV-00046 - Collin Street, Nevada, D( 75173 - Glosed
11312023 Trees, Shrubs and Passed lnspection

Other Vegetation
22NEV-00048 - Collin Street, Nevada, D( 75173 - Glosed
11312023 Trees, Shrubs and Passed lnspection

Other Vegetation
22NEV-00049 - 200 Warren Sreet, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed
11312023 Trees, Shrubs and Passed lnspection

Other Vegetation
22NEV-00050 - 638 S 1 138, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -

Friendly Reminder

1t3t2023 OFF.STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Failed lnspection -
Friendly Reminder

1t17t2023

1t17t2023

1t10t2023

1t4t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3s1 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

All vehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

22NEV-00051 - 410 Water Fall Ln, Nevada, TX 75173 - Closed
11912023 Grading and Drainage Passed lnspection

23NEV-00001 - 170 Maple Cir, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11312023 OFF-STREET Complaint Fited

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

11312023 OFF-STREET Faited tnspection -
PARKING Violation Notice
REQUIREMENTS

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l- parking in yard
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

1t17t2023



23NEV-00002 - 181 Maple Cir, Nevada,TX75173 - Open
11312023 OFF-STREET Complaint Filed

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

11312023 OFF-STREET Failed lnspection -
PARKING Violation Notice
REQUIREMENTS

23NEV-00003 - West St, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11312023 Trash and Debris Complaint Filed

1t9t2023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

23NEV-00004 - 200 West Street, Nevada, TX75173 - Open
11312023 Trash and Debris Complaint Filed

1t9t2023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

23NEV-00005 - 11 1 Center St, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Complaint Fited

1t9t2023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t3t2023 OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS
OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Complaint Filed 1t4t2023

1t9t2023 1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t17t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

114t2023

1t23t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

parking in the yard

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
surface.

trash and tree debris in
front of location
All trash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

trash and tree debris in
front of location
Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

inoperable vehicles

Allvehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

parking in yard

1t3t2023

1t9t2023

Trash and Debris Complaint Filed

Trash and Debris

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

trash and debris

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

23NEV-00006 - Center Street, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open



Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

23NEV-00007 - 121Center Street, Nevada, TX75173 - Closed
1l3t2}2g Trash and Debris Complaint Filed

11312023 Trash and Debris Passed lnspection

23NEV-00008 - 306 S FM 1138, Nevada, T)( 75173 - Open
1t3t2023 Trash and Debris Complaint Filed

1t9t2023 Trash and Debris Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

23NE1/-00009 - 302 Kerens St, Nevada, D( 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Complaint Filed

1t9t2023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t3t2023 OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS
OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Complaint Filed 1t4t2023

1t9t2023 1t23t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l- trash in yard
3516

create Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
d in 3516

1t3t2023

1t3t2023

1t3t2023

1t9t2023

Weeds

Weeds

Complaint Filed

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t4t2023

1t17t2023

1t4t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t2312023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

high weeds

All grass and weeds
must be maintained
under 12 inches at all
times.

trash and debris in the
yard
Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

inoperable vehicle

All vehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

parking on grass

Trash and Debris Complaint Filed

Trash and Debris

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard suÉace.

trash on property

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

23NEV-00010 - 3I2 Kerens St, Nevada, TX76173-7116 - Open
11312023 OFF-STREET Comptainr Filed

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

1t4t2023 parking on grass



1t9t2023

1t9t2023

1t3t2023

1t9t2023

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS
OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

'1t23t2023 Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard sudace.

23NEV-00011 - 317 KerEns St, Nevada, D( 75173 - Open
11312023 OFF-STREET Complaint Filed

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

11912023 OFF-STREET Failed lnspection -
PARKING Violation Notice
REQUIREMENTS

23NEV-00012 - 424 Kerens Street, Nevada, D( 75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Complaint Filed

1t9t2023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t3t2023

1t4t2023 Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

parking on grass

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t23t2023

'1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

'U23t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

Complaint Filed 1t4t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

inoperable vehicle

All vehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

parking in yard

Trash and Debris Complaint Filed

Trash and Debris

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6
Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

trash in yard

Alltrash and debris
must be disposed of
properly and removed
from public view.

inoperable vehicle on
property
All vehicles must have
current registration and
operable.

23NEV-00013 - 435 Kerens St, Nevada, D(75173 - Open
11312023 Junk Vehicles Complaint Filed

1t9t2023 Junk Vehicles Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t3t2023 Complaint Filed 1t4t2023 parking in yard



1t9t2023 OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t4t2023

1t23t2023

1t3t2023

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

23NEV-00014 - 402 Collin Street, Novada, TX 75173 - Open
113t2023 OFF-STREET Complaint Filed

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

11912023 OFF-STREET Failed lnspection -
PARKING Violation Notice
REQUIREMENTS

23NEV-00016-3n Collin St, Nevada, D(75173 - Open
11312023 OFF-STREET Complaint Filed

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

11912023 OFF-STREET Failed lnspection -
PARKING Violation Notice
REQUIREMENTS

23NEV-00016 - 321 Collin St, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
113t2023 OFF-STREET Comptaint Fited

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

11912023 OFF-STREET Failed lnspection -
PARKING Violation Notice
REQUIREMENTS

23NEV-00017 - 312 Collin St, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
113t2023 OFF-STREET Comptaint Fited

PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

11912023 OFF-STREET Faited tnspection -
PARKING Violation Notice
REQUIREMENTS

23NEV-00018 - S FM 1138, Nevada, TX 75173 - Open
11912023 Property Maintenance Complaint Filed

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

parking in yard

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

parking in yard

All vehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

parking in yard

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

parking in yard

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
351 6

Allvehicles must be
parked on an approved
hard surface.

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

house in disrepair



1t9t2023

1t3t2023

1t3t2023

1t9t2023

'v9t2023

1t9t2023

; Property Maintenance .iili:iJliff::.

Complaint Filed

iOFF.STREET
]PARKING

iComplaint Filed 1t4t2023

REQUIREMENTS
OFF-STREET
PARKING
REQUIREMENTS

1t23t2023Failed lnspection -
Violation Notice

:212012023

:

:212012023

,Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

:Residence must be

imaintained and all
;disrepair fixed.
llncluding but not
ilimited to rotting wood,
broken windows, etc.

'Stephanie 
Flores TSBPE l- grass over 12 inches

3516

Stephanie Flores TSBPE l-
13516

boat in the yard

ìStephanie Florès rSeÞe L
3516

Weeds 1t4t2023

Property Maintenance Complaint Filed 1t3t2023

iRllverrìcles must bè
i parked on an approved
ihard surface.

rchurch in disrepairrStephanie Flores TSBPE l-
3516

rStephanie Flores TSBPE l-
r3516

tProperty Maintenance iFailed lnspection -
Violation Notice

rChurch must be
maintained and all
disrepair fixed.
lncluding but not
limited to rotting wood,
broken windows, etc.



Agenda ltem # 10



ORDINANCE NO.
(oFFrcrAL coDES)

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA, TEXAS
ADOPTING THE CONSTRUCTION, CONSERVATION,
ENERGY ELECTRIC AND RELATED CODES LISTED
HEREIN, AS THE OFFICIAL CODES OF THE CITY AS
MODIFIED BY THE REGIONAL CHANGES TO THE CODE
RECORDS BY HE NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF
GOVERNMENTS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED $2,OOO.OO

PER DAY' FOR EACH DAY OF VIOLATION; REPEALING
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND ESTABLISHING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

\ryHEREAS, the City Council deems it desirable and proper to adopt and update the editions
of the official codes of the City,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NEVADA, TEXAS:

SECTION I.

That the above recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and incorporated herein for all
purposes.

SECTION II.

The City Council hereby amends Ordinance 02-03, relative to the adoption of the official codes
of the City, which shall hereinafter read as follows:

'Section 19: Adoption of Offrcial Codes

l9.l The City Council hereby adopts the following Codes, including the Regional
Amendments to each code as recommended by the North Central Texas Council
of Govemments - NCTCOG collectively referred to as the "Official Codes" of
the City:

a. 2021 Intemational Residential Code,
b. 2021lntemational Swimming Pool and Spa Code
c. 2021 Infemational Building Code;
d. 2021Intemational Existing Building Code
e. 2021lntemational Fire Code;
f. 202I Intemational Mechanical Code;
g. 2020 National Electric Code;

ORDINANCE NO._
(BUILDING CODES) Page I of3



h. 202I Intemational Plumbing Code;
i. 202l lnternational Energy Conservation Code; and
j. 2021Intemational Property Maintenance Code (no regional amendment)
k. 2021Uniform Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings; (no regional

amendment)

As Official Codes of the City of Nevada; as modified by the NCTCOG regional
amendments, attached as Exhibit "A".

SECTION III. SEVERABILITY

If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, or provision of this Ordinance
shall be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of this
Ordinance as a whole or any part of provisions thereof, other than the part so decided to be
invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION IV. PENALTY CLAUSE

Each person, firm, corporation or other legal entity is required to comply with the
Official Codes, and any failure to do so is a violation of this Ordinance.

That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this
Ordinance upon conviction shall be punished by a f,rne not to exceed the sum of $2.000.00 for
each offense; and each and every day such violation shall continue shall be deemed to constitute
a separate offense.

SECTION V. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES

All ordinances, orders or resolutions heretofore passed and adopted by the City Council
of the City of Nevada, Texas, are hereby repealed to the extent that said ordinances, orders and
resolutions, or parts thereof, are in conflict herewith.

SECTION VI. EFFECTIVE DATE AND ENFORCEMENT

The City Council finds and determines that the passage of this Ordinance is necessary
forthe immediate preservation ofthe public peace, health and safety, and shall become effective
on and after the date of its adoption by the City Council.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS DAY OF 2023.

APPROVED:

ORDINANCE NO. _
(BUILDING CODES)

Ben Ponce, MAYOR

Page2 of3



AITEST:

Deuce Waters, CITY SECRETARY

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

James E. Shepherd, CITY ATTORNEY

Exhibit A

A-l
A-2
A-3
A-4
A-5
A-6
A-7
A-8
A-9
A-10

2021 lntemational Residential Code,
202I International Swimming Pool and Spa Code
2021 lntemational Building Code ;
2021 Intemational Existing Building Code
2021 lrrtemational Fire Code;
2021 Intemational Mechanical Code;
2020 National Electric Code;
2021 International Plumbing Code;
2021 Intemational Energy Conservation Code; and
2021Intenational Property Maintenance Code (no regional
amendment)
2021 Uniform Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings; (no
regional amendment)

A-11

ORDTNANCE NO._
(BUILDING CODES) Page 3 of3



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

Recommended Amendments to the
2021 lnternat¡onal Residential Gode

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 lnternational ResidentialCode are hereby
amended as follows: Standard type is text from the lRC. Underlined tyoe is text inserted. tined-threugh
@Adoubleasteriskatthebeginningofasectionidentifiesanamendment
carried over from the 2018 edition of the code and a triple asterisk identifies a new or revised amendment
with the 2Ù21code.

ln 2009, the State Legislature enacted SB 1410 prohibiting cities from enacting fire sprinkler
mandates in residential dwellings. However, jurisdictions with ordinances that required sprinklers for
residential dwellings prior to and enforced before January 1, 2009, may remain in place. Reference; Section
R313 Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems.

The energy provisions in IRC Chapter 11 is deleted in its entirety.
Reference the 2021 IECC for ene code rovisions and recommended amendments.

**Secúíon R102.4; change to read as follows:

R102.4 Referenced codes and standards. The codes, when specifically adopted. and standards
referenced in this code shall be considered part of the requirements of this code lo the prescribed extent of
each such reference and as further regulated in Sections R1 02.4.1 and R1 02.4.2. Whenever amendments
have been adopted to the referenced codes and standards, each reference to said code and standard shall
be considered to reference the amendments as well. Anv reference made to NFPA 70 or the E/ecfrical
Code shall mean the E/ecfrrcal Code as adopted.

(Reason: Legal wording to recognize locally adopted codes and amendments adopted with referenced
codes.

** Secfion R103 and R103.1 amend to insert the Department Name

ÞEPARTMENT OF BUIL ÍINSERT OFFICIAL BUILDING DEPARTMENT NAME
OF JURISDICTIONI

R103.1 Greation of enforcement agency. The @ IINSERT OFFICIAL
BUILDING DEPARTMENT NAME OF JURISDICTIONI is hereby created and the official in charqe thereof
shall be known as the building official.

Reminder to be sure ordinance reads the sa/ne as the

**Secfion Rl04.10.1 Flood Hazard areas; delete this section.

Flood hazard ordinances be administered other

"*Secúion Rl05.3.1.1& R106.1.4; delete ffiese secfions.

within the

are addressed

**Secfion R110 (R110.1 through R110.5); delete the section.

CO's for residences is not a common in the

"*€ecfíon R202; change definitíon of "Townhouse Unit' to read as follows:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

1 Approved July 2021
2021 lnl.ernational Residential Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

TOWNHOUSE UNIT. A single-family dwelling unit seoarated by prooertv lines in a townhouse that extends
from foundation to roof and that has a yard or public way on not less than two sídes.

n: To uish Townhouse Units within a Townhouse buildi on lots.

"**Table R301.2 (1); fill in as follows:

Delete remainder of table Manual J Design Criteria and footnote N

(Reason: To promote regional uniformity. Manual J is utilized by third party and not paft of pertormed plan
reviews. Ihis rs reference table not needed

**Secfion R302.1; add exception #6 to read as follows:

Exceptions: {previous exceptions unchanged}

6. Open non-combustible caroort structures may be constructed when also aoproved within
adopted ordinances.

Refers to other such as

**Secúion R302.3; add Exception li3 to read as follows:

Exceptions:

1. {existing text unchanged}
2. {existing text unchanged}
3. Two-familv dwellinq units that are also divided bv a propertv line throush the structure shall be

separated as required for townhouses.

(Reason: Provide guidance for a common construction method in this area. Correlates with amendment
to IRC Secfion R202 Townhouse

*sSection R302.2.6: delete exception #6:

Exceptions: {previous exceptions unchanqed}
6, Tewnheuse uníts preteeted by a fire sprinkler system eemplying with Seetien P2904er NFPÂ
1€+

( Reason: To remain consistent with separated townhouse units and property lines.)

GROUND
sNow
LOAD

WND DESIGN sEtsMtc
DESIGN

cetEconvr

A

SUBJECT TO
DAMAGE FROM

É,2got
2.tt == l¡l ut5ô F

É,
t¡¡
É,Eú, r-<.2diË uJ

llJ !5

ü? i
Ð
atoaÉ,o<9ì

l!-

(9
z
ñ
t¡l
ul
tr6
É,o
4,=

=3"-<z=
E?F

spEEDd
(MPH)

.9g
o"(!:
ä14ooè0)olELill

=
-Joc'6 .ooodothÍ

E
0)g5

äNnØ
EE
=rE

Weather¡ng
a Frost

Line

Depthb

Termitec

5 tb/ft

220 F No Local
Code

150 64.90
F

115
(3 sec-
gust/ 76
fastest
mile

No No No
Moderate o very

Heavy

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

2 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

**Secfíon R302.5.1; change to read as follows:

R302.5.1 Opening protection. Openings from a private garage directly into a room used for sleeping
purposes shall not be permitted. Other openings between the garage and residence shall be equipped with
solid wood doors not less than 13/8 inches (35 mm) in thickness, solid or honeycomb core steel doors not
lessthan13/8inches(35mm)thick,or20-minutefire-rateddoors.ie
€l€sing-d€vie€:

(Reason: Absence of data tinking setf-ctosing devices to increased safety. Setf-ctosing devices often fait to
close the door

*lSecfion R303.3, Exception; amend to read as follows:

Exception: (existing text unchanged) Spaces containino only a water closet or water closet and a
lavatory may be ventilated with an approved mechanical recirculatinq fan or similar device desiqned to
remove odors from the air.

(Reason: Consisfenf with common local practice as recirculating fans are recognized as acceptable air
movement.)

***R307.3 Blockinq. Required at one toilet at orade level. Blockinq per Sec. R307.4 and Fiqure 307.4. shall
be installed at rear wall and one wall adiacent to toilet at the lowest livinq level where a toilet is provided.

54'- J6" ?4' - {.6* rû'

? x blqeking
tO wsll

I orËo ol þleckin{ I I rço ol blo,crinl I

.E
Þ

t
:
Ë
E

¡()
tiì

Figure 507.4 Fiçure 507.4

(Reason: Blockinq at initial construction allows for ease of use for future qrab bar installation if desired for
homeowners. Ties into Dallas Builders Association of Universal Desiqn Elements concepts for CAPS
(Certified Aqinq in Place Specialistd professionals.)

**Secfion R313.2 One and Two Family Dwellings; Delete this section and subsection in their entirety

(Reason: ln 2009, the State Legislature enacted SB 1410, amendíng section 1301.551 subsection lof the
occupation code, prohibiting cities from enacting fire sprinkler mandates one or two family dwellings only.
However, jurisdictions with ordinances that required sprinklers for one or two family dwellings prior to and
enforced before J rematn tn

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

3 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code



North Central Texas
touncll of Governments

***Secfion R315.2.2 Alterations, repairs and additions; amend to read as follows:

Exception:
1. [existing text remains]
2. lnstallation, alteration or repairs of all electrically powered mechanical svstems or plumbinq
apoliances.

Revrsed for Code intent is to the of combustion

**Secfíon R322 Flood Resrsfanf Construction; deleted section.

hazard ordinances be administered b other within the

***Section 327.1.1; add to read as follows:

Section 327.1.1 Adiacencv to Structural Foundation. Depth of the swimminq pool and soa shall maintain
a ratio of 1:1 from the nearest buildinq foundation or footinq of a retaininq wall.

Exception:
A sealed enqineered desiqn drawinq of the proposed new structure shall be submitted for approval.

To distances for and

**Section R401.2; amended by adding a new paragraph following the existing paragraph to read as
follows.

Section R401.2. Requiremenls. {existing text unchanged}

Every foundation and/or footing, or any size addition to an existing post{ension foundation, regulated by
this code shall be designed and sealed by a Texas-registered engineer.

to 2015lRC carried forward to 2018|RC.

**Secfion R602.6.1; amend the following:

R602.6.1 Drilling and notching of top plate. When piping or ductwork is placed in or partly in an exterior
wall or interior load-bearing wall, necessitating cutting, drilling or notching of the top plate by more than 50
percent of its width, a galvanized metal tie not less than 0.054 inch thick (1.37 mm) (16 Ga) and 1 % inehes
€8)#m 5 inches (127 mm) wide shall be fastened across and to the plate at each side of the opening with
not less than eight 10d (0.148 inch diameter) having a minimum length of I lzinches (38 mm) at each side
or equivalent. Fasteners will be offset to prevent solittinq of the top plate material. The metal tie must
extend a minimum of 6 inches past the opening. See fiqure R602.6.1. {remainder unchanged}

to 2015lRC carried forward to 2018

"*Figure R602.6.1; delete the figure and insert the followíng figure:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

4 Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Residential Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

ffiRIOR OR BHRINA

t8 êaoE (.oõ1 tH.) ilD 5 tN. WtDÊ
ÆfAL lIE FAgfEilED ACRæ AND
ÍO HE PUÍE AÍ $CH SIOE OF frE
NOîCH MfH 8.1M NAILS âCH ADE

b the

to 2015 /RC carried
2018 IRC also provides

(Amendment
forward to
additional assurance of the of the

*"Add sectíon R703.8.4.1.2 Veneer Ties for Walt Studs; to read as foilows:

R703.8.4.1.2 Veneer Ties for Wall Studs. ln stud framed exterior walls. all ties mav be anchored to studs
as follows:

1. When studs are 16 in (407 mm) o.c.. stud ties shall be spaced no further apart than 24 in (737 mm)
vertically startino approximatelv 12 in (381 mm) from the foundation: or

2. When studs are 24 in 1610 mm) o.c., stud ties shall be spaced no further apart than 16 in (483 mm)
vertically startino approximatelv I in l2S4 mm) from the foundation.

(This amendment had been a carry over amendment for years to provide clear instruction for placement of
brick ties. It is now retained with changes to reflect its correct placement and use for ctarity when attachment
to framing lumber (sfuds). It shoutd remain for those purposes. tt is in addition to the new new Tabte in
2018 which for brick ties to

**Section R902. 1; amend and add exception #5 to read as fottows

R902.1 Roofing covering materials. Roofs shall be covered with materials as set forth in Sections Rg04andR905.ClassA,B,orCroofingshallbeinstalled.he¡ruseg'when
the edge ef the reef is less than 3 feet f'em a let line. {remainder unchanged}

Exceptions:
1. {text unchanged}
2. {text unchanged}
3. {text unchanged}
4. {text unchanged}
5. Non-classifled roof coverinqs shall be oermitted on one-storv detached accesso/y sfrucfures

used as tool and ¡toraoe sheds, playhouses. and similar uses, provided the floor aiea does not
exceed (area defined bv iurisdiction).

to address structures Section R105.U

5

from

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Residential Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemmants

** Chapter f I IREI - Energy Efficiency is deleted in its entirety; Reference the 2021 IECC for energy
code provisions and recommended amendments.

(Reason: The recommended energy code changes from the Energy and Green Advisory Board update the
amendments for Chapter 11. The 2021 lnternational Energy Conservation Code should be referenced for
residential Ih,s minimizes the number of amendments to the

**Secfíon M1305.1.2; change to read as follows:

M1305.1.2 Appliances in attics. Attics containing appliances shall be provided . . . {bulk of paragraph
unchanged) . . . side of the appliance. The clear access opening dimensions shall be a minimum of
20 inches by 30 inches (508 mm by 762 mm), and large enough to allow removal of the largest appliance.
As a minimum. for access to the attic space. orovide one of the followinq:

1. A oermanent stair.
2. A pull down stair with a minimum 300 lb (136 kg) capacity.
3. An access door from an upper floor level.

Exceptions: [remaining text unchanged]

(Reason: To provide a safe means of accessibility to appliances rn afflcs and to allow for different types of
construction limitations. Consistent with amendment to IFGC and IMC 306.

**Secfion M1411.3; change to read as follows:

M1411.3 Condensate disposal. Condensate from allcooling coils or evaporators shall be conveyed from
the drain pan outlet 1s @ a sanitary sewer throuqh a trap. by means of a direct
or indirect drain. {remaining text unchanged}

Reflects and to reduce excessiye runoff into storm drains

**Secfion M1411.3.1, ltems 3 and 4; add textto read as follows:

M1411.3.1Auxiliary and secondary drain systems. {bulk of paragraph unchanged}

1. {text unchanged}
2. {text unchanged}
3. An auxiliary drain pan... {bulk of text unchangedl... with ltem 1 of this section. A water level

detection device may be installed only with prior aooroval of the buildlnq offc,a/.
4. A water level detection device... {bulk of text unchanged}... overflow rim of such pan. A water level

detection device mav be installed onlv with prior approval of the bulldrnq or?bial.

Ref/ecfs standard in this

**Secúíon M1411.3.1.1; add text to read as follows:

M1411.3.1.1Water-level monitoring devices. On down-flow units ...{bulk of text unchanged}... installed
in the drain line. A water level detection device may be installed only with prior aoproval of the buldrnq
official.

Ref/ecfs standard in this area

**M1503.6 Makeup Air Required; amend and add exception as follows:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

6 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

M1503.6 Makeup air required. Where one or more gas, liquid or solid fuel-burning appliance that is neither
direct-vent nor uses a mechanical draft venting system is located within a dwelling unit's air barrier, each
exhaust system capable of exhausting in excess of 400 cubic feet per minute (0.19 m3/s) shall be
mechanically or passively provided with makeup air at a rate approximately equal to the difference between
exhaust air rate and 400 cubic feet per minute. Such makeup air systems shall be equipped with not fewer
than one damper complying with Section M1503.6.2.

Exception; Makeup air is not required for exhaust systems installed for the exclusive purpose of space
cooling and intended to be operated only when windows or other air inlets are open. Where all apoliances
in the house are of sealed combustion, power-vent. unvented. or electric, the exhaust hood svstem shall
be permitted to exhaust uo to 600 cubic feet per minute (0.28 m3/s) without providinq makeuo air. Exhaust
hood systems capable of exhaustinq in excess of 600 cubic feet per minute (0.28 m3is) shall be orovided
with a makeup air at a rate approximatelv to the difference between the exhaust air rate and 600 cubic feet
per minute.

(Reason: Exception requires makeup air equaling the amount above and beyond 400 cfm for larger fan
which will address concerns related to "fresh" air from the outdoors in hot humid climates creating a burden
on HVAC and from and wasted

"*Secfion M2005.2; change to read as follows:

M2005.2 Prohibíted locations. Fuel-fired water heaters shall not be installed in a room used as a storage
closet. Water heaters located in a bedroom or bathroom shall be installed in a sealed enclosure so that
combustion aftwill not be taken from the living space. Access to such enclosure mav be from the bedroom
or bathroom when throuqh a solid door, weather-stripped in accordance with the exterior door air leakaqe
requirements of the /nfernafional Enerqy Conservafion Code and equiooed with an approyed self-closinq
device. lnstallation of direct-vent water heaters within an enclosure is not required.

with the of IFGC Section 303.

**Secúion G2408.3 (305.5)Private Garages; delete ffiis secfíon in its entirety.

This does not reflect standard in this

"*Secúion G2415.2 (404.2 ) CSSI; add a second paragraph to read as follows:

Both ends of each section of medium pressure qas pipinq shall identifv its operatinq qas pressure with an
approved taq. The tags are to be composed of aluminum or stainless steel and the followinq wording shall
be stamped into the taq:

"WARNING: 1i2 to 5 osi pressure - Do Not Remove"

(Reason: To protect homeowners and plumbers.)

**Secfíon G2415.12 (404.12) and G2415.12.1 (404.12.1); change to read as follows:

G2415.12 (404.12) Minimum burial depth. Underground piping sysfems shall be installed a minimum
depth of +:-+ne¡es-€e5-mm) 18 inches (457 mm) below grade, @ien
G2415121=

G2415.12.1 (404.12.1) lndividual Outdoor Appliances; Delete in its entirety

To increased to

""Secfion G2417.1 Ø06.1); change to read as follows

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code

7



.J::li"iä'#,I-;H*
G2417.1 (406.f) General. Prior to acceptance and initial operation, all piping installations shall be
inspected and pressure fesfedto determine that the materials, design, fabrication, and installation practices
comply with the requirements of this code. The permlf holder shall make the apolicable tests prescribed in
Sections 2417.1.1 throuoh 24'17.1.5 to determine comoliance with the provisions of this code. The permif
holder shall qive reasonable advance notice to the buldln.q orTlcla/ when the p¿oinq sysfem is readv for
testinq. The eou,prnenf, material. power and labor necessary for the inspections and test shall be furnished
by the permft holder and the permrT holder shall be responsible for determininq that the work will withstand
the test oressure orescri d in the followinq tests.

(Reason: To utilize language used in the IPC regarding who is responsible for testing procedures.)

**Secfion G2417.4; change to read as follows:

G2417.4 (406.4) Test pressure measurement. Test pressure shall be measured with a monometeror
with a pressure-measuring device designed and calibrated to read, record, or indicate a pressure loss
caused by leakage during the pressure test period. The source of pressure shall be isolated before the
pressure tests are made.
the highest end ef the seale is net-greater than five times the test pressure,

(Reason: To require the use of more accurate diaphragm gauges. Spring gauges do not provide accurate
measurement below approximately 17 psig.)

**Secfion G2417.4.1 ; change to read as follows:

G2417.4.1(406.4.1) Test pressure. The test pressure to be used shall be no less than 3 psig (20 kPa
gauge), or at the discretion of the Code Official. the oipinq and valves mav be tested at a pressure of at
least six (6) inches (152 mm) of mercury. measured with a manometer or slope qauqe, irrespe€+ive.-€f

kPa gauge), the test pressure shall net
inimum

yield-strenglth-ef{hepipe' For tests requirinq a pressure of 3 psiq, diaphraqm qauqes shall utilize a dial
with a minimum diameterof three and one half inches (3 %"), a set hand, 1/10 pound incrementation and
pressure ranqe not to exceed 6 0si for tests requirinq a pressure of 3 psiq. For tests requirinq a pressure
of 10 psiq, diaphraqm qauqes shall utilize a dialwith a minimum diameterof three and one-half inches (3
%"),asethand,aminimumof2/l0poundincrementationandapressureranqenottoexceed20psi. For
welded pipinq, and for pipinq carryinq qas at pressures in excess of fourteen (14) inches water column
pressure (3.48 kPa) (1/2 psi) and less than 200 inches of water column pressure (52.2 kPa) (7.5 psi), the
test pressure shall not be less than ten (10) pounds per square inch (69.6 kPa). For pipinq carrvinq qas at
a pressure that exceeds 200 inches of water column (52.2 kPa) (7.5 psi), the test pressure shall be not less
than one and one-half times the proposed maximum workinq pressure.

Diaphraqm qauqes used for testinq must displav a current calibration and be in qood workinq condition.
The appropriate test must be applied to the diaphraqm qauqe used for testinq.

(Reason: To provide for lesser pressures to coordinate with the use of more accurate diaphragm gauges.)

**Secfion G2417.4.2; change to read as follows:

G2417.4.2 (406.4.2) Test duration. The test duration shall be held for a lenqth of time satisfactorv to the
Buildinq Official. but in no case for be-¡et less than 1€-fifteen 115) minutes. For welded pipinq. and for
prplnqcarrvinqqasat pressuresinexcessoffourteen(14)incheswatercolumnpressure(3.48kPa),the
test duration shall be held for a lenqth of time satisfactorv to the Buldlnq OrTlcla/, but in no case for less
than thirtv (30) minutes.

(Reason: To comply with accepted regional practices.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code

B



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

**Secúion G2420J (406.1); add Section G2420.1.4 to read as follows:

G2420.1.4 Valves in GSST installations. Shutoff valves installed with corrugated stainless steel (CSST)
plprnø sysfems shall be supported with an approved termination fittinq. or equivalent support. suitable for
the size of the yalyes, of adequate strenqth and quality. and located at intervals so as to prevent or damp
out excessive vibration but in no case qreater than 12-inches from the center of the yalye. Supports shall
be installed so as not to interfere with the free exoansion and contraction of the system's prprng. fittinos,
and valves between anchors. All valves and supports shall be desiqned and installed so thev will not be
disenqaqed bv movement of the supportinq p,pinq.

(Reason: To provide proper security fo CSSI valves. These standards were established in this region in
1999 when CSSI was an

*€ecfion G2420.5.1 Ø09.5.1); add text to read as follows

G2420.5.1 (409.5.1) Located within the same room. The shutoff valve.. .{bulk of paragraph unchanged} . ..
in accordance with the appliance manufacturer's instructions. A secondary shutoff valve must be installed
within 3 feet (914 mm) of the firebox if appliance shutoff is located in the firebox.

Ref/ecfs and an additional measure of convenience

**Secfíon G2421.1 Ø10.1); add text and Exception to read as follows:

G2421.1 (410.f ) Pressure regulators. A line pressure regulator shall be ... {bulk of paragraph
unchanged]... approved for outdoor installation. Access to reoulafors shall comoly with the requirements
for access to applr,ances as soecified in Section M1305.

Exception: A oassaqewav or level service space is not required when the requlafor is capable of beinq
serviced and removed through the required afflc openino.

(Reason: To require adequate access to regulators.)

**Secfíon G2422.1.2.3 (411.1.3.3) Prohibited locations and penetrations; delete Exception I and
Exception 4.

To with

*lSecfíon G2445.2 (621.2); add Exception to read as follows:

G2445.2(621.21Prohibited use. One or more unvented room heaters shall not be used as the sole source
of comfort heating in a dwelling unit.

Exception: Existinq approved unvenfed room heafers may continue to be used in dwel/rnq unifs. in
accordance with the code provisions in effect when installed. when approved by the Buldrnq Officla/
unless an unsafe condition is determined to exist as described in /nfernaflonal Fuel Gas Code Section
108.7 of the Fuel Gas Code.

Gives code official discretion

**Secúion G2448.1.1 @2a.1.1); change to read as follows:

G2448.1.1 (624.1.1') lnstallation requirements. The requirements for water heaters relative to access,
sizing, relief valves, drain pans and scald protection shall be in accordance with this code.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

I Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code



Horth Central Texas
Council of Governments

(Reason: To clarify installation requirements. Also corresponds with amendments regarding water heater
access

**Secfion P2603; add to read as follows

P2603.3 Protection against corrosion. Metallic piping, except for cast iron, ductile iron and galvanized
steel, shall not be placed in direct contact with steel framing members, concrete or cinder walls and floors
or other masonry. Metallic piping shall not be placed in direct contact with corrosive soil. Where sheathing
is used to prevent direct contact, the sheathing shall have a thickness of not less than 0.008 inch (8 mil)
(0.203 mm) and the sheathing shall be made of aporoved material plastie. Where sheathing protects piping
that penetrates concrete or masonry walls or floors, the sheathing shall be installed in a manner that allows
movement of the piping within the sheathing.

(Reason: Allows for other materials to be accepted.)

,{åi{S#."{#i:1ilìiy*,**. ''t,}-h.W3.,#åtrå 'n,9
**Secfion P2603.5.1 Sewer Depth; change to read as follows:

P2603.5.1 Sewer depth. Building sewers that connect to private sewage disposal systems shall be a
minimum of [number] inches (mm) below finished grade at the point of septic tank connection. Building
sewers shall be a minimum of 12 inches (304 mm)below grade.

(Reason: Provides sewer depth that is common in this region. Deleted reference to private sewage
dþosa/ because a private sewage disposal code is not adopted in this

***Secfíon P2604; add to read as follows.

P2604.2.1 Plastic sewer and DWV piping installation. Plastic sewer and DWV pipinq installed
underqround shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions. Trench width
shall be controlled to not exceed the outside the pipe diameter plus 16 inches or in a trench which has a
controlled width equal to the nominal diameter of the pipinq multiplied bv 1.25 plus 12 inches. The pioinq

ShA[¡e bedded in 4 inches of qranular fill and then þackflled compactinq the side fill in 6-inch lavers on
each side of the pipinq. The compaction shall be to minimum of 85 percent standard proctor densitv and
extend to a minimum of 6 inches above the top of the pipe.

To follow manufacturer backfill and to be clear to out in the field

** Secfion P2801 ; change to read as follows:

P2801.6 Required pan.
Where a storage tank-type water heater or a hot water storage tank is installed in a location where water
leakage from the tank will cause damage, the tank shall be installed in a pan constructed of one of the
following:

1. Galvanized steel or aluminum of not less than 0.0236 inch (0.6010 mm) in thickness.
2. Plastic not less than 0.036 inch (0.9 mm) in thickness.
3. Other approved materials.

ineex ef eS er tess a

^"ry
(Reason: Plastic burns degrading material over time on gas fired water heaters and to maintaining
protection level.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code

't0



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Govemments**Section P2801.6.1; change to read as follows:

Section P2801.6.1 Pan size and drain. The pan shall be not less than 11t2 inches (3S mm) in depth and
shall be of sufficient size and shape to receive all dripping or condensate from the tank or water heater.
The pan shall be drained by an indirect waste pipe havinq a diameter of not less than 3/4 inch (19 mm).
Piping for safety pan drains shall be of those materials listed in Table p2906.s.
Multiole Pan drains may lerminate to a sinqle discharoe pipinq svstem when approved by the administratíve
?uthoritv and permítted by the manufactures installation instructions andffi
{e xi sti ng text u nch a n g e d}

** Secfion P2804.6.1; change to read as follows:

Secfion P2804.6.1 Requirements for discharge piping. The discharge piping serving a pressure relief
valve, temperature relief valve or combination thereof shall:

1. Not be directly connected to the drainage system.

2. Discharge through an air gap

3. Not be smaller than the diameter of the outlet of the valve served and shall discharge full size to
the air gap.

4. Serve a single relief device and shall not connect to piping serving any other relief device or
equipment.

Exception: Multiple lelief devices may be installed to a sinqle T & P discharge oip¡no system when
aoproved by the administrative authority and permitted by the manufactures insiailation instructions
and installed with those instructions.

5. Discharge to an
approved location or to the outdoors.

[remainder unchanged]

To ensure the T&P is ran to the

**Secfíon P2902.5.3; change to read as follows:

P2902.5-3 Lawn irrigation systems. The potable water supply to lawn irrigation systems shall be protected
against backflow by an atmospheric-type vacuum breaker, a pressure-type vaðuum breaker¡¡louþþ
check assembly or a reduced pressure principle backflow preventer. A valve shall not be installed
downstream from an atmospheric vacuum breaker. Where chemicals are introduced into the system, the
potable water supply shall be protected against backflow by a reduced pressure prínciple backflow
preventer.

To

**Section P3003.9; change to read as follows:

P3003.9.2 Solvent cementing. Joint surfaces shall be clean and free from moisture. A purple primer that
conforms to ASTM F 656 shall be applied. Solvent cement not purple in color and conforming t,o ASTM D
2564, CSA 8137.3, CSA 8181.2 or CSA 8182Jshall be applíed to alljoint surfaces. fheþintshail be
made while the cement is wet and shall be in accordance with ASTM D 2BSs. Solvent cemeñt joints shall
be permitted above or below ground.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code

11



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

1, The selvent eement used is third party eertified as eenferming te ASTM Ð 2564
ste, and vent pipe and fittings

in net pressure appl¡

to the of PVC

**Secfion P3lllCombination waste and vent sysfems,' delete this section in its entirety,

A combination waste and vent is nof for use in residential construction.

**Secfion P3112.2 Vent Connection; delete and replace with the following:

P3112.2 lnstallation. Traps for island sinks and similar equipment shall be rouqhed in above the floor and
may be vented by extendinq the vent as hiqh as oossible. but not less than the drainboard heiqht and then
returninq it downward and connectinq it to the horizontal sink drain immediately downstream from the
vertical fixture drain. The return vent shall be connected to the horizontal drain throuqh a wve-branch fittinq
and shall. in addition. be provided with a foot vent taken off the vertical fixture vent bv means of a wve-
branch immediatelv below the floor and extendinq to the nearest partition and then throuqh the roof to the
open air or mav be connected to other vents at a point not less than six (6) inches (152 mm) above the
flood level rim of the fixtures served. Drainaoe fittinqs shall be used on all parts of the vent below the floor
level and a minimum slooe of one-ouarter l114ì i oer foot 120.9 mm/m) back to the drain shall be
maintained. The return bend used under the drain-board shall be a one (l Lpiece fittinq or an assembly of
a forty-five (45) deoree (0.79 radius). a ninetv (90) deoree (1.6 radius) and a forty-five (45) deqree (0.79
radius) elbow in the order named. Pipe sizing shall be as elsewhere required in this Code. The island sink
drain, uostream of the return vent, shall serve no other fixtures. An accessible cleanout shall be installed
in the vertical portion of the foot vent.

(Reason: To clarify the installation of island venting and to provide a regional guideline on a standard
installation method for this region.)

END

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Residential Code

12



North CentralTexas
Councll of Govemments

Recommended Regional Amendments to the
202'l lnternational Swimming Pool and Spa Code

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 lnternational Swimming Pool and Spa Code
are hereby amended as follows: Standard type is text from the ISPSC. Underlined tvoe is text inserted.
tine*threugh type is deleted text frem ISPSê, A double asterisk at the beginning of a section identifies an
amendment carried over from the 2018 edition of the code. A triple asterisk (***) identifies a new orrevised
amendment with the 2021 ISPSC code.

**Section 102.9; Change to read as follows:

Section 102.9 Other laws. The provisions of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions of
local, state or federal law. to include but not

1. Texas Department of State Health Services (TDSHS): Sfandards forPublic Pools andSpas:
S285.181 throuqh 8285.208. ffDSHS rules do not apply to pools servino one- and
two-familv dwellinos or townhouses).

2. Texas Department of Licensinq and Requlation (TDLR): 2012 Texas Accessibilitv
Sfandards IIAS). TAS provide the scooino and technical rewirements for accessibility for
Swimmina Pool wadinn nnnlq and snas and shall nnmnlv wilh 2O1 2 TAS Sa'ation 242

CIAS rules do not aoolv to oools servinq one- and two-family dwellinqs or townhousesl

Exception: Elements requlated under Texas Department of Licensinq and Requlation
(TDLR) and built in accordance with TDLR approved olans. includinq anv variances or
waivers qranted bv the TDLR, shall be deemed to be in compliance with the requirements
of this Chapter.

Texas statutes which and

***Section 113.4 Violation penalties; Changed to read as follows'

113.4 Violation penalties. Any person who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to comply with
any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter or repaír a pool or spa in violation of the
approved construction documents or directive of the code official, or of a permit or certificate issued under
the provisions of this code may be ounishable for each day of the violation set forth by the auff¡oíIy havrnq
l¿insdrcfion. 

' 
shall be guilty ef

Eaeh day that a vielatien eentinues after due netiee has been served shall be deemed a se^arate effense,

Covered b of the Code of Ordinances

**"Section 305; Change to read as follows:

305.1 General.
The provísions of this section shall apply to the design of barriers for restricting entry into areas having
pools and spas. ln onlv one-and two-family dwellinqs and townhouses,-where spas or hot tubs are equipped
with a lockable safety cover complying with ASTM F1346 and swimming pools are equipped with a powered
safety cover that complies with ASTM F1346, the areas where those spas, hot tubs or pools are located
shall not be required to comply with Sections 305.2 through 305.7.

To

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

1 Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernationalSwimming Pooland Spa Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

(Reason: To clarify requirements for dwellings and commercial properties and specific Texas statutes which
and

** Add subsection 305.2.7.1; to read as follows:

305.2.7.1 Chain link fencinq prohibited. Chain link fencinq is not permitted as a barrier in public oools
built after Januarv 1. 1994.

Texas Health and Code 757.003

***Section 305.4 structure wall as a barrier; Changes as follows:

305.4Structurewal|asabarrier.WhereawallofadwellingorStructure@
or townhouse or its accessory structure serves as part of a barrier and where doors or windows provide
direct access to the pool or spa through that wall, one of the following shall be required:

1. Remainder Unchanged
2. Remainder Unchanged
3. Remainder Unchanged
4. Remainder unchanged
5. Remainder unchanged
6. Remainder unchanged

(Reason: To clarify specific Texas Health and Safety Code Chapter 757.007

To

**Section 305.6; Ghange to read as follows:

305.6 Natural barriers used in a one- and two-family dwellino or townhouse. ln the case where the
pool or spa area abuts the edge of a lake or other natural body of water, public access is not permitted or
allowed along the shoreline, and required barriers extend to and beyond the water's edge a minimum of
eighteen (18) inches, a barrier is not required between the naturalbody of watershoreline and the poolor
spa.

(Reason: Specific Texas statutes do not allow the use of natural barriers in lieu of fencing for publicpools
757

**Section 307.1.4 Accessibility; Add exception to Section to 307.1.4 as follows:

Exception: Components of proiects regulated by and registered with Architectural Barriers Division of
Texas Department of Licensinq and Requlation shall be deemed to be in compliance with the reouirements
of this chaoter.

(Reason.' To accommodate buildings regulated under state law. Further clarified to mean Components that
are addressed b TDLR shallbe

on read as

Section 307.2.2.2. Adiacencv to Structural Foundation. Depth of the swimminq pool and soa
shall maintain a ratio of 1 :1 from the nearest buildinq foundation or footinq of a retaininq wall.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

2 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternationalSwimming Pool and Spa Code



North Gentral Texas
Councll of ûovemments

Exception:

A sealed enqineered desiqn drawinq of the proposed new structure shall be submitted for
approval.

distances for and correlates with IRC 327.1

**Section 310; Change to read as follows:

310.1 General. Suction entrapment avoidance for pools and spas shall be provided in accordance with
APSP 7 (ANSI/PHTA/ICC 7) or for oublic swimminq pools in accordance with State of Texas Rulesfor
Public Swimminq Pools and Spas, Title 25 TAC Chapter 265 Subchapter L, Rule S265.190.

[Remainder unchanged]

To Texas statutes which and

** Section 402.12; Change to read as follows:

402.12 Water envelopes. The minimum diving water envelopes shall be in accordance with Table
¿eP=P-fexas Aepartment of
Section l86le) and Fiqure: 25 TAC 256.186íe) 16). (Delete Table 402.12 and Fiqure 402.12)

ADD ure: 25 TAC 65.1 86 e

H (Overhead

Obstruction or Ceiling)

6 Min.

Pt. C

4' Min

110 4' 6"
6' 6" Typical

30o Max. 10 Max Slooe

To

2
PtA pt. B

I
D2 D

R

North Central Texas Council
Amendments

3 July 2021

Maximum Divinq Board Heiqht Over Water YoMeter 1 Meter 3 Meters

Max. Divinq Board Lenqth 12ft. 16 ft. t6 ft.
Minimum Divinq Board Overhanq 2ft.6in. 5ft. 5ft.
D1 Minimum 8ft.6in. 11ft.2in. 12ft.2in
D2 Minimum 9ft. 10 ft. 10 in 11 ft. 10 in.

D3 Minimum 4ft. 6 ft. 6ft.
L1 Minimum 4ft. 5ft. 5ft
L2 Minimum 12ft. 16 ft. 5 in. 19 ft. 9 in
L3 Minimum 14 ft. 10 in 13ft.2in 13ft. 11 in.

L4 Minimum 30 ft. 10 in 34ft.7in 38ft.8in
L5 Minimum 8ft. 10 ft. 13 ft.
H Minimum 16 ft. 16 ft. 16 ft.
From Plummet to PoolWall at Side 9ft. 10 ft. 11 ft. 6 in.

From Plummet to Adjacent Plummet 10 ft. 10 ft. 10 ft.

Governments
2021 lnternationalSwimming Pooland Spa Code



Nodh Central Texas
Councll of Governments

r L2
<_ --------.-.-----L3 Typical

L4

L5
10'

(t u"t..)

(Reason: To avoid conflict with 25 TAC Chapter265.)

4' Min

**Section 411.2.1 & 411.2.2; Change to read as follows:

411.2.1 Tread dimensions and area. Treads shall have a minimum unobstructed horizontaldeoth (i.e..
horizontal run) of 12 inches and a minimum width of 20 inches. net be less than 24 inehes (607mmlat-the

(154838mm2) and an unebstrueted herizental depth ef net less than10 inehes (254 mm) at theeenter line,

411.2.2 Risers. Risers for steps shall have a maximum uniform heioht of 10 inches, with the bottom riser
heiqht allowed to taper to zero
12 inehes (305 mm) measured at the eenter line, The bettem riser height is allewed te vary te thefleer,

To avoid conflict with 25 TAC 265.186 &

**Section 411.5.1 & 411.5.2; Change to read as follows:

411.5.1 Swimouts. Swimouts, located in either the deep or shallow area of a pool, shall comply with all
of the following:

Unchanged
Unchanged
Unchanged
The leading edge shall be visibly set apart and provided with a horizontal solid or broken stripe at least
I inch wide on the top surface along the front leadinq edqe of each steo. This stripe shall be plainly
visible to oersons on the pool deck. The stripe shall be a contrastinq color to the backqround on which
it is applied, and the color shall be permanent in nature and shall be a slip-resistant surface.

411.5.2 Underwater seats and benches. Unden¡vater seats and benches, whether used alone or in
conjunction with pool stairs, shall comply with all of thefollowing:

1. Unchanged
2. Unchanged
3. Unchanged
4. Unchanged
5. The leading edge shall be visually set apart and provided with a horizontal solid or broken stripe at least

1 inch wide on the too surface alonq the front leadinq edqe of each step. This stripe shall be.

L

2.
3.
4.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

4 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Swimming Pooland Spa Code



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Governments

plainlv visible to persons on the oool deck. The stríoe shall be a contrastinq color to the backqround on
which it is aoolied. and the color shall be oermanent in nature and shall be a slip-resistant surface.

6. Unchanged

7. Unchanged

To avoid conflict with 25 TAC 265j84 & 265.186

**Section 610.5.1; Change to read

610.5.1 Uniform height of $;[inches. Except for the bottom riser, risers at the centerline shall have a
maximum uniform height of 910 inches (229254 mm). The bottom riser height shall be permitted to vary
from the other risers.

To conflict 25 TAC 265.186

804 Diving Water Envelopes; Ghange to read as follows:

Section 804.1 General. The minimum diving water envelopes shall be in accordance with Table 804.1 and
Figure 804.1 , or the manufacturer's soecifications. whichever is qreater. Negative construction tolerances
shall not be applied to the dimensions of the minimum diving water envelopes given in Table 804.1.

(Reason: To provide minimum standards and to clarify specific manufactures specifications of the diving

END

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

5 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Swimming Pooland Spa Code



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

Recommended Amendments to the
2021 lnternational Building Code

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 lnternationat Building Code are hereby
amended as follows: Standard type is text from the lBC. Underlined tvpe is text inserted. t+ned-thres€å+ype
iffiAdoubleasterisk(--)atthebeginningofasectionidentifiesanamendmentcarried
over from the 2018 edition of the code and a triple asterisk (***) identifies a new or revised amendment with
the 2021 code.

**Secfion 101.4; change to read as follows:

101.4 Referenced codes. The other codes listed in Sections 101.4.1 through 101.4.8 and referenced
elsewhere in this code, when specificallv adopted, shall be considered part of the requirements of this code
to the prescribed extent of each such reference. Whenever amendments have been adopted to the
referenced codes and standards. each reference to said code and standard shall be considered to
reference the amendments as well. Anv reference to NFPA 70 or the Electrical Code shall mean the
Electrical Code as adopted.

(Reason; Legal wording to recognize locally adopted codes and amendments adopted with referenced
codes. The former ICC Electrical Code is now Appeadix-K Chapter 27 of this code but no longer called by
that name.)

**Secfion 101.4.8; add the following:

101.4.8 Electrical. The provisions of the Electrical Code shall applv to the installation of electrical svstems,
including alterations. repairs, replacement, equipment. appliances, fixtures. fittinqs and appurtenances
thereto.

(Reason: Ihrs was dropped when ICC quit publishing the ICC Electrical Code, but the Electricat Code stilt
should be referenced regardless of how it is adopted.)

**Sections 103 and 103.1 I amend to insert the Department Name

W IINSERT OFFICIAL BUILDING DEPARTMENT NAME OF
JURISDICTIONI
103.1 Creation of enforcement agency. The I'INSERT NAME OF DEPARTMENTì is hereby created and
the official in charge thereof shall be known as the building official.
IRemainder Unchanged]
(Reason: Reminder to be sure ordinance reads the sarne as designated by the city and amend Secfion
101.1. )

**Section lA.l 104.2.1 Determination of substantially improved or substantially damaged existing
buildings and structures in flood hazard areas. (Jurisúctions may consider the option to amend or
delete depending on local enforcement and flood hazard ordinances.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

Explanation of Options A and B:
Please note that as there is a wide range in fire fighting philosophies / capabilities of cities across the
region, OPTION "4" and OPTION "8" are provided in the Fire and Building Code amendments.
Jurisdictions should choose one or the other based on their fire fighting philosophies / capabilities when
adopting code amendments.



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

F lood h aza rd ord i n ance s be administered other within the

**Section 104.10.1; Flood hazard areas. (Jurisdictions may consider the option to amend or delete
depending on local enforcement and flood hazard ordinances.)

(Reason; Flood hazard ordinances may be administered by other departments within the city.)

"*Section 105.2 Work exemptfrom permít; under sub-title entitled "Building" delete items 1,2, 10
and 11 and re-number as follows:

Building:

1, One stery detaehed aeeessery struetures used as teel and sterage sheds, playheuses-and similar

+ 1. (Remainder Unchanged)

+ 2. (Remainder Unchanged)

å 3. (Remainder Unchanged)

ê 4. (Remainder Unchanged)

7= 5. (Remainder Unchanged)

& 6. ( Remainder Unchanged)

& 7. (Remainder Unchanged)

ing__€enn€e
sysems,

4l- 8. (Remainder Unchanged)

1å 9. (Remainder Unchanged)
13 10. (Remainder Unchanged)

(Reason: Iteme deleted are for one- and two-family dwellings regulated by the lnternational Residential
Code. Accessory structures, fences and shade cloth structures would require a permit for commercial
properties to ensure compliance with local ordinance, egress, accessibility, flame spread of fabric,
wind/snow etc

**Secfion 109; add Secfion 109.7 to read as follows:

109.7 Re-inspection Fee. A fee as established bv citv council resolution mav be charoed when:

1. The inspection called for is not readv when the inspector arrives:

2. No buildinq address or permit card is clearly posted:

3. Citv approved plans are not on the iob site available to the inspector:

4. The buildinq is locked or work otherwise not available for inspection when called;

5. The iob site is red{aqqed twice for the same item:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

2 Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Building Code



North Central ïexas
Counc¡l of Governments

6. The oriqinal red tag has been removed from the iob site.

7. Failure to maintain erosion control, trash control or tree orotection.

Anv re-inspection fees assessed shall be paid before anv more inspections are made on that iob site.

(Reason; This fee is not a fine or penalty but is designed to compensate for time and trips when inspections
are called for when not ready.)

**Secfion 110.3.5; Lath, gypsum board and gypsum panel product inspection; Detete exception

e neLpert ef e fire re
era-sAear-assenøty.

(Reason: Lath or gypsum board inspections are not typically performed in this area. Deleting the exception
would then require allgypsum panels to be inspected;fhls r,ssue is resolved by leaving the exception intact.)

**Secúion 202; amend definition of Ambulatory Care Facility as follows:

AMBULATORY CARE FACILITY. Buildings or portions thereof used to provide medical, surgical,
psychiatric, nursing or similar care on a less than 24-hour basis to in¿*iAu€+s_pCISgIS who are rendered
incapable of self-preservation by the services provided er staff has aeeepted respensibility fer eare
reei@. This qrouo mav include but not be limited to the followinq:

- Dialvsis centers
- Sedation dentistrv
- Surqery centers
- Colonic centers
- Psychiatric centers

(Reason: To clarify the range of uses included in the definition. [Explanatory note related to Ambulatory
Care Facilities: Ihls group of uses includes medical or dental offices where persons are put under for
dental surgery or other servlces. Secfion 903.2.2 will now require such uses to be sprinklered if on other
than the floor of exit discharge or if four or more persons are put under on the level of exit discharge.
Recommend (1 .) jurisdictions document any pre-existing non-conforming conditions prior to rssurng a new
C of O for a change of tenant and, (2.) On any medical or dental office specify on C of O the maximum
number of persons permitted to be put under general anesthesia. lt is recommended that before a
Certificate of Occupancy ls rssued, a letter of intended use from fhe busrness owner shall be included and
a C of O documenting the maximum number of care recipients incapable of self-preseruation allowed.)

**Secúion 202; add definition of Assisting Living Facilities to read as follows.

ASSISTED LIVING FACILITIES. A building or part thereof housing persons, on a 24-hour basis, who
because of age, mental disability or other reasons, live in a supervised residential environment which
provides personal care services. Ihe occupants are capable of responding to an emergency situation
without physical assrsfance from staff.

(Reason: The code references,Assisfed Living facilities and definition was deleted.) 
:

**Secfion 202; adúamend definition of "Repair Garage" as follows:

REPAIR GARAGE. A building, structure or portion thereof used for servicing or repairing motor vehicles.
This occupancv shall also include qarages involved in minor repair, modification and servicino of motor
vehicles for items such as lube chanoes. insoections windshield reoair or reolacement. shocks. minor oart
replacement and other such minor repairs.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnïernational Building Code

3



ilorth Central Texas
CÕuncll of Governments

The code references with fire

**Secfion 202; amend definition of SPECIAL T /SPECIOR b read as follows:

SPECIAL INSPECTOR. A qualified person employed or retained by an approved agency who shall prove
to the satisfaction of the reqistered desiqn professional in responsible charqe and app+eved$y the Building
Official as having lhe competence necessary to inspect a particular type of construction requiring special
inspection.

The tn should be included

**Secfion amend definition of HIGH-RISE BUILDING to read as follows:

(Reason: To define high-rise, as it influences sprinkler requirement thresholds based on the fire fighting
ofa

**Secfion 303.1.3; add a sentence to read as follows:

303.1.3 Associated with Group E occupancies. A room or space used for assembly purposes that is
associated with a Group E occupancy is not considered a separate occupancy, exeept when applvinq the
assemblv requirements of Chapters 10 and 1 1 .

(Reason: To clarify that egress and accessibility requirements are applicable for assembly areas, i.e.

**Secfion 304.1; add the following to the list of occupancies:

Fire stations
Police stations with detention facilities for 5 or less

Consistent with da back to the codes

**Secfion 307.1.1; add the following senfence to Exception 4:

4. Cleaning establishments... /Iexf unchanged]...with Section 707 or 1-hour horizontal assemblies
constructed in accordance with Section 711 or both. See also IFC Chapter 21, Drv Cleaninq Plant
provisions.

To call attention to detailed in the Fire

**Section 403.1, Exception 3; change to read as follows:

3. The open-air portion of a building [remainder unchanged]

Option A
**Section 202; {No amendment necessary}

Option B
**Secúion 202; amend definition to read as follows:

HIGH-RISE BUILDING. A building with an occupied floor located more than 75 55 feet (:Z+Ag-mm)
(16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

4 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

To enclosed are not

**Secúion 403.3, Automatic Sprinkler Sysfem. Delete exception;

To fire to enclosed

**Secúron 403.3.2; change to read as follows:

[Fl 403.3.2 Water supply to required fire pumps. ln buildings that are more than 420 120 feet (36.5 m)
in building height, required fire pumps shall be supplied by connections to no fewer than two water mains
located in different streets. Separate supply piping shall be provided between each connection to the water
main and the pumps. Each connection and the supply piping between the connection and the pumps shall
be sized to supply the flow and pressure required for the pumps to operate.

Exception: {No change to exception.}

(Reason: The 2009 edition of the IFC added this requirement based on a need for redundancy of the water
supply similar to the redundancy of the power supply to the fire pumps required for such tall buildings,
partially due to the fact that these buildings are rarely fully evacuated in a fire event. More commonly, the
alarm activafes on the floor of the event, the floor above and the floor below. Back-up power to the fire
pump becomes critical for this reason. Certainly, the power rs pornfless if the water supply is impaired for
any reason, so a similar requirement is provided here for redundant water supplies. The 201 5 edition
changed the requirement to only apply to very tall buildings over 420 ft. This amendment modifies/lowers
the requirement to 120 ft., based on this same height requirement for fire seruice access elevators. Again,
the language from the 2009 and 2012 editions of the code applied to any high-rise building. This
compromise at 120 ft. is based on the above technical justification of defend-in-place scenarios in fire
incidents in such tall

***Section 403.3.2; change to read as follows:

Section 404.10 Exít Stairways in an atrium. Where an atrium contains an interier exit access stainvay all
the following shall be met:

[Remainder Unchanged]

(Reason: The five provisions within Section 404.10 are applicable to exit access stairways, not interior exit
stairways. As printed, fhls ls an error, that if left uncorrected, would change among other core code
provisions, how to measure travel distance to an enclosed exit stairvvay. There is use of the terms "exit
stairway in an atrium" vs. "interior exit stainaay" vs. "exit access stairway" that will cause confusion as fo
which vtstons are

*€ecfíon 406.3.3.1 Carport separation; add sentence to read as follows:

A fire separation is not required between a Group R-2 and U carport provided that the carport is entirelv
open on all sides and that the distance between the two is at least 10 feet (3048 mm).

(Reason: Simplifies the fire separation distance and eliminates the need to obtain opening information on
existing buildings when adding carports in existing apartment complexes. Conslsfenf with legacy codes in
effect in for and no record of with car fires to as a result

***Secfíon 423.5.1 ; change to read as follows:
423.5.1 Required occupant capacity. The required occupant capacity of the storm shelter shall include
allofthebuildingsonthesiteandshallbethe@

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

5 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

l,The Total occupant load of the classrooms, vocational rooms and offices in the Group E occupancy.
2,The eeeupant lead ef the largest indeer assembly spaee that is asseeiated with the Greup E eeeupaney,

Exceptions:

1. Where a new buildinq is beinq added on an existinq Group E site. and where the new buildinq is not of
sufficient size to accommodate the required occupant capacitv of the storm shelter for all of the buildinos
on the site. the storm shelter shall at a minimum accommodate the required occupant capacitv for the
new buildinq.
2. Where approved by the building official, the required occupant capacity of the shelter shall be permitted
to be reduced by the occupant capacity of any existing storm shelters on the site.
3. Where approved bv the buildinq official, the actual number of occupants for whom each occupied
space. floor or buildinq is desiqned. althouqh less than those determined bv occupant load calculation.
shall be oermitted to be used in the determination of the required design occupant capaciV for the storm
shelter.

Reason.' The language in the new exception is parallelto the language in Chapter 10 that gives an AHJ
similar authority for fire egress occupant load, clarifying that an AHJ has the authority to reduce the

shelter based on rationale a SchoolDistrict.

***Section 503.1.: add sentence to read as follows:
503.1. General. lExistinq Text to remainl

Where a buildinq contains more than one distinct tvpe of construction. the buildinq shall complv with the
most restrictive area. heiqht. and stories. for the lesser tvpe of construction or be separated bv fire walls.
except as allowed in Section 510.

**Table 506.2; delete footnote i from table

i, The maximum allewable area fer a single stery nen sprinlCered Greup U greenheuse is permitted te be
9000 square feet er the allewable area shall be permitted te eemply with Table C 102,1 ef r\ppendix G,

(Reason: To eliminate the need for Appendix C adoption and remain consistent with 6000 sq. ft. sprinklering

**Secfion 506.3.1 ; add sentence to read as follows:

506.3.1 Minímum percentage of perimeter. [Existing Text remains]

ln order to be considered as accessible, if not in direct contact with a street or fire lane, a minimum '1O-foot-

wide pathwav meeting fire department access from the street or approved fire lane shall be provided.

To define what is considered accessib/e. Consistent with amendment to IFC 503.1.1

***Secfion 708.4.2; change sentence to read as follows:

708.4.2 Fireblocks and draftstops in combustible construction. [Body of text unchanged]

Exceptions:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

6 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code



North Central Texas
CoLincil of Governments

Buildings equipped with an automatic sprinkler system installed throughout in accordance with
Section 903.3.'1.1, or in accordance with Section 903.3.1.2 provided that sprinkler protection is
provided in the space between the top of the fire partition and the underside of the floor or roof
sheathing, deck or slab above as required for systems complying with Section 903.3.1.1.
Portions of buildinos ntaininq concealed soaces filled with noncombustible insulation as
permitted for sorinkler omission shall not apolv to this exception for draftstoppinq.
[Remainder unchanged]

Reason; The most common exception used to eliminate the need for sprinklers in concealed spaces of
combustible construction is to fill the space with noncombustible insulation. This exception was changed in
2010 to permit a 2-inch air gap at the top of the filled space. A space compliant with the permitted omission
above would allow hot gas and smoke to spread unimpeded throughout a building not provided with
draftstopping. For this reason, omission of sprinklers permitted in accordance with NFPA 13 referenced
standard should not be permitted with IBC exception requiring draftstopping in combustible construction.

**Secfion 718.3; change sentence to read as follows: f

718.3 Draftstopping in floors. [Body of text unchanged]

Exceptions: Buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with
Section 903.3. 1 .1. and provided that in combustible construction, sprinkler protection is provided in
the floor space.

(Reason: To remain consistent with changes in 708.4.2 IBC code.)

"*Secfíon 718.4; change senfence to read as follows:

718.4 Draftstopping in attics. fBody of text unchanged]

Exceptions: Buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with
Section 903.3.1.1 and provided that in combustible construction, sorinkler protection is provided in
the attic space.

(Reason: To remain consistent with changes in 708.4.2 IBC code.)

**Secfion 901.6.1; add Section 901.6.1.1 to read as follows:

901.6.1.1 Standpipe Testinq. Buildino owners/manaoers must maintain and test standpipe svstems as
Þer NFPA 25 requirements. The followinq additional reouirements shall be applied to the testino that is
required every 5 vears:

L The pipinq between the Fire Department Connection (FDC) and the standpipe shall be backflushed
or insoected bv aoo camera when foreiqn material is oresent or when caps are missinq, and
also hvdrostaticallv tested for all FDC's on anv tvpe of standpioe svstem. Hvdrostatic testinq shall
also be conducted in accordance with NFPA 25 requirements for the different tvpes of standoipe
svstems.

2. For anv manual (drv or wet) standpipe svstem not havinq an automatic water supplv capable of
flowing water through the standpipe, the tester shall connect hose from a fire hvdrant or oortable
pumoinq svstem (as approved bv the f/re code o,T,ciah to each FDC, and flow water throuoh the
standpioe system to the roof outlet to verifu that each inlet connection functions properlv. Confirm that
there are no ooen hose valves prior to introducinq water into a drv stan There is no required

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

7 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

pressure criteria at the outlet. Verifu that check valves function properlv and that there are no closed
control valves on the svstem.

3. Any oressure relief. reducing, or control valves shall be tested in accordance with the requirements
of NFPA 25. All hose valves shall be exercised.

4. lf the FDC is not alreadv provided with approved caps. the contractor shall install such caps for all
FDC's as required bv the flre code offlc/a/.

5. Upon successful completíon of standpioe test. olace a blue taq (as oer Texas Administrative Code.
Fire Sprinkler Rules for lnspection, Test and Maintenance Service (lTM) Taq) at the bottom of each
standpioe riser in the buildinq. The taq shall be check-marked as "Fifth Year" for Tvpe of lTM. and
the note on the back of the taq shall read "5 Year Standpipe Test" at a minimum.

6. The procedures required bv Texas Administrative Code Fire Sprinkler Rules with regard to Yellow
Taqs and Red Taqs or anv deficiencies noted durinq the testinq. includinq the required notification
of the local Authority Having Jurisdiction (fiþ code offlcraô shall be followed.

7. Additionally. records of the testino shall be maintained bv the owner and contractor. if apolicable.
as required bv the State Rules mentioned above and NFPA 25.

8. Standpipe svstem tests where water will be flowed external to the buildino shall not be conducted
durinq freezinq conditions or durinq the dav prior to expected niqhttime freezino conditions.

L Contact the flre code officlal for reouests to remove existing fire hose from Class ll and lll standoioe
svstems where emplovees are not trained in the utilization of this fireflqhtinq equipment. All standpipe
hose valves must remain in olace and be provided with an approved cap and chain when aporoval is
given to remove hose by the ffte code offlcral.

(Reason: /ncreases the reliability of the fire protection sysfern and re-emphasÞes the requirements of NFPA
25 relative to standpipe sysfems, as well as ensuring that FDC connections are similarly tested/maintained
to ensure tn an

**Secúíon 903.1.1; change to read as follows:

903.1.1 Alternative Protection. Alternative automatic fire-extinguishing systems complying with Section
904 shall be permitted instead ef in addition to automatic sprinkler protection where recognized by the
applicable standard and, or as approved by the fiTe code official.

(Reason: Such alternafive sysfems do not provide the reliability of automatic sprinkler protection. Most
gaseous fype sysfems are highly susceptible to open doors, ceiling or floor tile removal, etc. However, an
applicant could pursue an Alternate Method request to help mitigate the reliability rssues with these
alternative sysfems with the fire code official if so desired, or there may be circumstances in which the fire
code official is acceptable to allowing an alternate sysfem in lieu of sprinklers, such as kitchen hoods or

**Sectíon 903.2; add paragraph to read as follows and delete the exception for telecommunications
buildings:

Automatic Sprinklers shall not be installed in elevator machine rooms, elevator machine spaces. and
elevator hoistwavs. other than oits where such sprinklers would not necessitate shunt trio requirements
under any circumstances. Storage shall not be allowed within the elevator machine room. Siqnaqe shall be

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

I Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code



North Central Texas
Counc¡l of Governments

provided at the entrv doors to the elevator machine room indicating "ELEVATOR MACHINERY - NO
STORAGE ALLOWED.'

(Reason: Firefighter and public safety. This amendment eliminates the shunt trip requirement of the
lnternational Building Code Section 3005.5 for the purpose of elevator passenger and firefighter safety.
This amendment is contingent on the Building Code amendment eliminating the Exceptions to Secfion
3005.4, such that passive fire barriers for these areas are maintained. The exception deletion is due to the
fact that such telecom areas pose an undue fire risk to the structural integrity of the building.)

***Secfion 903.2.4.2; change to read as follows:

903.2.4.2 Group F-1 distilled spirits. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout a Group
F-1 fire area used forthe manufacture of distilled spirits involvinq more than '120 qallons of distilled soirits
(>16% alcohol) in the fire area at any one time.

(Reason: To establish a sprinkler criteria limit based on existing maximum allowable quantities provided
for flammable liquids in a non-sprinklered space from Chapter 50 and allow very small distillery type
operations without sprinkler requirements as has been historically allowed.)

***Section 903.2.9.3; change to read as follows:

903.2.9.3 Group S-l distílled spirits or wine. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout
a Group S-1 fire area used forthe bulk storage of distilled spirits orwine involvinq more than 120 qallons
of distilled spirits or wine (>16% alcohol) in the fire area at anv one time.

(Reason: To establish a sprinkler criteria limit based on existing maximum allowable quantities provided
for flammable liquids in a non-sprinklered space from Chapter 50 and allow very small storage operations
without sprinkler requirements as has been historically allowed.) 

:

**Secfíon g03.2.g.4 and 903.2.9.5; detete Exception to 903.2.9.4 and addsecúion g03.2.g.5 to read as
follows:

903.2.9.5 Self-Service Storaqe Facilítv. An automatic sprinkler svstem shall be installed throuqhout all
self-service storaqe facil ities.

(Reason: Fire departments are unable to regularly inspect the interior of these commercial occupancies
and are unaware of the contents being stored. Previous allowance to separate units by fire barriers is
difficult to enforce maintenance after opening.)

**Option A
Secfíon 903.2.11; change 903.2.11 .3 and add 903.2.11.7 and 903.2.17.8, as follows:

903.2.11.3 Buildings 55 Feet or more in Height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed
throughout buildings that have one or more stories with an eeeupant lead eÊ30 er mere. other than
penthouses in compliance with Section 1510 of the /nfernafional Buildrnq Code, located 55 feet (16 764
mm) or more above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access, measured to the finished floor.
--Cxeep+iens-

North Central ïexas Council of Governments
Amendments

I Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

903.2.11.7 Hiqh-Piled Gombustible Storaqe. For anv buildinq with a clear heiqht exceedino 't2 feet
(4572 mm). see Chapter 32 to determine if those provisions apply.

(Reason: Provides jurisdictions options as to their desired level of sprinkler protection based on multiple
factors

**Secfion 903.3.1.1.1; change to read as follows:
903.3.1.1.1 Exempt Locations. When approved bv the ffte code official, automatic sprinklers shall not be
required in the following rooms or areas where such ...ffexf unchanged]... because it is damp, of fire-
resistance-rated construction or contains electrical equipment.

1. Any room where the application of water, or flame and water, constitutes a serious life or fire hazard.
2. Any room or space where sprinklers are considered undesirable because of the nature of the

contents, when approved by the fire code official.
3. Generator and transformer rooms, under the direct control of a public utilitv, separated from the

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Building Code

**Option B
Secúion 903.2.11; change 903.2.11.3 and add 903.2.11.7, 903.2.11.8, and 903.2.11.9 as follows:

903.2.11.3 Buildings 55 35 feet or more in height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed
throughout buildings that have one or more stories with an eeeupant lead ef 30 errnere other than
oenthouses in compliance with Section 1510 of the /nfernafional Bulldrnq Code, located 55 35 feet (1€
764 10 668 mm) or more above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access, measured to the
finished floor.

Excep+ioã€=

903.2.11.7 Hish-Piled Combustible Storaqe. For anv buildino with a clear heiqht exceedinq 12 feet
(4572 mm), see Chapter 32 to determine if those provisions apoly.

903.2.11.8 Sprav Booths and Rooms. New and existinq sprav booths and spravino rooms shall be
orotected bv an aoproved automatic fire-extinquishinq svstem.

903.2.11.9 Buildinqs Over 6.000 sq. ft. An automatic sorinkler svstem shall be installed throuohout
all buildinqs with a buildinq area 6.000 sq. ft. or oreater and in all existinq buildinqs that are enlarqed to
be 6.000 sq. ft. or qreater. For the ourpose of this orovision. fire walls shall not define separate
buildinqs.

Exception: Ooen parkinq oarages in comoliance with Section 406.5 of the /nfernaflonal Buldno Code
where all of the followinq conditions applv:

a. The structure is freestandinq.
b. The structure does not contain anv mixed uses. accessory uses, storaqe rooms,

electrical rooms, elevators or spaces used or occupied for anvthinq other than motor
vehicle parkinq.

c. The structure does not exceed 3 stories.
d. An approved fire apparatus access road is orovided around the entire structure.

10



North Central ïexôs
Councll of Governments

remainder of the building by walls and flooriceiling or roof/ceiling assemblies having a fire-
resistance rating of not less than 2 hours.

5. Fire serviee aeeess Elevator machine rooms, and machinery spaces, and hoistways. other than
pits where such sprinklers would not necessitate shunt trip requirements under anv circumstances.

6. {Delete.}

(Reason: Gives clarification. Exception 4 deleted to provide protection where fire risks are poorty
addressed. Amendment 903.2 addresses Excepfion 5 above relative to the elimination of sprinkler
protection in these areas to avoid the shunt trip requirement.)

***Secflon 903.3.1 .2; change to read as follows:

903.3.1.2 NFPA 13R sprinkler syslems. Automatic sprinkler systems in Group R occupancies shall
be permitted to be installed throughout in accordance with NFPA 13R where the Group R occupancy
meets all of the following conditions:

1. Four stories or less above grade plane.
2. f he floor level of the highest story is 3O 35 feet (9{44 10668 mm) or less above the lowest level of

fire department vehicle access.
3. The floor level of the lowest story is 3O 35 feet (9{44 10668 mm) or less below the lowest level of

fire department vehicle access.
{No change to remainder of section.}

(Reason: The change to the 2021 IFC over-reached to limit 13R sysfems to 30 ft. high at topmost floor
level, which basically resulfs in limiting l3R sysfems to 3 story buildings in reality. This change to 35 ft.
would still allow 13R sysfems in 4 story apañment buildings, as has been allowed historically and as
intended by 13R's scope.)

***Secfron 903.3.1 .2.2; change to read as follows:

903.3.1.2.2 Gorridors and balconies in:th€-m€ens-€+€gress. Sprinkler protection shall be provided in
all corridors and for all balconies. i ing eenditiens appllq
{Delete the rest of this section.}

(Reason: Corridor protection is critical to the means of egress, and corridors are regularly utitized for
miscellaneous sforage, fixtures, artwork, food kiosks and beverage dlspensers, and furnishings. Balcony
protection is required due to lssues with fire exposure via soffit vents and the potential for significant
combustible loading.)

**Secfion 903.3.1 .2.3; delete section and replace as follows:

Section 903.3.l.2.3Attached Garaqes and Attics. Sprinkler protection is required in attached qaraqes,
and in the followinq attic spaces:

1. Attics that are used or intended for livino ourooses or storaoe shall be orotected bv an
automatic sprinkler svstem.

2. Where fuel-fired eouioment is installed in an unsorinklered attic. not fewer than one ouick-
resoonse intermediate temperature sprinkler shall be installed above the equipment.

3. Attic soaces of buildinqs that are two or more stories in heioht above qrade plane or above the
lowest level of fire department vehicle access.

4. Grouo R-4. Condition 2 occuoancv attics required bv ltem 1 or 3 to have sorinklers shall
complv with one of the followinq:

4.'l . Provide automatic sprinkler svstem protection.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Buildi ng Code

11



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

4.2. Provide a heat detection svstem throuqhout the attic that is arranqed to activate the
building fire alarm svstem.

4.3. Construct the attic usinq noncombustible materials.
4.4. Construct the attic usinq fire-retardant-treated wood complving with Section 2303.2 of

the lnternational Buildinq Code.
4.5. Fill the attic with noncombustible insulation.

(Reason: Attic protection is required due to rssues with fire exposure via soffit venfs, as well as firefighter
safety. Severaljurisdictions indicated experience with un-protected attic fires resulting in displacement of
all building occupants. NFPA 13 provides for applicable attic sprinkler protection requirements, as well as
exemptions to such, based on noncombustible construction, etc. Attached garages already require
sprinklers via NFPA 13R - this amendment just re-emphasizes the requirement.)

**Section 903.3.1 .3; change to read as follows:

903.3.1.3 NFPA 13D Sprinkler Systems. Automatic sprinkler sysfems installed in one- and two-family
dwellings; Group R-3; Group R-4, Condition 1; and townhouses shall be permitted to be installed throughout
in accordance with NFPA 'l 3D or in accordance with state law.

(Reason: To allow the use of the Plumbing secfion of the lnternational Residential Code (IRC) and
recognize current state stipulations in this regard.)

**Secfíon 903.3.1.4; add to read as follows

[F] 903.3.1.4 Freeze protection. Freeze protection svstems for automatic fire sprinkler svstems shall be in
accordance with the requirements of the applicable referenced NFPA standard and this section.

903.3.1.4.1 Attics. Onlv drv pipe, preaction, or listed antifreeze automatic fire sprinkler svstems
shall be allowed to protect attic spaces.

Exception: Wet-pipe fire sprinkler svstems shall be allowed to protect non-ventilated attic
spaces where:

1. The attic sprinklers are supplied by a seoarate floor control valve assembly to allow
ease of draininq the attic svstem without impairinq sprinklers throuqhout the rest
of the buildinq, and

2. Adequate heat shall be provided for freeze orotection as per the applicable
referenced NFPA standard, and

3. The attic space is a part of the building's thermal, or heat, envelope, such that
insulation is provided at the roof deck. rather than at the ceilino level.

903 .3.1.4.2 Heat trace/insulation. Heat ulation shall onlv be allowed where approved bv
the fire code official for small sections of large diameter water-filled pipe.

(Reason: ln the last few years, severe winters brought to light several rssues with current practices for
sprinklering attics, not the least of which was wet-pipe sprinklers in ventilated attics provided with space
heaters, etc. for freeze protection of such piping. This practice is not acceptable for the protection of water-
filled piping in a ventilated attic space as it does not provide a reliable means of maintaining the minimum
40 degrees required by NFPA, wasfes energy, and presents a potential ignition source to the attic space.
Listed antifreeze is specifically included because NFPA currently allows such even though there is no
currently listed antifreeze at the time of development of these amendments. The intent of this amendment
is to help reduce the large number of freeze breaks that have occurred in the past with water-filled wet-pipe
sprinkler sysfems in the future, most specifically in attic spaces./

**Secfion 903.3.5; add a second paragraph to read as follows:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Buildi ng Code

12



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

Water supplv as required for such svstems shall be provided in conformance with the supplv requirements
of the respective standards: however, every water-based fire protection system shall be desiqned with a

r. Reference Section 5O7.4 for

(Reason: To define uniform safety factor for the region.)

**Sectíon 903.4; add a second paragraph after the exceptions to read as follows:

Sprinkler and standoioe s)¡stem water-flow detectors shall be provided for each floor tap to the sprinkler
svstem and shall cause an alarm upon detection of water flow for more than 45 seconds. All control valves
in the sorinkler and standpioe svstems exceÞt for fire department hose connection valves shall be
electricallv supervised to initiate a suoervisorv siqnal at the central station upon tamperinq.

(Reason: To avoid significant wafer /osses. Consisfenf with amendment to IFC 905.9.)

**Secfion 903.4.2; add second paragraph to read as follows:

The alarm device required on the exterior of the building shall be a weatheroroof horn/strobe notification
apoliance with a minimum 75 candela strobe ratinq. installed as close as practicable to the fire department
connection.

(Reason: Fire department connections are not always located at the riser; this allows the fire department
fasfer access and ease of recognition of the FDC location, especially at night.)

**Section 905.2; change to read as follows:

905.2 lnstallation Standard. Standpipe systems shall be installed in accordance with this section and
NFPA 14. Manualdry standpipe systems shallbe supervised with a minimum of 10 psiq and a maximum
of 40 osiq air pressure with a hiqh/low alarm.

(Reason: To define manual dry standpipe superuision requirements. Helps ensure the integrity of the
standpipe sysfem via supervision, such that open hose valves will result in a supervisory low air alarm.)

***Secfion 905.3; add Section gï5.3.g and exception to read as follows:

905.3.9 Buildinqs Exceedinq 10.000 sq. ft. ln buildinqs exceedinq 10.000 square feet in area per storv
and where any portion of the buildinq's interior area is more than 200 feet (60960 mm) of travel, vertically
and horizontallv, from the nearest point of fire department vehicle access. Class I automatic wet or manual
wet standpipes shall be provided.

Exceptions:
1. Automatic drv. semi-automatic drv. and manual dry standpipes are allowed as provided for in

NFPA 14 where aoproved bv the fire code official.
2. R-2 occupancies of four stories or less in heiqht havinq no interior corridors.

(Reason: Allows for the rapid deployment of hose lines to the body of the fire in larger structures.)

**Secfion 905.4; change ltems 1, 3, and 5, and add ltem 7 to read as follows:

ln every required interierexit stairway, a hose connection shall be provided for each story above
and below grade plane. Hose connections shall be located at an intermediate landing between
stories, unless otherwise approved by the fire code official.

Exception: {No change.}

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

13



North Central ïexas
Council of Governments

2. {No change.}
3. ln every exit passageway, at the entrance from the exit passageway to other areas of a building.

Exception: Where floor areas adjacent to an exit passageway are reachable from an
in{e+ier exit stainvay hose connection by a {remainder of text unchanged}

4. {No change.}
5. Where the roof has a slope less than 4 units vertical in 12 units horizontal (33.3-percent slope), each

standpipe shall be provided with a two-wav a-hose connection sha+l-åe located to serve the roof or
at the highest landing of an interier exit stairway with stair access to the roof provided in accordance
with Section 1011.12.

6. {No change.}
7. When required bv this Chapter, standpipe connections shall be placed adiacent to all required exits

to the structure and at two hundrecl feet 1200') intervals alonq maior corridors thereafter. or as
othen¡vise aoproved bv the fire code official.

(Reason: ltem 1, 3, and 5 amendments to remove 'interior' will help to clarify that such connections are
required for all 'exit' stairways, to ensure firefighter capabilities are not diminished in these tall buildings,
simply because the stair is on the exterior of the building. ltem 5 reduces the amount of pressure required
to facilitate testing and provides backup protection for fire fighter safety. ltem 7 allows for the rapid
deployment of hose lines to the body of the fire.) 

.

"**Secfion 905.8; change to read as follows:

905.8 Dry standpipes. Dry standpipes shall not be installed.
Exception: Where subject to freezing and in accordance with NFPA '14. Additionallv, manual drv
standpipe systems shall be supervised with a minimum of 10 psiq and a maximum of 40 psiq air
pressure with a hiqh/low Supervisory alarm.

(Reason: To define manual dry standpipe supervision requiremenfs. Heþs ensure the integrity of the
standpipe sysfem via supervision, such that open hose valves will result in a supervisory low air alarm.
NFPA 14 requires supervisory air for such but does not provide pressure criteria for what that means. This
is a long-standing regional requirement.)

**Secfíon 905.9; add a second paragraph after the exceptions to read as follows:

Sprinkler and standpipe svstem water-flow detectors shall be provided for each floor tap to the sprinkler
svstem and shall cause an alarm upon detection of water flow for more than 45 seconds. All control valves
in the sprinkler and standpipe svstems except for fire department hose connection valves shall be
electrically supervised to initiate a supervisorLsiqnal at the central station upon tamperinq.

(Reason: To avoid significant wafer /osses. Consisfenf with amendment to IFC 903.4.)

***SecfÍan 906.1 t7 t: delete Exceotion #3 as follows:

3, ln sterage areas ef Greup S eeeupaneies where ferklift, pewered industrial truek er pswered

fiNed extinguishers' as speeified in NFPA-10' shall net be required where in aeeordanee with allef
+e+etlewin+

the vehiele using a meunting braeket appreved

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

14



North Central Texas
Counc¡l of Governments

ex+¡ng{+ish€+s=

(Reason: This provision of only having vehicle-mounted fire extinguishers is not at all consístent with
historical practice of requiring extinguishers throughout based on travel distance. Often times, the vehicle
is what has caused the incident and/or may be the source of the incident, so having the extinguisher vehicle-
mounted resulfs in greater potential injury of the user. Ihrs assume s the only occupants in the building are
on a vehicle, which again, significantly reduces access to fire extingurshers throughout the building to other
occupants. Future use of the building/tenancy may change further complicating the issue.)

**Secfion 907.1; add Section 907.1.4 to read as follows:

907.1.4 Desiqn Standards. Where a new fire alarm svstem is installed, the devices shall be addressable.
Fire alarm svstems utilizinq more than 20 smoke detectors shall have analoq initiatinq devices.

(Reason: Provides for the ability of descriptive identification of alarms and reduces need for panel
replacement in the future. Updated wording to match the language of the new requirement at 907.5.2.3.
Change of terminology allows for reference back to definitions of NFPA 72.)

**Secfion 907.2.1 ; change to read as follows:

907.2.1 Group A. A manual fire alarm system that activates the occupant notification system in accordance
with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group A occupancies where the havinq an occupant load due+€+he
assemgly-eeeupaney-e of 300 or more persons, or where the €+et+p,A occupant load is more than 100
persons above or below the lowest level of exit discharge. Group A occupancies not separated from one
another in accordance with Section 707.3.10 of the lnternational Building Code shall be considered as a
single occupancy for the purposes of applying this section. Portions of Group E occupancies occupied for
assembly purposes shall be provided with a fire alarm system as required for the Group E occupancy.

Exception: {No change.}

Activation of fire alarm notification appliances shall:
1. Cause illumination of the means of eqress with liqht of not less than 1 foot-candle (1'1 lux) at the

walkinq surface level, and
2. Stop any conflictinq or confusinq sounds and visual distractions.

(Reason:/ncreases the requirement to be conslsfenf with Group B requirement. Also addresses issue found
in Group A occupancies of reduced lighting levels and other AN equipment that distracts from fire alarm
notification devices or reduces ability of fire alarm system to notify occupants of the emergency condition.)

**Secfion 907.2.3; change to read as follows:

907.2.3 Group E. A manual fire alarm system that initiates the occupant notification signal utilizing an
emergency voice/alarm communication system meeting the requirements of Section 907.5.2.2 and installed
in accordance with Section 907.6 shall be installed in Group E educational occupancies. When automatic
sprinkler sysfems or smoke detectors are installed, such systems or detectors shall be connected to the
building fire alarm system. An approved smoke detection system shall be installed in Group E dav care
occupancies. Unless seoarated by a minimum of 100' open space, all buildinqs, whether portable buildinqs
or the main building. will be considered one buildinq for alarm occupant load consideration and
interconnection of alarm svstems.

Exceptions:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

15



North Central Texas
Counc¡l of Governments

1. {No change.}
l.l.Residential ln-Home dav care with not more than 12 children mav use interconnected

sinole station detectors in all habitable rooms . (For care of more than five children 2112 or
less vears of aqe, see Section 907.2.6.) {No change to remainder of exceptions.}

(Reason: To distinguish educational from day care occupancy minimum protection requirements. Further,
to define threshold at which portable buildings are considered a separate building for the purposes of alarm

consisfen with State law such

***Secúíon 907.2.10; change to read as follows:

907.2.10 Group S. A manual fire alarm system that activates the occupant notification system in
accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group S public- and self-storage occupancies th+ee

@forinteriorcorridorsandinteriorcommonareas.Visiblenotificationappliances
are not required within storage units.

Exception: {No change.}

(Reason: Because of the potential unknown fire load and hazards in self-storage type facilities, which could
include flammable liquids for instance, as well as other hazardous materials, prompt evacuation in the event
of fire alarm is needed; therefore, notification in the corridors/common areas is critical to all such

of

**Secfion 907.2.13, Exception 3; change to read as follows:

3. Ooen air portions of buildings with an occupancy in Group A-5 in accordance with Section 303.1 of the
lnternational Building Code: however. this exception does not apply to accessorLuses includinq but
not limited to sk}¡ boxes. restaurants, and similarly enclosed areas.

(Reason; To indicate that enclosed areas within open air seating type occupancies are not exempted from
automatic fire alarm

**Secfíon 907.4.2; add Section 907.4.2.7 to read as follows:

907.4.2.7 Tvpe. Manual alarm initiatinq devices shall be an approved double action tvpe.

to reduce false alarms

**Secfion 907.6.1; add Section 907.6.1.1 to read as follows:

907.6.1.1 Wirinq lnstallation. Allfire alarm svstems shall be installed in such a manner that a failure of
anv sinqle initiatinq device or sinqle open in an initiatinq circuit conductor will not interfere with the normal
operation of other such devices. All siqnalinq line circuits (SLC) shall be installed in such a wav that a sinqle
open will not interfere with the operation of anv addressable devices (Class A). Outqoinq and return SLC
conductors shall be installed in accordance with NFPA 72 requirements for Class A circuits and shall have
a minimum of four feet seoaration horizontal and one foot vertical between supplv and return circuit
conductors. The initiating device circuit (lDC) from a siqnalinq line circuit interface device mav be wired
Class B. provided the distance from the interface device to the initiatinq device is ten feet or less.

(Reason: To provide uníformity in system specifications and guidance to design engineers. lmproves
of fire alarm devices and s

**Secfion 907.6.3; delete all four Exceptions.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

16



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

Io asslsf tn the event for all fire alarm

*"Secfion 907.6.6; add sentence at end of paragraph to read as follows:

See 907.6.3 for the required information transmitted to the supervisinq station.

(Reason: Io asslsf responding personnel in locating the emergency event for all fire alarm systems. Ihis
was moved from 907.6.5.3 in the 2012 IFC and reworded to match new code language and secfions (legacy

(Reason: Deleted Previous code amendment Section 909.22, For removal because it is already in the code
rn Secflons 909.20. 909.20 909.20.6.1 909.20.6. and 909.20.6.3.

**Secfion 910.2; change read and change Exception 2 and 3 to read as follows:

910.2 Where required. Smoke and heat vents or a mechanical smoke removal system shall be installed
as required by Sections 910.2.1,910.2.2, and 910.3.2.

2. Only manual smoke and heat removal shall net be required in areas of buildings equipped with
early suppression fast-response (ESFR) sprinklers. Automatic smoke and heat removal is
prohibited.

3. Onlv manual smoke and heat removal shall net be required in areas of buildings equipped with
control mode special application sprinklers with a response time index of SO(m*S¡trz or less that are
listed to control a fire in stored commodities with 12 or fewer sprinklers. Automatic smoke and heat
removal is prohibited.

(Reason: Allows the fire department to control the smoke and heat during and after a fire event, while still
prohibiting such sysfems from being automatically activated, which is a potential detriment to the particular

indicated

**Secúlon 910.2.3; add to read as follows:

910.2.3 Group H. Buildinqs and portions thereof used as a Grouo H occupancv as follows:

1. ln occupancies classified as Group H-2 or H-3, any of which are more than 15,000 square feet
(1394 m2) in sinqle floor area.

Exception: Buildinqs of noncombustible construction containinq only noncombustible materials.

2. ln areas of buildinqs in Grouo H used for storinq Class 2. 3. and 4 liquid and solid oxidizers. Class 1

and unclassified detonable orqanic oeroxides, Class 3 and 4 unstable (reactive) materials, or Class
2 or 3 water-reactive materials as required for a hiqh-hazard commoditv classification.

Exception: Buildinqs of noncombustible construction containinq onlv noncombustible materials.

(Reason: Maintains a fire protection device utilized in such occupancies where it is sometimes necessa4y
to allow chemicals to burn out, rather than extinguisf,. Ihls rs based on legacy language establishing long-

historical

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

17



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

**Secúion 910.4.3.1 ; change to read as follows:

910.4.3.1 Makeup Air. Makeup air openings shall be provided within 6 feet (1829 mm) of the floor level.
Operation of makeup air openings shall be manual er automatic. The minimum gross area of makeup air
inlets shall be I square feet per 1,000 cubic feet per minute (0.74 m2 per 0.4719 m3/s) of smoke exhaust.

(Reason: Makeup air has been required to be automatic for several years now in this region when
mechanical smoke exhaust sysfems are proposed. This allows such systems fo be activated from the
smoke control panel by first responders without having to physically go around the exterior of the building
opening doors manually. Such requires a significant number of first responders on scene to conduct this
operation and significantly delays activation and/or capability of the smoke exhaust system.)

**Secfion 912.2; add Secfion 912.2.3 to read as follows:

912.2.3 Hvdrant Distance. An approved fire hvdrant shall be located within 100 feet of the fire deoartment
connection as the fire hose lays alonq an unobstructed path.

(Reason: To accommodate limited hose lengths, improve response times where the FDC is needed to
achieve fire control, and improve ease of locating a fire hydrant in those situations a/so. A/so, consisfenf
with NFPA 14 criteria

***Secfion 913.2.1; add Section 913.2.1.1 and exception to read as follows:

913.2.1.1 Fire Pump Room Access. When located on the qround levelat an exteriorwall. the fire oump
room shall be provided with an exterior fire department access door that is not less than 3 ft. in width and
6 ft. - 8 in. in heiqht, reqardless of anv interior doors that are provided. A kev box shall be orovided at this
door. as required bv IFC Section 506.1.

Exception: When it is necessarv to locate the fire pumÞ room on other levels or not at an exterior wall,
the corridor leadinq to the fire pump room access from the exterior of the buildinq shall be provided with
equivalent fire resistance as that required for the pump room. or as aporoved bv the flre code
offiaial Access kevs shall he nrnvid ed in the kcv box as rêôt I red hv IFC Sectinn 506 I

(Reason: This requirement allows fire fighters safer access to the fire pump room. The requirement allows
access without being required to enter the building and locate the fire pump room interior access door
during a fire event. The exception recognizes that this will not always be a feasible design scenario for
some buildings, and as such, provides an acceptable alternative to protect the pathway to the fire pump

***Secfion 1006.2.1 change exception 3 to read as follows;
Section 1006.2.1 Egress based on occupant load and common path of egress travel distance.

3. Unoccupied rooftop mechanical rooms and penthouses are not required to comply with the common path
of egress travel distance measurement.

(Reason: Add "rooftop" to Exception No. 3 to clarify that only such mechanical rooms located on the roof

**Section 1009.8 Two Way Communication; add the following Exception 7:

[Text Remains]

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

18



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

Exceptions:
7. Buildinqs regulated under State Law and built in accordance with State reqistered plans, includinq
variances or waivers qranted bv the State. shall be deemed to be in compliance with the requirements of
Section 1009 and Chapter 1 1.

(Reason: To accommodate buildings regulated under Texas State Law and to be consistent with
amendments in 11

**Secfion 1010.2.5 Bolt Locks; amend exceptions 3 and 4 as follows:

Exceptions:
3. Where a pair of doors serves an occupant load of less than 50 persons in a Group B, F, M or S occupancy.
(remainder unchanged)
4. Where a pair of doors serues a Group-1!, B, F, M or S occupancy (remainder unchanged)

(Reason.' lt is common in our region fo see the 2nd leaf locked, when that leaf is not part of the required
egress door clear width, such as in a typical Group M. Exception No. 4 was expanded to Group A due to it
being a similar situation for Group A restaurants.)

**Section 1020.2 Construction: add new exception 6 as follows:

6. ln unsorinklered qrouo B occupancies, corridor walls and ceilinqs need not be of fire-resistive
construction within a sinole tenant soace when the soace is equiooed with approved automatic smoke-
detection within the corridor. The actuation of anv detector must activate self-annunciatinq alarms audible
in all areas within the corridor. Smoke detectors must be connected to an aporoved automatic fire alarm
svstem where such system is provided.

(Reason: Similar concept was previously in UBC. This scenario occurs primarilv in existing. non-sprinktered
buildinas. which under current IBC would be reouired to have a fire resistance rated corridor. New exceotion
provides a cost-effective solution for sinole tenant space in lieu of the base IBC reauirement to retrofit a fire
sprinkler svstem throuqhout the building.)

**Section 1030.1.1.1 Spaces under grandstands and bleachers; delete this section.

(Reason : U ne nforceable.)

**Section 1101.1Scope; add exception to Section 1101.1 as follows:

Exceotion: Components of oroiects requlated by and reqistered with Architectural Barriers Divisíon of
Texas Department of Licensinq and Requlation shall be deemed to be in compliance with the requirements
of this chaoter.

(Reason: To accommodate buildings regulated under state law. Further clarified in 2018 to mean
components that are specifically addressed by TDLR shall be exempt.)

**"Secfíon 1809.5.1 Frost Protection at required exits; delete this section

frost at exit doors rs not needed in our climate zone

**"Section 2702.5; added to read as follows:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

19



North Central Texas
Councl¡ of Governments

Sectíon 2702.5 Desiqnated Gritical Operations Areas (DCOA): ln areas within a facilitv or site requirino
continuous operation for the purpose of public safetv, emerqency manaqement, national securitv or
business continuitv the oower svstems shall comolv with NFPA 70 Article 708

(Reason: ldentifying these areas of critical operations in the building code ensures designers are advised
of the requirements outlined in the National Electrical Code which defines specffrc Critical Operations Power
Sysfem (COP S) require me nts.)

"*Secúion 2901 .1 ; add a sentence to read as follows:

[P] 290f .f Scope. {existing text to remain} The provisions of this Chapter are meant to work in coordination
with the provisions of Chapter 4 of the lnternational Plumþinq Code. Should anv conflicts arise between the
two chapters, the Building Official shall determine which provision aoolies.

Gives official
,'', .,1.i'it. -t:'l 

j,'rlf ,1 
'11 i,.,rili ;¡ il

**Secúion 2902.1 ; add a second paragraph to read as follows:

ln otherthan E Occupancies. the minimum numberof fixtures in Table 2902.1 may be lowered. if requested
in writino, by the applicant statino reasons for a reduced number and approved by the Building Official.

To allow for to consider needs.

**Table 2902.1; add footnote g to read as follows:

g. Drinkino fountains are not reouired in M Occupancies with an occupant load of 100 or less. B
Occupancies with an occupant load of 25 or less. and for dininq and/or drinkinq establishments.

To allow for to consider

**Add Section 2902.1.4 to read as follows

2902.1.4 Additional fixtures for food preparation facilities. ln addition to the fixtures required in this
Chapter, all food service facilities shall be provided with additional fixtures set out in this section.

2902.1.4.1 Hand washing lavatory. At least one hand washing lavatory shall be provided for use by
employees that is accessible from food preparation, food dispensing and ware washing areas. Additional
hand washing lavatories may be required based on convenience of use by employees.

2902.1.4.2 Service sink. ln new or remodeled food service establishments, at least one service sink or one
floor sink shall be provided so that it is conveniently located for the cleaning of mops or similar wet floor
cleaning tool and for the disposal of mop water and similar liquid waste. The location of the service sink(s)
and/or mop sink(s) shall be approved by the <Jurisdiction's> health department.

(Reason: Coordinates Health law requirements with code language for consistent regional practice.)

**Section 3002.1 Hoistway Enclosure Protectíon required. Add exceptions as follows:

Exceptions:
1. Elevators completely located within atriums shall not reouire hoistwav enclosure protection.
2. Elevators in open or enclosed parkinq garages that serve onlv the parkinq qaraqe. shall not require

hoistway enclosure protection.

ne

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Buildi ng Code

20



Notth Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

(Reason: Provides specific Code recognition that elevators within atriums and within parking garages do
not require hoistway enclosure protection. Amendment needed since specific Code language does not
currently exist.)

**Section 3005.4 Machine rooms, control rooms, machinery spaces and control spaces; Delete
exceptions and add two new exceptions to as follows:

Exceptions:
1. Elevator machine rooms. control rooms, machinery soaces and control spaces comoletely
located within atriums shall not require enclosure protection.

2. Elevator machine rooms. control rooms, machinery spaces and control spaces in open or
enclosed parkinq qaraqes that serve onlv the parkinq qaraqe. shall not requíre enclosure protection.

(Reason: This amendment eliminates the Exceptions fo Secfion 3005.4 such that passlye enclosures for
these areas are to be provided and maintained. The fire rating of these enclosures is permitted to be
omitted by the above added exceptions where allowed by other provisions of the code such as in atriums
and parking structures. See companion change to eliminate fire sprinklers to eliminate the need for shunt
trip

3005.5.1.1 Automatic sprinkler system. The buildinq shall be equipped throuqhout with an automatic
sprinkler svstem in accordance with Section 903.3.'f .1. except as othen¡vise permitted bv Section
903.3.1.1.1 and as prohibited bv Section 3005.5.1.1.1.

3005.5.1.1.1 Prohibited locations. Automatic sprinklers shall not be installed in machine rooms. elevator
machinery spaces. control rooms. control spaces and elevator hoistways.

3005.5.1.1.2 Sprinkler svstem monitorinq. The sprinkler svstem shall have a sorinkler control valve
supervisory switch and water-flow initiatinq device provided for each floor that is monitored bv the
buildinq's fire alarm system.

3005.5.1.2 Water protection. An aooroved method to prevent water from infiltratinq into the hoistwav
enclosure from the ooeration of the automatic sprinkler svstem outside the elevator lobbv shall be
provided.

3005.5.1.3 Omission of Shunt trip. Means for elevator shutdown in accordance with Section 3005.5
shall not be installed.

(Reason: Firefiqhter and public safetv. This amendment eliminates the shunt trip requirement of the
lnternational Buildinq Code Section 3005.5 for the purpose of elevator passenqer and firefiqhter safetv.
The new section above is intended to be identicalto Sections 3007.2, 3007.3. and 3007.4 for Fire Service

**Section 3005.8; add Section 3005.8 as follows:

3005.8 Storaqe. Storaqe shall not be allowed within the elevator machine room, control room. machinery
soaces and or control spaces. Provide approved siqnaqe at each entrv to the above listed locations statinq:
"No Storaoe Allowed.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

21



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

(Reason: Reinforces the need to maintain space clean and free of combustibles. See companion change
to eliminate fire sprinklers therein, Section 3005.5.1.)

(Reason: 2018 IBC text does nof address hoistways that are greater than 75'-0" in height that are both
below grade and above grade but not located above the high-rise classification nor does the IBC address
hoistways wholly located above grade such as fhose that serve sky lobbies".)

**Section 3007.3 and Section 3008.3: Revise text by deleting "enclosed" as follows:

3007.3 Water Protection. Water from the operation of an automatic sprinkler system outside the
en€l€s€d lobby shall be prevent from infiltrating into the hoistway enclosure in accordance with an
approved method.

3008.3 Water Protection. Water from the operation of an automatic sprinkler system outside the
enelesedlobby shall be prevent from infiltrating into the hoistway enclosure in accordance with an
approved method.

(Reason: The lobbies for FSAE and or OEE elevators may be open (i.e., at ground level), or may not
require a lobby enclosure on those upper floors with secondary cab entry doors opening into a
nonrequired FSAE or OEE lobby. Regardless of whether or not the lobby is enclosed, the objective is to
preclude fire sprinkler water from entering into the hoistway serving FSAE and OEE elevators. The
deletion of "enclosed" clarifies the original intent of this provision and is consistent with ICC
interpretations.)

End

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Building Code

Option A
Section 3006.2, Hoistway opening protection required; lnsert new text as follows:

5. The building is a high rise and the elevator hoistway is more than 75 feet(22 860 mm) in height. The
height of the hoistway shall be measured from the lowest floor at or above qrade to the highest floors served
by the hoistway."

Option B
Section 3006.2, Hoistway opening protection required; Revise text as follows:

5. The building is a high rise and the elevator hoistway is more than 75-{eet-É33€6€-mm} 55 feet (16 764
mm) in height. The height of the hoistway shall be measured from the lowest floor at or above qrade to the
highest floors served by the hoistway."

22



North Central Texas
Counc¡l of GoveÏnments

Recommended Amendments to the 2021
International Existing Building Code

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 tnternationat Existing Buitding Code are
hereby amended as follows: Standard type is text from the IEBC. Underlined type iJtext inserted. tined.

double asterisk 1."¡ at tnffiidentifies an
amendment carried over from the 2018 edition of the code and a tripleãsteriék (**.) identifies a new or
revised amendment with the 2021 code.

**Secfíon 102.4; change to read as follows:

(Reason: To not inadvertently adopt other codes (i.e., Witdtand lJrban tnterface Code etc. .) by

IAI 102.4 Referenced codes and standards. The codes, when specifically adooted, and standards
referenced in this code shall be considered part of the requirements of tn¡s coOe to tne prescribed extent
of each such reference and as further regulated in Sections 102.4.1 and 102.4.2. {No change to rest of
section.)

***Secfion 110.2; delete number 11 as follows:

fesr+ire+

(Reason: Ihr.s has not been historicaily
implemented to modify C.O.'s, and is short

required on C.O.'s creating inconsistency and is not easity
sided in only identifying one fire protection sysfem. Fuñher, the

***Secfion 202; amend definition of Existing Buitding as follows:

Existing Building - A building, structure. or space with an approved final inspection issued under a code
gdgon wh¡ch is at leas
btlilding. stfrlcture or sqace that is underqoing a chanoe of occuparìcy or use@
@ eede; er ene fer whieh a legal building permit has been issued=

Existing Structure- A buildinq. structure, or space, with an aoproved final inspection issued under a code
edition which is at least 2 published code editions precedinq the
btlildinq. stlucture or space that is underooinq a chanoe of occupancv or u@
@ede; er enefer whieh a legal building perrnit has been issuedf

***Secfion 202; amend definition of Existíng Structure as follows:

To abuses in new construction and shett

**€ecfion 306. 1; add exceptions to read as follows:

Exceptions:
1. Components of proigçts requlated by and reqistered with Architectural Barriers Division of

Texas Department of,Licensing and Requlat¡on shall be deemed to bem
requirements of this chapter.

2. lf the cogt of the project is less than $50K. it must comply with ICC 4117.j. or it shall be
reviewed and inspected to the Texas Accessibilitv Standards bv a ReqisGreã Accesstbility
Specialist.

(Reason To coordinate with the IBC and State Law for .)
North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Existing Buitding Code

1



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

*"*Secfion 306.2; add exception to read as follows:

Exception: Proiects subject to the Texas Accessibility Standards as adopted bv the Texas
Department of Licensino and Requlation are exempt from this section. Proiects with a valuation of
less than $50.000.00 (which are subject to the Texas Accessibility Standards) may be accepted as
equivalent to this section where reviewed and inspected to the Texas Accessibilitv Standards bv a
Texas Department of Licensino and Requlation Reqistered Accessibility Specialist when a plan review
report and a compliant inspection report are provided to the buildinq code off¡cial.

To coordinate with the IBC and State Law for

***Secfion 306.5.1 ; add to read as follows:

306.5.1 Complete chanqe of occupancv. Where an entire buildinq underqoes a chanoe of
occuPancv. it shall comply with Section 305.4.1 and shall have all of the followinq accessible
features:

1. Not fewer than one accessible buildinq entrance.
2. Not fewer than one accessible route from an accessible buildinq entrance to primary
function areas.
3. Siqnaqe complvinq with Section 1111 of the /nfernaflonal Buldmq Code.
4. Accessible oarkino. where parkinq is beino provided.
5. Not fewer than one accessible passenqer loadino zone. where loadinq zones are provided.
6. Not fewer than one accessible route connectino accessible parkinq and accessible
passenqer loading
zones to an accessible entrance.
7. At least one accessible family or assisted use toilet room shall be provided in accordance
with Chapter l1 of the lnternational Buildinq Code.

Where it is fechnrcal/y rnfeaslble to complv with the new construction standards for anv of these
reOuirements for a chanqe of qroup or occuoancy. ltems 1 throuqh 6 shall conform to the
requirements to the maximum extent technically feasible.

Exception: The accessible features listed in ltems 1 throuoh 6 are not required for an
accessible route to Tvpe B units.

(Reason: Maintains legacy language from the
occupancy, and adds the required accessrb/e

2018 IEBC to identify accessibility criteria for changes of
toilet for disabled occupants, as per previous 2018 IEBC

**Secfion 401.3 Fiood Hazard Areas; delete this section.

**Secfíon 405.2.6 Flood Hazard Areas; delete this section.

ordinances be within the

**Secfion 406.1 ; add a code reference to read as follows:

406.1 Material. Existing electrical wiring and equipment undergoing repair shall be allowed to be repaired
or replaced with like material. in accordance with the requirements of NFpA 20.

**Secúion 502.3 Flood Hazard Areas; delete this section.

(Reason: Flood hazard ordinances be administered by other departments within the

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Existing Building Code

2



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

***Secfíon 503.2 Flood hazard areas; delete thís section.

Flood hazard ordinances may be administered by other departments within the

***Secfion 503.16; add exception to read as follows:

Exception: Compliance with the Texas Accessibilitv Standards is not considered equivalent
compliance for the purpose of enforcement of this code section.

(Reason: IAS does not address this criteria in their evaluation, and it is justifrably required for atterations in existing

**Secúron 504.1.2; change to read as follows:

504.1.2 Existing fire escapes. Existing fire escapes shall continue to be accepted as a component in the
means of egress in existing buildings only. Existino fire escapes shall be oermitted to be repaired or
replaced.

(Reason: To add clarity and help reduce confusion assocrafed with the amendment preventing new fire

**Secffon 504.1.3; delete this section :

504-1-3 New fire eseapes, New fire eseapes fer existing buildings shall be permitted enly where exterier
alleys, er-reads

(Reason: To generally require a higher level of egress protection and consistent with regional practice.)

*rSecúion 507.3 Flood Hazard Areas; delete this section.

**Secfíon 701.3 Flood Hazard Areas; delete this section

(Reason: Flood hazard ordinances may be administered by other departments within the

***Secfíon 702.4; add exception 2 to read as follows:

2. Operable windows with openinos that are provided with window fall prevention devices that
comply with ASTM F2090.

(Reason: Maintains legacy language of the 2018 IFC to identify fall prevention devices as acceptable

**Secfíon 702.7; add a code reference to read as follows:

702.7 Materials and methods.1\ll new work shall comply with the materials and methods requirements
in the lnternational Building Code, lnternational Energy Conseruation Code, lnternational Mechanical
Code, National Electrical Code. and lnternational Plumbing Code, as applicable, that specify material
standards, detail of installation and connection, joints, penetrations, and continuity of any element,
component, or system in the building.

(Reason: To provide a more complete list of potentially adopted codes./

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Existing Building Code

3



North Cenlral Texas
Councll of Governments

,ïiìlìäffii,¡l$1,r lli;f,#ffä"#**r*.ft.ffilIvtit:$;;t'ËT.$äitHitr.ìäå,F{*q..*,#ffiii
**Secfion 802.5.1; change to read as follows:

802.5.1 Mínimum requirement. Every portion of open-
sided walkinq surfaces, includinq mezzanines. equipment platforms. aisles. stairs, ramps. and landinos
that is more than 30 inches (762 mm) above the floor or grade below and is not provided with guards, or
those in which the existing guards are judged to be in danger of collapsing, shall be provided with
guards.

To be consistent with Code for and

**Secúion 803.1; add sentence to read as follows:

For the puroose of fire sprinkler protection and fire alarm requirements included in this section. the work
area shall be extended to include at least the entire tenant space or spaces bounded by walls caoable of
resistinq the passaqe of smoke containinq the subiect work area. and if the u/ork area includes a corridor.
hallwav, or other exit access. then such corridor, hallway. or other exit access shall be protected in its
entirety on that particular floor level.

(Reason: The intent is to avoid work area protection that would result in partíal sprinkler or fire alarm
protection. Partial sprinkler protection not delineated by walls would be a clear violation of NFPA 13 and
would not allow the sprinkler to perform or function as intended. Also, partial fire alarm coverage is a

**Secfion 803.2.6; change exception to read as follows:

Exception: Supervision is not required where the Fire Code does not require such for new
co nstru cti on. fer-the{ellewin€+

1, Undergreund gate valve with readway bexes,

4, Ðry and weþehemiealextinguishing systemr

e@

(Reason: The published exceptions are over-reaching and will result in inconsistencies among
and cause confusion for first as

**Secfíon 803.3; change section to read as follows:

803.3 Standpipes. Refer to Section 1 103.6 of the Fire Code for retroactive standpioe requirements.
{Delete rest of Section 803.3.}

(Reason: The Fire Code already requires standpipes in these buildings (greater than 50 ft.) retroactively
in Section 1 103.6. This new secfion would negate/lessen fhose retroactive provisions already contained
in the Fíre

**Section 804.2; delete Exception #1 as follows:

Exceptions: 4- Where the werk area and the means ef egress serving it eemplies with NFP¡\101,
4 [Remain unchanged]

(Reason: NFPA 101 is not a commonly adopted code in the region and enforcement would be
problematic, especially due to contradictions with the requirements of the IBC.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Existing Building Code

4



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Governments

**Secfion 804.4.1.2; change to read as follows:

804.4.1.2FireEscapesrequired. ForotherthanGroupl-2,wheremorethanoneexitisrequired,an
existing@ireescapecomplyingwithsection805.3.1.2.1shallbeacceptedas
providing one of the required means of egress.

(Reason : Higher level of b not allowing new fire and consistent with

**Secúron 804.4.1 .2.1; change to read as follows

804.4.1.2.1Fire Escape access and details - ...

1. [Remain unchanged]
2. Access to a neu¡fire escape shall be through a door...

g+a¿e-levet=
4. [Remain unchanged]
5. ln all buildings of Group E occupancy up to and including the l2th grade, buildings of Group I

occupancy, Ìeeming-boarclng_houses, and childcare centers, ladders of any type are
prohibited on fire escapes used as a required means of egress.

(Reason: Higher level of safety by not allowing new fire escapes. Consistency with language and defined
term in IBC.)

**Section anguage to read as follows:

804.6.2 Transoms. ln all buildings of Group B. E,l-1,l-2, R-1 and R-2 occupancies, ....[Remainder
unchangedl

(Reason: Transom windows were historically a common practice in school buildings and each jurisdiction
should evaluate the on their stakeholders and their with to this

**Secfíon 904.1; add sentence to read as follows:

Forthe ourpose of fire sprinklerprotection and fire alarm requirements included in this section, the work
area shall be extended to include at least the entire tenant space or spaces bounded bv walls containinq
the subject work area. and if the work area includes a corridor, hallway. or other exit access. then such
corridor. hallway, or other exit access shall be protected in its entirety on that particular floor level.

(Reason: The intent is to avoid work area protection that would result in partial sprinkler or fire alarm
protection. Partial sprinkler protection not delineated by walls would be a clear violation of NFPA 13 and
the Fire Code and would not allow the sprinkler system to perform or function as intended. Also, partial
fire alarm is a clear violation of the Fire NFPA 7 and ADA.

*€ecúron 904.1.1; change to read as follows:

904.1.1 High-rise buildings. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided in work areas fwhere{he
high-rise buildings. has a suffieient munieipal water supply fer the design and installatien ef an autematie
@.

(Reason.' Level 3 alterations are affecting more than 50% of the existing high+ise building, and as such,
sprinkler protection is more than justifiable, even when fire pumps, etc., are necessary, lt is noted that
the work area method is one of three different methods available to the designer/owner in the IEBC.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Existing Building Code

5



North Central Texas

***Secfion 1011.2.1: change to read as follows:

1011.2.1 Fire sprinkler system. Where a change in occupancy classification occurs or where there is a
change of occupancy within a space where there is a different fire protection system threshold requirement
in Chapter 9 of the lnternational Building Code that requires an automatic fire sprinkler system to be
provided based on the new occupancy in accordance with Chapter 9 of the tnternationat Buitding Code. The
installation of the automatic sprinkler system shall be required within the area of the change of occupancy
and areas of the building not separated horizontally and vertically from the change of occupancy by one of
the following:

1, Nenrated permanent partitien and herizental assemblies,
Z=--+¡re+a+*ien
S--€m€ke-paditien-
4, Smeke barrier,
5. Fire barrier, as required bv Section 707 of the lBC.
6. Fire wall. as reouired by Section 706 of the lBC.

Excentions: [Remain unchanoed,l

(Reason: Maintains legacy language requiring at teast fire barrier separation between a newly sprinklered
more hazardous 'change of occupancy'from non-sprinklered existing occupancies, as is required for fire
area separation by the IBC.)

***Secfion 1102.2.1; add to read as follows:

1,!02.?.1 Fire Separations., .Where fire separations are utilized to allow additions without exceedino the
qllowable area provisions of Chapter 5 of the IBC for either the existinqm
{ecre,,ased çle,ar space where the two buildinqs adioin shall be accounted for in such calculation relative to
the allowable frontage increase.

(Reason: Ihr's issue of evaluating allowable area
issue. Ihl's amendment provides clarification but

for additions is commonly miscalculated due to the above
is not more stringent than what is currently required by the

Code as to allowable area

1103.3 Flood Hazard Areas; section.

Flood hazard ordinances be administered b other within the

**Secfíon 1201.4 Flood Hazard Areas; delete this section.

Flood hazard ordinances be administered other within the

*lSecúíon 1301.3.2; change to read as follows:

1301.3.2 Compliance with other codes. Buildings that are evaluated in accordance with this section
shall comply with the lnternational Fire Code. and lnternat¡enal P

(Reason: NCTCOG does not currently recommend, nor review the \PMC for recommended amendments at
ff,,s

**Secfion 1301.3.3 Compliance with Flood Hazard Provisions; delete this section.

(Reason: Flood hazard ordinances may be administered by other departments within the city.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Existing Building Code

b



Noilh Central Texas
Councll of Governments

**Secfion 1/t02.6 Flood Hazard Areas; delete this section.

Flood hazard ordinances be administered other within the

***Secúion 1509; delete Secúíon 1509.1 through 1509.5 and add Secfion 1509.1 to read as follows:

1509.1 When,required. An aoproved water supplv for fire protection. either temporarv or permanent, shall
be made available as soon as combustible material arrives on the site. The water supplv desiqn and tfie
timino of the water suoplv installation relative to buildinq construction shall complv with the adopted Fire
Code.

(Reason: Maintains legacy language for the water suppty and ensures adequate water suppty as required
by the Fire Code for construction that is already well-estabtished. The changes in the pubtished 2021 \EBC

END

North Central Texas Councíl of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Existing Building Code

7



Nofth CentralTexas
Councll of Govemments

Recommended Amendments to the
2021 lnternat¡onal Fire Code

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 lnternational Fire Code (lFC) are hereby
amended as follows: Standard type is text from the lFC. Underlined tyoe is text inserted. Uned-$rcugh
@Adoubleasterisk(*-)atthebeginningofasectionidentifiesanamendment
carried over from the 2018 edition of the code and a triple asterisk (***) identifies a new or revised
amendment with the 2021 code.

Note: Historically, the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) has limited Chapter 1

amendments in order to allow each city to insert their local policies and procedures. We now have
suggested certain items to be brought to the attention of cities considering adoption of the code that may
be of concern to severaljurisdictions. lt is still intended to be discretionary to each city to determine
which Chapter I amendments to include. Note that Appendices must be specifically adopted by
Ordinance, and that Aooendices B, D. and L are currentlv recommended for adootion via these
Amendments. As per Page vii of the 2021 IFC under 'Adoption', note that several sections of this code
require jurisdictional specificity as to dollar amounts, geographic limits, etc. and are not addressed in
these amendments.

**Secfíon 102.1; change #3 to read as follows:

3. Existing structures, facilities, and conditions when required in Chapter 11 or in specific sections of
this code.

(Reason: To clarify that there are other prow'sions in the fire code applicable to existing buildings that are
not located in 11 but not limited to Section 505 Premises ldentification

*Secfíon 105.3.3; change to read as follows:

105.3.3 Occupancy Prohibited before Approval. The building or structure shall not be occupied prior to
the fire code official issuing a permit when required and conducting associated inspections indicating the
applicable provisions of this code have been met.

(Reason: For clarity to allow for better understanding in areas not requiring such permits, such as
areas of counties. This amendment be struck

*€ecfion 105.6.25; add to read as follows:

105.6.25 Electronic access control svstems. Construction permits are required to install or modifu an
electronic access control svstem. as specified in Chapter 10. A seoarate construction permit is required
for to install or modifu a fire alarm svstem thaf mav be connected to the access control svstem

Explanation of Options A and B:
Please note that as there is a wide range in firefighting philosophies/capabilities of cities across the
region, OPTIONS "A" and "B" are provided in the Fire and Buildíng Code amendments. Jurisdictions
should choose one of these based on their fire-fighting philosophies/capabilities when adopting code
amendments.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

1



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

reouire a oermit.

(Reason: Adds construction permit requirements for electronic access control sysfems affecting access
and/or egress to ensure proper design and installation of such sysfems. These changes reflect local

of in this

***Secfíon 107.3; delete this section in its entirety

107-3 Permit valuatiens- The applieant fer a permit shall previde an estimated permit value at the time
ef applieatien, Permit valuatiens shall inelude the tetal-value ef werk, ineluding materials and laber, fer
whieh the permit is being issued; sueh as eleetrieal; gas; meehanieal, plurnbing equipment and permanent

(Different jurisdictions establish permit fee requirements in different ways, and the majority in this region
do not utilize this methodology for establishing Fire Code-required permit fees, as well as have already
established and fee

**Secfion 202; amend and add definitions to read as follows:

** [Bl AMBULATORY CARE FACILITY. Buildings or portions thereof used to provide medical, surgical,
psychiatric, nursing, or similar care on a less than 24-hour basis to persons who are rendered incapable
of self-preservation by the services provided or staff has accepted responsibility for care recipients
already incapable. This grouo may include but not be limited to the followinq:

- Dialysis centers
- Procedures involvinq sedation
-Sedation dentistry
- Surqery centers
- Colonic centers
- Psvchiatric centers

(Reason: to clarify the range of uses included in the definition)

** 
[Bl ATRIUM. An opening connecting h*e three or more stories... {remaining text unchanged}

(Reason: Accepted practice in the region based on legacy codes. IBC Section 1009 permits unenclosed
two story stairways under certain circumstances.)

.* [Bl DEFEND lN PLACE. A method of emerqencv response that enqaqes buildinq components and
trained staff to provide occupant safety durinq an emerqencv. Emerqencv resoonse involves remaininq in
place. relocatinq within the buildinq. or both. without evacuatinq the buildinq.

(Reason; Added from lnternational Building Code (IBC) definitions for consrstency in interpretation of the
subject requirements pertaining to such occupancies.)

**FIRE WATCH. A temporary measure intended to ensure continuous and systematic surveillance of a
building or portion thereof by one or more qualified individuals or sfandby personnel when required by the
fire code official. for the purposes of identifying and controlling fire hazards, detecting early signs of
unwanted fire, raising an alarm of fire and notifying the fire department.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

2 Approved July 2021

2021 lnlernational Fire Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

(Reason: Clearly defines options to the fire department for providing a fire watch.)

**FIREWORKS. Any composition or device for the purpose of producing a visible or an audible effect for
entertainment purposes by combustion, deflagration, eç detonation, and/or activated bv iqnition with a
match or other heat producinq device that meets the definition of 1.3G fireworks or 1.4G fireworks.
{Remainder of text unchanged}...

(Reason: lncreased safety from fíreworks related injuries.)

(Reason: To provide protection for worst-case scenario in flexible or unknown situations.)

(Reason: Allows for additional construction safety features to be provided, based on firefighting response
capabilities.)

**REPAIR GARAGE. A building, structure or portion thereof used for servicing or repairing motor
vehicles. This occupancy shall also include garages involved in minor reoair, modification and servicing of
motor vehicles for items such as lube chanqes. inspections. windshield repair or reolacement. shocks.
minor oart replacement, and other such minor repairs.

(Reason: To further clarify types of service work allowed in a repair garage, as well as to correspond with
definition in the IBC.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

3 Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code

HIGH-PILED COMBUST,BLE STORAGE: add a second paragraph to read as follows:

Anv buildinq classified as a qroup S Occupancy or Speculative Buildinq exceedinq 12.000 sq. ft. that
has a clear heiqht in excess of 14 feet. makinq it possible to be used for storaqe in excess of 12 feet.
shall be considered to be hioh-oiled storaqe. When a specific product cannot be identified
(speculative warehouse), a fire protection system and life safety features shall be installed as for
Class lV commodities, to the maximum pile heiqht.

**Option A

HIGH-PILED COMBUSTIBLE STORAGE: add a second paragraph to read as follows:

Any buildinq classified as a qrouo S Occupancy or Speculative Buildinq exceedinq 6,000 sq. ft. that
has a clear heiqht in excess of 14 feet. makino it possible to be used for storaqe in excess of 12 feet,
shall be considered to be hiqh-oiled storaqe. When a specific oroduct cannot be identified
(soeculative warehouse). a fire protection system and life safetv features shall be installed as for

**Option B

**Option A

HIGH.RISE BUILDING. No Cha ut

HIGH-RISE BUILDING. A building with an occupied floor located more than 75 55 feet (2æ 16
764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.

*"Option B



Nolth Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

**SELF-SERVICE STORAGE FACILITY. Real prooertv desiqned and used for the puroose of rentinq or
leasinq individual storaoe spaces to customers for the ouroose of storinq and removino personal propertv
on a self-service basis.

(Reason: To provide a definition that does not exist in the code.)

**STANDBY PERSONNEL. Qualified fire service personnel. approved bv the Fire Chief. When utilized.
the number reouired shall be as directed by the Fire Chief. Charoes for utilization shall be as normallv
calculated bv the iurisdiction.

(Reason: To provide a definition that does not exist in the code for fire watch accommodations as
required by the jurisdiction.)

**UPGRADED OR REPLACED FIRE ALARM SYSTEM. A fire alarm svstem that is uporaded or
reolaced includes. but is not limited to the followinq:

. Replacinq one sinqle board or fire alarm control unit component with a newer model

. lnstallino a new fire alarm control unit in addition to or in place of an existinq one. Conversion from a horn svstem to an emeroencv voice/alarm communication svstem

. Conversion from a conventional svstem to one that utilizes addressable or analoq devices
The followino are not considered an uporade or replacement:

r Firmware uodates
. Software updates
. Reolacino boards of the same model with chios utilizing the same or newer firmware

(Reason: Ihis is referenced in several places, but the wording of "upgraded or replaced" is somewhat
ambiguous and open to interpretation. Defining it here allows for consistent application across the

**Secúíon 307.1.1; change to read as follows:

307.1.1 Prohibited Open Burning. Open burning €he{låe+r€hibited that is offensive or obiectionable
because of smoke emissions or when atmospheric conditions or local circumstances make such fires
hazardous shall be prohibited.

Exception: {No change.}

(Reason: To further protect adjacent property owners/occupants from open burning and/or smoke
emissions from

**Secfion 307.2; change to read as follows:

307.2 Permit Required. A permit shall be obtained from the fire code officiatin accordance with Section
105.6 prior to kindling a fire for recognized silvicultural or range or wildlife management practices,
prevention or control of disease or pests, or open burninq-+Senfire. Application for such approval shall
only be presented by and permits issued to the owner of the land upon which the fire is to be kindled.

Examples of state or local law. or requlations referenced elsewhere in this section mav include but not be
limited to the following:

1. Texas Commission on Environmental Qualitv (TCEQ) quidelines and/or restrictions.
2. State, Countv. or Local temporary or oermanent bans on open burnino.
3. Localwritten policies as established by the /?7e code orTrcr'al.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

4 Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

(Reason: Amendments to 307.2, 307.4, 307.4.3, and 307.5 better explain current requirements and
that have localestablished that best fit their

**Secfion 307,3; change to read as follows:

307.3 Extinguishment Authority.
required perrnit fer epen burning has net been ebtained' the fire eede effieial i+autherized te erder the
extinguishment ef the epen burning eperatien, The fire code official is authorized to order the
extinouishment bv the oermit holder. another person responsible or the fire department of open burning
that creates or adds to a hazardous or obiectionable situation.

(Reason: Provides direction as fo responsible parties relative to extinguishment of the subject open

***Secfion 307.4 and 307.4.1; change to read as follows;

307.4 Location. The location for open burning shall not be less than 5O 300 feet (15249 91 440 mm)
from any structure, and provisions shall be made to prevent the fire from spreading to within 5O 300 feet
(15249 91 440 mm) of any structure.

Exceptions: {No change.}

307.4.1 Bonfires. A bonfire shall not be conducted within 50 feet (15 240 mm), or qreater
distance as determined bv the fire code official, of a structure or combustible material, unless the
fire is contained in a barbecue pit. Conditions that could cause a fire to spread within the required
setback SO+ee+{+S+¿O-mm) of a structure shall be eliminated prior to ignition.

(Reason; To increase the separation distance thereby increasing the safety to adjacent properties, as per
applicable TCEQ rules and regulations regarding outdoor burning. Bonfires were added to this
requirement to allow the AHJ the ability to match the increased setback utilized for open burning as
necessary. Size of bonfire will help to determine needed setback, fire equipment and apparatus as per

*"Secfion 307.4.3, Exceptions; add Exception #2 to read as follows:

Exceptions:
1. Portable outdoor fireplaces used at one- and two-family dwellings.
!. Where buildinqs, balconies and decks are orotected bv an approved automatic sprinkler

svstem.

To reflect similar allowances for in these same

**Secfion 307.4.4 and 307.4.5; change to read as follows:

307.4.4 Permanent Outdoor Fireoit. Permanently installed outdoor firepits for recreational fire ourooses
shall not be installed within 10 feet of a structure or combustible material.

Exception: Permanentlv installed outdoor fireplaces constructed in accordance with the
lnternational Residential Code or lnternational Buildinq Code.

307.4.5 Trench Burns. Trench burns shall be conducted in air curtain trenches and in accordance with
Section 307.2.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

5 Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Fire Code



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Govemments

(Reason: To provide a greater level of safety for this potentially hazardous fire exposure condition.
Decrease in separation distance allowed for outdoor firepits due to permanent nature of construction

substantial

**Secfion 307.5; change to read as follows:

307.5 Attendance. Open burning, trench burns, bonfires, recreationalflres, and use of portable outdoor
fireplaces shall be constantly attended until the... {Remainder of section unchanged}

Adds attendance for trench burns based on amendment for

**Secfíon 308.1.4; change to read as follows:

308.1.4open.flamecookingDevices.@pen-flamecookingdevices.
charcoal qrills and other similar devices used for cookinq shall not be @ on
combustible balconies¡leclg or within 10 feet (3048 mm) of combustible construction.

Exceptions:
l. One- and two-family dwellings where LP-qas containers are limited to a water capacitv not

qreater than 50 pounds (22.68 kq) lnominal 20 pound (9.08 ko) LP-qas capacitvl with an
aqqreqate LP-oas capacitv not to exceed 100 oounds (5 containers). All LP-gas containers shall
be stored outside, as per Chapter 61.

2. Where buildings, balconies and decks are protected by an approved automatic sprinkler sysfem,
and LP-qas containers are limited to a water capacitv not qreater than 50 pounds (22.68 ko)
lnominal 20 oound (9.08 kq) LP-qas caoacitvl. with an aqqreoate LP-qas capacity not to exceed
40 lbs. (2 containers). All LP-gas containers shall be stored outside, as per Chapter 61.

3. LP-gas cooking devices having LP-gas container with a water capacity not greater than 2-112
pounds [nominal 1 pound (0.454 kg)LP-gas capacity].

(Reason: Decrease fire risk in multi-family dwellings and minimizes ignition sources and clarify allowable
limits for 1 & 2 family dwellings, and allow an expansion for sprinklered multi-family uses. Ihr's
amendment adds clarification and defines the container size allowed for

**Secfion 308.1.6.2, Exception #3; change to read as follows

3. Torches or flame-producing devices in accordance with Section 3084 308.1.3.

Sectlon identified in code is

**Secfion 308.1.6.3; change to read as follows:

308.1.6.3 Sky Lanterns. A person shall not release or cause to be released an untethered unmanned
free-floatinq device containinq an open flame or other heat source. such as but not limited to a sky
lantern.

(Reason: Eliminates the potential fire hazard presented by utilization of such deyrces and the potential
accidental release of such

**Secfíon 311.5; change to read as follows:

311.5 Placards. Any The fi're code offrcra/ is authorized to require markinq of anv vacant or abandoned
buildings or structures determined to be unsafe pursuant to Section 114 of this code relating to structural

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

6 Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

or interior hazards, shall+€-m€rked as required by Section 31 1.5.1 through 31 1.5.5

(Reason: There may be situations where placarding is not desired or necessary; also clarifies intent that
it is not the fire code official's to the

**Secfion 403.4; change to read as follows:

403.4 Group E Occupancies. An approved fire safety and evacuation plan in accordance with Section
404 shall be prepared and maintained for Group E occupancies and for buildings containing both a Group
E occupancy and an atrium. A diagram depictinq two evacuation routes shall be oosted in a conspicuous
location in each classroom. Group E occupancies shall also comply with Sections 403.4.1 through
403.4.3.

(Reason: The diagrams are intended fo assisf with egress in such occupancies - specifically, the primary
teacher is not always present fo assrsf children with egress. Also, such will help reinforce evacuation drill
reouirements.)

**Secúion 404.2.2; add Number 4.10. to read as follows:

4.10. Fire extinquishinq system controls.

(Reason: The committee believed this information could be of great help to such plans to facilitate
valves to minimize water for

***Secúíon 405.5; change to read as follows:

405.5 Time. The fire code official mav require an evacuation drill at anv time. Drills shall be held at
unexpected times and under varying conditions to simulate the unusual conditions that occur in case of
fire.

Exceptions:
1. {No change.}
2. {No change.}
3. Notification of teachers/staff havinq supervision of liqht- or sound-sensitive

students/occupants. such as those on the autism soectrum. for the orotection of
those students/occupants, shall be allowed prior to conductinq a drill.

(Reason: This change clarifies who may require a fire or evacuation drill, and also allows for
consideration/protection of students/occupants who may be severely negatively impacted by the nature of
a fire alarm notification a drill

**Secfíon 501.4; change to read as follows:

501.4 Timing of Installation. When fire apparatus access roads or a water supply for fire protection is
required to be installed for anv structure or develooment, thev shall be installed, tested, and aoproved
prior to the time of which construction has proqressed bevond completion of the foundation of anv
structure. ,

si
vehieles in aeeerdanee with Seetien 505J,

(Reason: Reflects current practice in the region relative to ensuring fire department and EMS access
during construction, which can be a time of increased frequency for emergency incidents.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

7 Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

**Secfíon 503.1 .1 ; add sentence to read as îollows:

Except for one- or two-familv dwellinqs, the path of measurement shall be alonq a minimum of a 10 feet
(3048 mm) wide unobstructed pathway around the external walls of the structure.

(Reason.' Recognizes that the hose lay provision can only be measured along a pathway that is wide
for fire

**Secfion 503.2.1; change to read as follows:

503.2.1 Dimensions. Fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less than 2O
24 feet (6€96-mm 7315 mm), exclusive of shoulders, except for approved security gates in accordance
with Section 503.6, and an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13 feeL6 inehes (4115 mm)
14feet(4267 mml.

Exception: Vertical clearance may be reduced; provided such reduction does not impair access by
fire apparatus and approved sions are installed and maintained indicatinq the established vertical
clearance when apDroved.

(Reason: Amendments to 503.2.1 and 503.2.2 recognize that the equipment now used in firefighting is
increasing in size. The code already recognizes that larger dimensions may be required under Section
503.2.2. The amendments are to standardize the dimensions for this area. With the inqease in fire

stze this will allow for the of two fire a fire or EMS

**Secfion 503.2.2; change to read as follows:

503.2.2 Authority. The fire code officialshall have the authority to require e++erpn+fme¿ifieat¡ens-to+ne
r€S{*ireC an increase in the minimum access widths and vertical clearances where they are inadequate for
fire or rescue operations or where necessary to meet the public safety objectives of the jurisdiction.

(Reason: Amendments to 503.2.1 and 503.2.2 recognize that the equipment now used in firefighting is
increasing in size. The code already recognizes that larger dimensions may be required under Section
503.2.2. The amendments are to standardize the dimensions for this area. With the increase in fire

this will allow for the of two fire a fire or EMS

***Secúron 503.2.3; change Secfion 503.2.3 to read as follows:

503.2.3 Surface. Fire apparatus access roads shall be designed and maintained to support imposed
loads of 85.000 Lbs. for fire apparatus and shall be surfaced so as to provide all-weather driving
capabilities.

(Reason: To address the current size of fire trucks in use - figure derived from DOT requirements for
waiver of vehicle exceeding such weight and from current maximum weights of fire trucks being

in North

**Secfion 503.3; change to read as follows:

503.3 Marking.
markings that inelude the werds NO PARKING FIRE tANE Stripinq. siqns. or other markinos, when
aooroved bv the fire code official. shall be provided for fire apparatus access roads to identify such roads
or prohibit the obstruction thereof. The means by whieh fire lanes are designated Stripinq, siqns and

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

8 Approved July 2021

2021 lnlernational Fire Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

other markinqs shall be maintained in a clean and legible condition at all times and be replaced or
repaired when necessary to provide adequate visibility.

(1) Stripinq - Fire apparatus access roads shall be continuouslv marked by painted lines of red traffic
paint six inches (6") ín width to show the boundaries of the lane. The words "NO PARKING FIRE
LANE" or "FIRE LANE NO PARKING" shall apoear in four inch (4") white letters at 25 feet intervals on
the red border markinqs alono both sides of the fire lanes. Where a curb is available. the stripinq
shall be on the vertical face of the curb.

L2) Siqns - Siqns shall read "NO PARKING FIRE LANE" or "FIRE LANE NO PARKING" and shall be
12" wide and 18" hioh. Sions shall be oainted on a white backqround with letters and borders in red,
usinq not less than 2" lettering. Signs shall be permanentlv affixed to a stationarv post and the
bottom of the siqn shall be six feet. six inches (6'6") above finished qrade. Siqns shall be spaced not
more than fifty feet (50') apart alonq both sides of the fire lane. Siqns may be installed on permanent
buildings or walls or as approved by the Fire Chief.

Estab/rshes a standard method of and reflects

**Secfíon 503.4; change to read as follows:

503.4 Obstruction of Fire Apparatus Access Roads. Fire apparatus access roads shall not be
obstructed in any manner, including the parking of vehicles. The minimum widths and clearances
established in Section 503.2.1 and 503.2.2 and any area marked as a fire lane as described in Section
503.3 shall be maintained at all times.

(Reason: As originally worded, the section implied that vehicles could be parked in the marked fire lane
and not be in violation if the minimum width is still maintained. Current accepted enforcement practice is
to the entire marked fire lane to be maintained clear and

**Secfion 505.1; change to read as follows:

505.1 Address ldentification. New and existing buildings shall be provided with approved address
identification. The address identification shall be legible and placed in a position that is visible from the
street or road fronting the property. Address identification characters shall contrast with their background.
Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters. Numbers shall not be spelled out.
Each character shall be not less than ¿¡nenes{+g¿-mm) 6 inches (152.4 mm) high with a minimum stroke
width of 112 inch (12.7 mm). Where required by the fire code official, address numbers shall be provided
in additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response. Where access is by means of a private
road. buildinqs do not immediately front a street, and/or the building cannot be viewed from the public
way, a monument, pole or other sign with aooroved 6 inch (152.4 mm) heiqht buildinq numerals or
addresses and 4 inch (101.6 mm) heiqht suite/aoartment numerals of a color contrastinq with the
backqround of the buildinq or other aoproved means shall be used to identify the structure. Numerals or
addresses shall be oosted on a minimum 20 inch (508 mm) bv 30 inch (762 mm) backqround on border.
Address identification shall be maintained.

Exception: R-3 Sinqle Family occupancies shall have approved numerals of a minimum 3 %
inches (88.9 mm) in heiqht and a color contrastinq with the background clearly visible and legible
from the street fronting the oroperty and rear alleyway where such alleyway exists.

(Reason: To increase the minimum addressing requirements for commercial properties and establish a
minimum for single-family residential properties Such improves legibility of these signs which are critical
to emergency response in a more timely manner.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

9 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

**Secfion 507.4; change to read as follows

507.4 Water Supply Test Date and lnformation The water suoolv test used for hvdraulic calculation of
fire protection svstems shall be conducted in accordance with NFPA 291 "Recommended Practice for Fire
Flow Testinq and Marking of Hvdrants" and within one vear of sprinkler olan submittal. The fire code
official shall be notified prior to the water supply test. Water supply tests shall be witnessed by lhe fire
code official, as required er appreved deeumentatien ef the test shall be previded te the füe eede effieral
p¡erleJmal appreval ef the water supply system. The exact location of the static/residual hvdrant and the
flow hvdrant shall be inclicatecl on the desion nos. All fire orotection olan submittals shall be
accompanied bv a hard copv of the waterflow test report. or as approved bv the f7e code ofiûcral. The
reoort must indicate the dominant water tank level the time of the test and the maximum and minimum
operatinq levels of the tank, as well, or identifv applicable water supolv fluctuation. The licensed
contractor must then desiqn the fire protection system based on this fluctuation information. as oer the
applicable referenced NFPA standard. Reference Section 903.3.5 for additional desiqn requirements.

(Reason: Clarifies intent of the test to ensure contractor accounts for water supply fluctuations.)

**Secfion 507.5.4; change to read as follows:

507.5.4 Obstruction. Unobstructed access to fire hydrants shall be maintained at all times. Posts,
fences. vehicles. orowth, trash, storaqe and other materials or objects shall not be placed or kept near fire
hvdrants, fire department inlet connections or fire protection svstem control valves in a manner that would
prevent such equipment or fire hvdrants from beinq immediatelv discernible. The fire department shall not
be deterred or hindered from gaining immediate access to fire protection equipment or fire hydrants.

(Reason: Additional guidance based on legacy language to ensure these critical devices are available in
an emergency incident.)

**Section 509.1 .2; add to read as follows:

509.1.2 Sign Requirements. Unless more strinqent requirements applv, letterino for siqns required bv
this section shall have a minimum heiqht of 2 inches (50.8 mm) when located inside a buildinq and
4inches(101.6mm)whenlocatedoutside,orasapprovedbythefirecodeofficral. Thelettersshallbeof
a color that contrasts with the backqround.

(Reason: Provides direction as
consistency in this regard.)

to appropriate sign criteria to develop local and regional

***Secfion 605.4 through 605.4.2.2 ; change to read as follows:

605.4Fueloilstoragesystems.Fueloilstoragesystems@shallbeinstalled
and maintained in accordance with this code. Tanks and fuel-oil piping systems shall be installed in
accordance with Chapter 13 of Íhe lnternational Mechanical Code_q¡g!¡Qhgpþ¡fi.

605.4.1 Fuel oil storage in outside, above-ground tanks. Where connected to a fuel-oil piping
system, the maximum amount of fuel oil storage allowed outside above ground without additional
protection shall be 660 gallons (2498 L). The storage of fuel oil above ground in quantities
exceeding 660 gallons (2498 L) shall comply with NFPA 3'l and Chapter 57.

605.4.1.1 Approval. Outdoor fuel oil storage tanks shall be in accordance with UL 142 or UL
2085 and ^ cfa¡l ac rln¡ rl.rla-r¡ral l/cpnnnrlanr nnnfainmont frnkc

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code

'10



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

605.4.2 Fuel oil storage inside buildings. Fuel oil storage inside buildings shall comply with
Sections 605.4.2.2 through 605.4.2.8-er and Chapter 57.

605.4.2.1Approval. lndoor fuel oil storage tanks shall be in accordance with UL 80, UL
142 or UL 2085.

605.4.2.2 Quantity limits. One or more fuel oil storage tanks containing Class ll or lll
combustible liquid shall be permitted in a building. The aggregate capacity of all tanks
shall not exceed the following:

1. 660 gallons (2498 L) in unsprinklered buildings, where stored in a tank complying
with UL 80, UL 142 or UL 2085
containment tank for Class ll liquids.

2. 1,320 gallons (4996 L) in buildings equipped with an automatic sprinkler system in
accordance with Section 903.3.1.1, where stored in a tank complying with UL 142or
UL 2085. The tank shall be listed as a secondary containment tank, and the
secondary containment shall be monitored visually or automatically.

3. 3,000 gallons (11 356 L) in buildings equipped with an automatic sprinkler system in
accordance with Section 903.3.1.1, where stored in protected above-ground tanks
complying with UL 2085 and Section 5704.2.9.7. The tank shall be listed as a
secondary containment tank, as required by UL 2085, and the secondary
containment shall be monitored visually or automatically.

(Reason:/ssues addressed by Chapter 57, such as venting to outside of buildings, remote fill to outside
of building, overfill protection, physical protection, etc., are not included in Section 605.4, so compliance
with Chapter 57 is also required. The Board removed the applicability to heating sysfems only from the
charging statement based on this more prudent method of diesel storage for generators, boilers, fire
pumps and other fuel-fired equipment inside buildings without requiring Group H occupancy classification
- fhls ls now established in the as well

*Secfion 807.5.2.2 and 807.5.2.3 applicable to Group E occupancies; change to read as follows:

807.5.2.2 Artwork in Corridors. Artwork and teaching materials shall be limited on the walls of corridors
to not more than 20 percent of the wall area. Such materials shall not be continuous from floor to ceilinq
or wall to wall. Curtains. draperies. wall hanqinqs. and other decorative material suspended from the
walls or ceilinqs shall meet the ffame propaqation oerformance criteria of NFPA 701 in accordance with
Section 807 or be noncombustible.

Exception: Corridors protected by an approved automatic sprinkler svstem installed in accordance
with Section 903.3.1 .1 shall be limited to 50 percent of the wall area.

807.5.2.3 Artwork in Classrooms. Artwork and teaching materials shall be limited on walls of
classrooms to not more than 50 percent of the specific wall area to which they are attached.
Curtains, draperies, wall hanqinqs and other decorative material susoended from the walls or ceilinos
shall meet the flame propaqation performance criteria of NFPA 701 in accordance with Section 807 or be
noncombustible.

(Reason: This change allows an increase in wall coverage due to the presence of sprinklers. A/so
additional relative to fire resistance in these

**Secúion 807.5.5.2 and 807.5.5.3 applicable to Group l-4 occupancies; change to read as follows:

rn¡{ ¡lca licfa¡{ ac dnr rhle-wall/cannn¡{nnr

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

11



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

807.5.5.2 Artwork in Corridors. Artwork and teaching materials shall be limited on the walls of corridors
to not more than 20 percent of the wall area. Such materials shall not be continuous from floor to ceilino
or wall to wall. Curtains, draoeries, wall hanqinqs and other decorative material suspended from the walls
or ceilings shall meet the flame propaqation performance criteria of NFPA 701 in accordance with Section
807 or be noncombustible.

Exception: Corridors protected by an approved automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance
with Section 903.3.1.1 shall be limited to 50 percent of the wall area.

807.5.5.3 Artwork in Classrooms. Artwork and teaching materials shall be limited on walls of
classrooms to not more than 50 percent of the specific wall area to which they are attached. Curtains,
draperies. wall hanqinos and other decorative material suspended from the walls or ceilinqs shall meet
the flame propaqation performance criteria of NFPA 701 in accordance with Section 807 or be
noncombustible.

(Reason: This change allows an increase in wall coverage due to the presence of sprinklers. A/so
additional relative to fire resistance in these

**Secúion 901.6.1.1; add to read as follows:

901.6.1.1 Standoipe Testinq. Buildino owners/manaqers must maintain and teststandoipe svstems as
per NFPA 25 requirements. The followino additional requirements shall be aoplied to the testinq that is
required every 5 vears:

1. The pipinq between the Fire Department Connection (FDC) and the standpioe shall be backflushed
or inspected by approved camera when foreiqn material is present or when caps are missino. and
also hvdrostatically tested for all FDC's on anv type of standpioe svstem. Hydrostatic testinq shall
also be conducted in accordance with NFPA 25 reouirements for the different tvoes of standpioe
systems.

2. For any manual (dry or wet) standpioe svstem not havinq an automatic water supplv capable of
flowino water throuqh the standoipe. the tester shall connect hose from a fire hvdrant or oortable
pumoins svstem (as approved bv the fire code orficlah to each FDC. and flow water throuqh the
standpipe svstem to the roof outlet to verifu that each inlet connection functions orooerlv. Confirm
that there are no open hose valves orior to introducing water into a dry standpipe. There is no
required pressure criteria at the outlet. Veriry that check valves function properly and that there are
no closed control valves on the system.

3. Anv pressure relief. reducinq. or control valves shall be tested in accordance with the requirements
of NFPA 25. All hose valves shall be exercised.

4. lf the FDC is not alreadv provided with approved caps. the contractor shall install such caps for all
FDC's as required bv the frle code offic,a/.

5. Upon successful comoletion of standoipe test, place a blue taq (as oer Texas Administrative Code.
Fire Sprinkler Rules for lnspection. Test and Maintenance Service (lTMl Taq) at the bottom of
each standpipe riser in the buildinq. The taq shall be check-marked as "Fifth Yea/'for Type of lTM.
and the note on the back of the tag shall read "5 Year Standpipe Test" at a minimum.

Taos and Red Taos or ânv cJeficiencies durino the testino. includino the reouired
notification of the local Authoritv Havinq Jurisdiction (fire code official\ shail be folowed.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Fire Code

12



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Governments

7. Additionallv. records of the testinq shall be maintained bv the owner and contractor. if applicable,
as required bv the State Rules mentioned above and NFPA 25.

8. Standpipe svstem tests where water will be flowed external to the buildinq shall not be conducted
durinq freezinq conditions or durinq the day prior to exgected niqht time freezinq conditions.

9. Contact the fre code offlcr,a/ for requests to remove existinq fire hose from Class ll and lll standpipe
systems where employees are not trained in the utilization of this firefiqhtinq equipment. All
standpipe hose valves must remain in place and be orovided with an approved cap and chain when
approval is qiven to remove hose bv the f/re code ofifrcla/.

(Reason: /ncreases the reliability of the fire protection system and re-emphasÞes the requirements of
NFPA 25 relative to standpipe sysfems, as well as ensuring that FDC connections are similarly
tested/m ai ntain ed to e nsu re tn an

**Secfion 901.6.4; add to read as follows:

901.6.4 False Alarms and Nuisance Alarms. False alarms and nuisance alarms shall not be qiven.
siqnaled or transmitted or caused or permitted to be qiven, siqnaled or transmitted in anv manner.

(Reason: Places the responsibility on fhe busrness or property owner to maintain their fire alarm systems
in approved condition. Allows the enforcement of "prohibition of false alarms". Rep/aces text lost from the

codes that to ensure the maintenance of life

**Secúion 901.7; change to read as follows:

901.7 Systems Out of Service. Where a required fire protection system is out of service or in the event
of an excessive number of activations, the fire department and the fire code official shall be notified
immediately and, where required by the fire code official, the building shall either be evacuated or an
approved fire watch shall be provided for all occupants left unprotected by the shut down until the fire
protection sysfem has been returned to service. ... {Remaining text unchanged}

(Reason: Gives fire code official more discretion with regards to enforcement of facilities experiencing
nuisance alarm or fire protection system activations necessitating correction/repair/replacement. The
intent of the amendment is to allow local jurisdictions to enforce fire watches, etc., where needed to
ensure of where fire are nutsance a

**Secfíon 903.1 .1 ; change to read as follows:

903.1.1 Alternative Protection. Alternative automatic fire-extinguishing systems complying with Section
904 shall be permitted instead e{ in addition to automatic sprinkler protection where recognized by the
applicable standard and, or as approved by the fire code official.

(Reason: Such alternafiVe sysfems do not provide the reliability of automatic sprinkler protection. Most
gaseous type systems are highly susceptible to open doors, ceiling or floor tile removal, etc. However, an
applicant could pursue an Alternate Method request to help mitigate the reliability lssues with these
alternative sysferns with the fire code official if so desired, or there may be circumstances in which the fire
code official is acceptable to allowing an alternate sysfem in lieu of sprinklers, such as kitchen hoods or

**Secfion 903.2; add paragraph to read as follows and delete the Exception for

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

13



ftlorth Gentral Texas
Councll of Govemments

te leco m m u n ic ati o n s bu i I di ng s :

Automatic Sprinklers shall not be installed in elevator machine rooms, elevator machine spaces. and
elevator hoistwavs. other than pils where such sprinklers would not necessitate shunt trio requirements
under any circumstances. Storaoe shall not be allowed within the elevator machine room. Siqnaqe shall
be orovided at the entrv doors to the elevator machine room indicatinq "ELEVATOR MACHINERY - NO
STORAGE ALLOWED."

(Reason: Firefighter and public safety. This amendment eliminates the shunt trip requirement of the
lnternational Building Code Secfion 3005.5 for the purpose of elevator passenger and firefighter safety.
This amendment is contingent on the Building Code amendment eliminating the Exceptions to Secflon
3005.4, such that passive fire barriers for these areas are maintained. The exception deletion is due to
the fact that such telecom areas an undue fire risk to the structural of the

***Secúion 903.2.4.2; change to read as follows:

903.2.4.2 Group F-l distilled spirits. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout a
Group F-1 fire area used for the manufacture of distilled spirits involvinq more than 120 oallons of distílled
spirits (>16% alcohol) in the fire area at anv one time.

(Reason: To establish a sprinkler criteria limit based on existing maximum allowable quantities provided
for flammable liquids in a non-sprinklered space from Chapter 50 and allow very small distillery type

without as has been allowed.

**tSecúíon 903.2.9.3; change to read as follows:

903.2.9.3 Group S-1 distilled spirits or wine. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided
throughout a Group S-1 fire area used for the bulk storage of distilled spírits or wine involvinq more than
120 qallons of distilled soirits or wine (>16% alcohol) in the fire area at anv one time.

(Reason: To establish a sprinkler criteria limit based on existing maximum allowable quantities provided
for flammable liquids in a non-sprinklered space from Chapter 50 and allow very small storage operations
without as has been allowed

**SecfÍon 903.2.9.4 and 903.2.9.5; delete Exception to 903.2.9.4 and add Secfion 903.2.9.5 to read
as follows:

903.2.9.5 Self-Service Storaqe Facilitv. An automatic sprinkler svstem shall be installed throuqhout all
self-service storaqe facilities.

(Reason: Fire departments are unable to regularly inspect the interior of these commercial occupancies
and are unaware of the contents being stored. Previous allowance to separate units by fire barriers is
difficult to enforce maintenance after

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

14



North Central Texas

***Option B

Section 903.2.11; change 903.2.11.3 and add 903.2.11.7,903.2.11.8, and 903.2.11.9 as follows:

903.2.11.3 Buildings 55 35 feet or more in height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be
installedthroughoutbuildingsthathaveoneormorestories
other than penthouses in compliance with Section 1511 of the /nfernafional Buldrno Code. located
55 35 feet (+616410 668 mm) or more above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access,
measured to the finished floor.

Cxeept¡en-
@

903.2.11.7 Hioh-Piled Gombustible Storaqe. For anv buildino with a clear heiqht exceedinq 12
feet (4572 mm). see Chapter 32 to determine if those provisions applv.

903.2.11.8 Sprav Booths and Rooms. New and existinq sprav booths and soravinq rooms shall
be orotected by an approved automatic fire-extinquishinq system.

903.2.11.9 Buildinqs Over 6.000 sq. ft. An automatic sorinkler svstem shall be installed
throuqhout all buildinqs with a buildino area 6.000 sq. ft. or qreater and in all existino buildinqs that
are enlarqed to be 6,000 sq. ft. or qreater. For the purpose of this provision. fire walls shall not
define separate buildinqs.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

Secfion 903.2.11; change 903.2.11.3 and add 903.2.11.7 and 903.2.11.8, as follows:

903.2.11.3 Buildings 55 Feet or more in Height. An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed
throughout buildings that have one or more stories with an eeeupant lead ef 30 er mere other than
penthouses in comoliance with Section 1511 of the /nfernafionalBuldrno Code, located 55 feet (16
764 mm) or more above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access, measured to the finished
floor.

903.2.11.7 Hioh-Piled Combustible Storaqe. For anv buildinq with a clear heiqht exceedinq 12 feet
(4572 mm), see Chapter 32 to determine if those provisions apply.

903.2.11.8 Sprav Booths and Rooms. New and existino sprav booths and sprayinq rooms shall be
protected bv an approved automatic fire-extinquishinq svstem.

**Option A

Cxeeptien-
@

15



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

Exception: Open parkinq qaraoes in compliance with Section 406.5 of the /nfernaflonal Build,no Code
where all of the followinq conditions applv:

a. The structure is freestandinq.
b. The structure does not contain any mixed uses. accessorv uses. storaqe rooms.

electrical rooms. elevators or spaces used or occupied for anything other than motor
vehicle parkinq.

c. The structure does not exceed 3 stories.
d. An approved fire apparatus access road is provided around the entire structure.

(Reason: Provides jurisdictions options as to their desired level of sprinkler protection based on muttipte
factors

**Secfion 903.3.1.1.1; change to read as follows:
903.3.1.1.1 Exempt Locations. When approved bv the flre code orSbial, automatic sprinklers shall not
be required in the following rooms or areas where such ... {text unchanged}... because it is damp, of fire-
resistance-rated construction or contains electrical equipment.

1. Any room where the application of water, or flame and water, constitutes a serious life or fíre
hazard.

2. Any room or space where sprinklers are considered undesirable because of the nature of the
contents, where approved by the fire code official.

3. Generator and transformer rooms. under the direct control of a public utility, separated from the
remainder of the building by walls and floor/ceiling or roof/ceiling assemblies having a fire-
resistance rating of not less than 2 hours.

5. Fir+serviee aeeess Elevator machine rooms, anC machinery spaces, and hoistways, other than
pits where such sprinklers would not necessitate shunt trip requirements under anv
circumstances.

6. {Delete.}

(Reason: Gives more direction to code official. Exception 4 deleted to provide protection where fire risks
are poorly addressed. Amendment 903.2 addresses Excepflon 5 above relative to the elimination of

in these areas to avoid the shunt

***Secfion 903.3.1.2; change to read as follows:

903.3.1.2 NFPA l3R sprinkler systems. Automatic sprinkler systems in Group R occupancies shall
be permitted to be installed throughout in accordance with NFPA 13R where the Group R occupancy
meets all of the following conditions:

1. Four stories or less above grade plane.
2. The floor level of the highest story is 3O 35 feet (9144 10668 mm) or less above the lowest level of

fire department vehicle access.
3. The floor level of the lowest story is 3O$ feet (914410668 mm) or less below the lowest levelof

fire department vehicle access.
iNo change to remainder of section.)

(Reason.' The change to the 2021 IFC over-reached to limit 13R sysfems to 30 ft. high at topmost ftoor

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnlernational Fire Code

16



North 0entral Texas
Councll of Govemments

level, which basically resu/fs in limiting l3R sysfems to 3 story buitdings in reatity. This change to 35 ft
would still allow 13R sysfems in 4 story apartment buildings, as has been allowed historically and as
intended 73R's

***Secfion 903.3.1 .2.2; change to read as follows

903.3.1.2.2Corridorsandbalconies@.Sprinklerprotectionshallbeprovidedin
all corridors and for all balconies ln tfte means ef egr
{Delete the rest of this section.}

(Reason: Corridor protection is critical to the means of egress, and corridors are regularly utitized for
mi scel la n eo us sforage, fixtures, artwo rk, food
protection is required due to rssues with fire

kiosks and beverage dlspenserg and furnishings. Batcony
exposure via soffit vents and the potential for significant

combustible

**Sectíon 903.3.1.2.3; delete secfion and replace as follows:

Section 903.3.1.2.3 Attached Garaqes and Attics. Sprinkler protection is reouired in attached qaraqes.
and in the followinq attic spaces:

1. Attics that are used or intended for livinq purposes or storaoe shall be protected by an
automatic so er svstem.

2. Where fuel-fired equipment is installed in an unsorinklered attic, not fewer than one quick-
response intermediate temoerature sprinkler shall be installed above the equipment.

3. Attic soaces of buildinos that are two or more stories in heiqht above qrade plane or above
the lowest level of fire deoartment vehicle access.

4. Group R-4. Condition 2 occuoancy attics not required by ltem 1 or 3 to have sprinklers shall
complv with one of the followinq:

4.1. Provide automatic sorinkler svstem protection.
4.2. Provide a heat detection svstem throuqhout the attic that is arranqed to activate the

buildinq f¡re alarm svstem.
4.3. Construct the attic usinq noncombustible materials.
4.4. Construct the attic usinq fire-retardanltreated wood complvino with Section 2303.2

of the lnternational Buildinq Code.
4.5. Fill the attic with noncombustible insulation.

(Reason: Aftic protection is required due to lssues with fire exposure via soffit yenfs, as well as firefighter
safety. Severaliurisdictions indicated experience with un-protected attic fires resutting in disptacement of
all building occupants. NFPA 13 provides for applicable attic sprinkter protection requirements, as well as
exemptions to such, based on noncombustible construction, etc. Attached garages already require

via NFPA 13R - this amendment the

*Secfion 903.3.1.3; change to read as follows:

903.3.1.3 NFPA l3D Sprinkler Systems. Automatic sprinkler sysferns installed in one- and two-family
dwellings; Group R-3; Group R-4, Condition l; and townhouses shall be permitted to be installed
throughout in accordance with NFPA 13D or in accordance with state law.

(Reason: To allow the use of the Plumbing secflon of the tnternationat Residentiat Code (IRC) and
current state in this

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

17



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Governments

**Secfion 903.3.1.4; add to read as follows:

903.3.1.4 Freeze protection. Freeze protection svstems for automatic fire sprinkler svstems shall be in
accordance with the requirements of the applicable referenced NFPA standard and this section.

903.3.1.4.1 l\ttics. Onlv drv-oipe. preaction. or listed antifreeze automatic fire sorinkler systems
shall be allowed to protect attic spaces.

Exception: Wet-pioe fire sprinkler svstems shall be allowed to protect non-ventilated attic
spaces where:

L The attic sprinklers are supplied bv a separate floor control valve assemblv to
allow ease of drainino the attic system without imoairinq sprinklers throuqhout the
rest of the building, and

2. Adequate heat shall be provided for freeze protection as per the applicable
referenced NFPA standard. and

3. The attic space is a part of the buildino's thermal. or heat, envelope, such that
insulation is orovided at the roof deck. rather than at the ceilinq level.

903.3.1.4.2 Heat trace/insulation. Heat trace/insulation shall onlv be allowed where approved bv
the fire code official for small sections of large diameter water-filled pipe.

(Reason: ln the last few years, severe winters brought to light several rssues with current practices for
sprinklering attics, not the least of which was wet-pipe sprinklers in ventilated attics provided with space
heaters, etc. for freeze protection of such piping. This practice is not acceptable for the protection of
water-filled piping in a ventilated attic space as lf does not provide a reliable means of maintaining the
minimum 40 degrees required by NFPA, wasfes energy, and presents a potential ignition source to the
attic space. Listed antifreeze is specifically included because NFPA currently allows such even though
there is no currently listed antifreeze at the time of development of these amendments. The intent of this
amendment is to help reduce the large number of freeze breaks that have occurred in the past with water-
filled in the mosf in attic

**Secfion 903.3.5; add a second paragraph to read as follows:

Water suoolv as reouireci for such svstems shall be orovided in conformance with the suoolv
requirements of the respective NFPA standards; however. everv water-based fire protection svstem shall
be desiqned with a 10 osi safety factor. Reference Section 507.4 for additional desiqn requirements.

To define uniform factor for the

**Secfion 903.4; add a second paragraph after the Exceptions to read as follows:

Sprinkler and standpipe svstem water-flow detectors shall be provided for each floor tap to the sprinkler
svstem and shall cause an alarm upon detection of water flow for more than 45 seconds. All control
valves in the sprinkler and standoipe svstems except for fire department hose connection valves shall be
electricallv supervised to initiate a suoervisorv siqnal at the central station uoon tamperinq.

To avoid /osses. Conslsfenf with amendment to IFC

**Secfion 903.4.2; add second paragraph to read as follows:

The alarm device reouired on the exterior of the buildinq shall be a weatheroroof horn/strobe notification
appliance with a minimum 75 candela strobe ratinq. installed as close as practicable to the fire
department connection.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Fire Code

l8



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

(Reason: Fire department connections are not always located at the riser; this allows the fire department
faster access and ease of recognition of the FDC location, especially at night.)

**Secfion 905.3.9; add to read as follows:

905.3.9 Buildinqs Exceedinq 10.000 sq. ft. ln buildinqs exceedinq '10.000 square feet in area oer story
and where anv portion of the buildinq's interior area is more than 200 feet (60960 mm) of travel, verticallv
and horizontallv. from the nearest point of fire department vehicle access, Class I automatic wet or
manual wet standpipes shall be provided.

Exceptions:
1. Automatic dry, semi-automatic drv, and manual drv standpipes are allowed as provided for in

NFPA '14 where approved bv the fire code official.
2. R-2 occupancies of four stories or less in height havinq no interior corridors.

(Reason: Allows for the rapid deployment of hose lines to the body of the fire in larger structures.)

**Secfíon 905.4; change |tems 1, 3, and 5, and add ltem 7 to read as follows:

1. ln every required urte+ier exit stairway, a hose connection shall be provided for each story above
and below grade plane. Hose connections shall be located at an intermediate landing between
stories, unless otherwise approved by the fìre code official.

Exception: {No change.}
2. {No change.}
3. ln every exit passageway, at the entrance from the exit passageway to other areas of a building.

Exception: Where floor areas adjacent to an exit passageway are reachable from an
interier exit stairway hose connection by a {remainder of text unchanged}

4. iNo change.)
5. Where the roof has a slope less than 4 units vertical in 12 units horizontal (33.3-percent slope),

each standpipe shall be provided with a two-way a-hose connection shall-be located to serve the
roof or at the highest landing of an interier exit stairway with stair access to the roof provided in
accordance with Section 1011.12.

6. {No change.}
Z. When required by this Chapter, standpipe connections shall be placed adiacent to all required

exits to the structure and at two hundred feet (200') intervals alonq maior corridors thereafter. or as
otherwise approved by the fire code official.

(Reason: ltem 1, 3, and 5 amendments to remove'interiof will help to clarify that such connections are
required for all 'exit' stairways, to ensure firefighter capabilities are not diminished in these tall buildings,
simply because the stair is on the exterior of the building. ltem 5 reduces the amount of pressure required
to facilitate testing, and provides backup protection for fire fighter safety. ltem 7 allows for the rapid
deployment of hose lines to the body of the fire.)

"**Secfion 905.8; change to read as follows:

905.8 Dry standpipes. Dry standpipes shall not be installed.
Exception: Where subject to freezing and in accordance with NFPA 14. Additionallv, manual dry
standpipe svstems shall be suoervised with a minimum of 'l 0 psiq and a maximum of 40 psiq air
pressure with a hiqhilow Supervisorv alarm.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code

19



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

(Reason: To define manual dry standpipe superuision requiremenfs. Heþs ensure the integrity of the
standpipe sysfem via superuision, such that open hose valves will result in a supervisory low air alarm.
NFPA 14 requires supervisory air for such, but does not provide pressure criteria for what that means.
Ihrs ls a

**Secfíon 905.9; add a second paragraph after the exceptions to read as follows:

Sorinkler and standpipe system water-flow detectors shall be provided for each floor tap to the sprinkler
svstem and shall cause an alarm upon detection of water flow for more than 45 seconds. All control
valves in the sprinkler and standpioe systems except for fire department hose connection valves shall be
electricallv supervised to initiate a supervisorv siqnal at the central station upon tamperinq.

To avoid urafer /osses. Consisfenf with amendment to IFC 903.

***Section 906.1ft): delete Exception 3 as follows:

; pewered industrial truek er^ewered

fixed extinguishers; as speeified in NFPA 10' shall-net be required where in aeeerdanee with all ef
tt+e+e+tewin+

3,3, Net less than twe spare extinguishers ef equal er greaûer rating shall be available en

e-x+inguishers=
3,5, lnspeetiens ef vehiele-meunted extinguishers shal.l-be perfermed daily,

(Reason: This provision of only having vehicle-mounted fire extinguishers is not at all consistent with
historical practice of requiring extinguishers throughout based on travel distance. Often times, the vehicle
is what has caused the incident and/or may be the source of the incident, so having the extinguisher
vehicle-mounted results in greater potential injury of the user. Ihrs assurnes the only occupants in the
building are on a vehicle, which again, significantly reduces access to fire extinguishers throughout the
building to other occupants. Future use of the building/tenancy may change further complicating the

**Secúion 907.1.4; add to read as follows:

907.1.4 Desiqn Standards. Where a new f¡re alarm svstem is installed, the devices shall be
addressable. Fire alarm systems utilizing more than 20 smoke detectors shall have analog initiating
devices.

(Reason: Provides for the ability of descriptive identification of alarms, and reduces need for panel
in the future of allows for reference back to definitions of NFPA

**Secfíon 907.2.1 ; change to read as follows:

907.2.1 Group A. A manual fire alarm system that activates the occupant notification system in
accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group A occupancies where the havinq an occupant

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code

20



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Govemments

|oadof300ormoreoersons,orwheretheG+eueAoccupantloadis
more than 100 persons above or below the /owesf level of exit discharge. Group A occupancies not
separated from one another in accordance with Section 707.3.10 of the lnternational Building Code shall
be considered as a single occupancy for the purposes of applying this section. Portions of Group E
occupancies occupied for assembly purposes shall be provided with a fire alarm system as requíred for
the Group E occupancy.

Exception: {No change.}

Activation of fire alarm notification appliances shall:
1. Cause illumination of the means of eqress with liqht of not less than 1 fooþcandle (11 lux) at the

walkinq surface level. and
2. Stop anv conflictinq or confusino sounds and visual distractions.

(Reason: /ncreases the requirement to be consisfenf with Group B requirement. Also addresses rssue
found in Group A occupancies of reduced lighting levels and other AN equipment that distracts from fire
alarm notification devices or reduces ability of fire alarm sysfem to notify occupants of the emergency

**Secfion 907.2.3; change to read as follows:

907.2.3 Group E. A manual fire alarm system that initiates the occupant notification signal utilizing an
emergency voice/alarm communication system meeting the requirements of Section 907.5.2.2 and
installed in accordance with Section 907.6 shafl be installed in Group E educational occupancies. When
automatic sprinkler sysfems or smoke detectors are installed, such systems or detectors shall be
connected to the building fire alarm system. An approved smoke detection system shall be installed in
Group E dav care occuoancies. Unless seoarated bv a mínimum of 100'open space. all buildinqs,
whether oortable buildinqs or the main buildinq, will be considered one buildinq for alarm occupant load
consideration and interconnection of alarm systems.

Exceptions:
1. {No change.}

l.l.Residential ln-Home dav care with not more than 12 children mav use interconnected
sinqle station detectors in all habitable rooms. (For care of more than five children 2 1/2
or less years of aqe. see Section 907.2.6.)

{No change to remainder of exceptions.}

(Reason: To distinguish educationalfrom day care occupancy minimum protection requirements. Fu¡ther,
to define threshold at which portable buildings are considered a separate building for the purposes of
alarm with State law such

***Secfíon 907.2.10; change to read as follows:

907.2.10 Group S. A manual fire alarm system that activates the occupant notification system in
accordance with Section 907.5 shall be installed in Group S public- and self-storage occupancies th+ee

@forinteriorcorridorsandinteriorcommonareas.Visiblenotificationappliances
are not required within storage units.

Exception: {No change.}

(Reason: Because of the potential unknown fire load and hazards in self-storage type facilities, which
could include flammable liquids for instance, as well as other hazardous materials, prompt evacuation in

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code

21



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

the event of fire alarm is needed; therefore, notification in the corridors/common areas r.s criticat to att
such of

**Secúion 907.2.13, Exception #3; change to read as follows:

Open air portions of buildings with an occupancy in Group A-5 in accordance with Section 303.1 of
the lnternational Building Code: however, this exc
but not limited to sky boxes. restaurants, and similarly enclosed areas.

(Reason: To indicate that enclosed areas within open air seating type occupancies are not exempted

3

from automatic fire alarm

**Secúron 907.4.2.7; add to read as follows:

907.4.2.7 Tvpe. Manualalarm initiatinq devices shall be an aooroved double action tvpe.

to reduce false

**Secfíon 907.6.1.1; add to read as follows:

907.6.1.1 Wirinq lnstallation. All fire alarm svstems shall be installed in such a manner that a failure of
anv sinqle initiatinq device or sinole open in an initiatino circuit conductor will not interfere with the normal
ooeration of other such devices. All sionalinq line circuits (SLC) shall be installed in such a wav that a
sinqle open will not interfere with the operation of any addressable devices (Class A). Outooinq and
return SLC conductors shall be installed in accordance with NFPA 72 requirements for Class A circuits
and shall have a minimum of four feet separation horizontal and one foot vertical between supoly and
return circuit conductors. The initiating device circuit (lDC) from a sionalinq line circuit interface device
mav be wired Class B, provided the distance from the interface device to the initiatino device is ten feet or
less.

(Reason: To provide uniformity in system specifications and guidance to design engineers. lmproves
of fire alarm devices and

**Secffon 907.6.3; delete all four Exceptions.

(Reason: Io assisf responding personnel in locating the emergency event for all fire alarm systems. Ihls
is moved from 907.6.5.3 in the 2012 IFC and reworded to match new code and

**Secfíon 907.6.6; add sentence at end of paragraph to read as follows:

See 907.6.3 for the reouired information transmitted to the supervisinq station.

(Reason: Io assrsf responding personnel in locating the emergency event for atl fire alarm systems. Ihr.s
was moved from 907.6.5.3 in the 2012 IFC and reworded to match new code language and sections

**Secfion 910.2; change Exceptions #2 and 3 to read as follows:

2. Only manual smoke and heat removal shall net be required in areas of buildings equipped with
early suppression fast-response (ESFR) sprinklers. Automatic smoke and heat removal is
prohibited.

3. Onlv manual smoke and heat removal shall net be required in areas of buildings equipped with

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

22



Horth Gentral Texas
Councll of Govemments

control mode special application sprinklers with a response time index of 50(m.g¡trz or less that
are listed to control a fire in stored commodities with 12 or fewer sprinklers. Automatic smoke
and heat removal is prohibited.

(Reason: Allows the fire department to control the smoke and heat during and after a fire event, white stilt
prohibiting such systems from being automatically activated, which is a potentiat detriment to the

indicated

**Secfion 910.2.3; add to read as follows:

910.2.3 Group H. Buildinqs and portions thereof used as a Grouo H occuoancv as follows:

1 ln occuoancies ed as Grouo H-2 or H-3. anv of which are than 15.000 souare feet
(1394 rn2) in single floor area.

Exception: Buildinqs of noncombustible construction containing only noncombustible materials.

Class 1 and unclassifi detonable oroanic oeroxides. Class 3 and 4 unstable (reactive)
materials, or Class 2 or 3 water-reactive materials as required for a hiqh-hazard commoditv
classifìcation.

Exception: Buildinqs of noncombustible construction containinq onlv noncombustible materials.

(Reason; Maintains a fire protection device utilized in such occupancies where it is sometimes necessary
to allow chemicals to burn out, rather than extinguish. Ihls is based on tegacy language estabtishing

historical

**Secúion 910.4.3.1 ; change to read as follows:

910.4.3.1 Makeup Air. Makeup air openings shall be provided within 6 feet (1829 mm) of the floor level.
Operation of makeup air openings shall be automatic. The minimum gross area of makeup air
inlets shall be I square feet per '1,000 cubic feet per minute (0.74 m2 per 0.4719 m3/s) of smoke exhaust.

(Reason: Makeup air has been required to be automatic for several years now in this region when
mechanical smoke exhaust sysferns are proposed. This allows such sysfems fo be activated from the
smoke control panel by first responders without having to physically go around the exterior of the building
opening doors manually. Such requires a significant number of first responders on scene to conduct this
operation and significantly delays activation and/or capability of the smoke exhausf system.)

**Secfion 912.2.3; add to read as follows:

912.2.3 Hvdrant Distance. An approved fire hvdrant shall be located within 100 feet of the fire
department connection as the fire hose lays alonq an unobstructed path.

(Reason: To accommodate limited hose lengths, improve response times where the FDC is needed to
achieve fire control, and improve ease of locating a fire hydrant in those situations atso. Atso, consistent
with NFPA 14 criteria

**Secúíon 913.2.1; add second paragraph and exception to read as follows:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

23



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

When located on the qround level at an exterior wall, the fire oumþ room shall be orovided with an
exterior fire department access door that is not less than 3 ft. in width and 6 ft. - 8 in. in heiqht, reqardless
of anv interior doors that are provided. A kev box shall be provided at this door. as required by Section
506.1.

Exception: When it is necessary to locate the fire pump room on other levels or not at an exterior
wall. the corridor leadinq to the fire pumo room access from the exterior of the buildinq shall be
provided with equivalent fire resistance as that required for the pump room, or as approved bv the fire
code offlcral. Access kevs shall be provided in the key box as required by Section 506.1.

(Reason: This requirement allows fire fighters safer access to the fire pump room. The requírement
allows access without being required to enter the building and locate the fire pump room interior access
door during a fire event. The exception recognizes that this will not always be a feasible design scenario
for some buildings, and as such, provides an acceptable alternative to protect the pathway to the fire

**Secfion 914.3.1.2; change to read as follows:

914.3.1.2 Water Supply to required Fire Pumps. ln all buildings that are more than @ 120 feet 11¿g
36.6 m) in building height,

@requiredfirepumpsshallbesuppliedbyconnectionstonofewerthantwo
water mains located in different streets. Separate supply piping shall be provided between each
connection to the water main and the pumps. Each connection and the supply piping between the
connection and the pumps shall be sized to supply the flow and pressure required for the pumps to
operate.

Exception: {No change to exception.}

(Reason.' The 2009 edition of the IFC added this requirement based on a need for redundancy of the
water supply similar to the redundancy of the power supply to the fire pumps required for such tall
buildings, partially due to the fact that these buildings are rarely fully evacuated in a fire event. More
commonly, the alarm activates on the floor of the event, the floor above and the floor below. Back-up
power to the fire pump becomes critical for this reason. Certainly, the power rs poinfless if the water
supply is impaired for any reason, so a similar requirement is provided here for redundant water supplies.
The 2015 edition changes the requirement to only apply to very tall buildings over 420 ft. This
amendment modifies/lowers the requirement to 120 ft., based on this same height requirement for fire
seruice access elevators. Again, the language from the 2009 and 2012 editions of the code applied to
any high-rise building. This compromise at 120 ft. is based on the above technical justification of defend-
in-place scenarios in fire incidents in such tall structures.)

***Secúion 1006.2.1; change Exception #3 to read as follows:

1006.2.1 Egress based on occupant load and common path of egress travel distance. Two exits or
exit doonrvays from any space shall be provided where the design occupant load or the common path of
egress travel distance exceeds the values listed in Table 1006.2.1. The cumulative occupant load from
adjacent rooms, areas or space shall be determined in accordance with Section 1004.2.

Exceptions:
1. {No change.i
2. {No change.}

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code

24



North Central Texas
Council of Governments

3. Unoccupied rooftop mechanical rooms and penthouses are not required to comply with
the common path of egress travel distance measurement.

(Reason: Add "rooftop" to Exception No. 3 to clarify that only such mechanical rooms located on the roof
be

**Secfíon 1009.8; add Exception #7 to read as follows:

Exceptions:
L through 6. {No change.}
7. Buildinqs requlated under State Law and built in accordance with State reqistered

plans, includinq variances or waivers qranted by the State, shall be deemed to be in
compliance with the requirements of Section 1009 and Chapter 11.

(Reason: To accommodate buildings regulated under Texas State Law and to be consrsfent with
amendments in 11

**Section 1010.2.5; change Exceptions #3 and 4 to read as follows

Exceptions:
1. {No change.}
2. {No change.}
3. Where a pair of doors serves an occupant load of less than 50 persons in a Group B,

F, M or S occupancy. (remainder unchanged)
4. Where a pair of doors serves a Group À B, F, M or S occupancy (remainder

unchanged)
5. {No change.}

(Reason; lt is common in our region fo see the 2nd leaf locked, when that leaf is not part of the required
egress door clear width, such as in a typical Group M occupancy. Exception No. 4 was expanded to
Group A due to it being a similar situation for Group A restaurants.)

**Secfion 1020.2; add Exception #6 to read as follows:

Exceptions:
1. through 5. {No change.}
6. ln unsprinklered oroup B occupancies, corridor walls and ceilinqs need not be of fire-

resistive construction within a sinqle tenant space when the space is equipped with
aporoved automatic smoke-detection within the corridor. The actuation of anv detector
must activate self-annunciatinq alarms audible in all areas within the corridor. Smoke
detectors must be connected to an approved automatic fire alarm svstem where such
svstem is provided.

(Reason: Similar concept was previously in UBC - legacy language. This scenario occurs primarily in
existing, non-sprinklered buildings, which under current IBC would be required to have a fire resistance
rated corridor. This exception provides a cost-effective solution for single tenant space in lieu of the base
tBc to retrofit a fire the

***Secúíon 1030.1.1.1; add ExceptionlÉ,4 to read as follows:

Exceptions:
1. through 3. {No change.}

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code
25



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Govemments

4. Where alternate means or methods are submitted to and approved bv the Buildinq and
Fire Officials.

(Reason: Ihrs base IBC provision applies to all grandstands and bleachers and does not differentiate
between open air grandstands & bleachers, smaller, less complex grandstands and bleachers and or
movable/non-fixed grandstands and bleachers. The new exception permits the AHJ to be presented with
alternate means or methods that take into consideration these differentiators that are unique to the

and/or

**Secfion 1032.2; change to read as follows:

1032.2 Reliability. Required exrT accesses, exifs and exit discharges shall be continuously maintained
free from obstructions or impediments to full instant use in the case of fire or other emergency where the
building area served by the means ef egress is eeeupied. An exrT or exff passageway shall not be used for
any purpose that interferes with a means of egress.

(Reason: Maintain legacy levels of protection and long-standing regional practice, and provide firefighter

**Secfíon 1103.3; add sentence to end of paragraph as follows:

Provide emerqencv siqnaqe as required bv Section 604.4.

(Reason: This signage to avoid elevators in a fire emergency is critical to life safety justifying the
retroactive

**Secfion 1103.5.1; add sentence to read as follows:

Fire sorinkler svstem installation shall be completed within 24 months from date of notification bv the fire
code official.

(Reason: Regional consistency of this retroactive requirement to allow business owners adequate time to
to accommodate the cost of the fire

**Secfion 1103.5.6; add to read as follows:

1103.5.6 Sprav Booths and Rooms. Existinq sprav booths and sprav rooms shall be orotected bv an
aoproved automatic fire-extinquishinq svstem in accordance with Section 2404.

(Reason: Consisfenf with amendment to IFC 2404, and long-standing regional requirement to protect this
hazardous

**Section 1103.7.7: add to read as follows:

1103.7.7 Fire Alarm Svstem Desiqn Standards. Where an existinq fire alarm svstem is upqraded or
replaced. the devices shall be addressable. Fire alarm svstems utilizinq more than 20 smoke and/or heat
detectors shall have analoq initiatinq devices.

Exception: Existinq systems need not complv unless the total buildinq. or fire alarm system, remodel
or exoansion exceeds 30% of the buildinq. When cumulative buildinq, or fire alarm svstem. remodel
or expansion initiated after the date of original fire alarm panel installation exceeds 50% of the

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

26



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

buildinq, or fire alarm svstem, the fire alarm svstem must complv within 18 months of permit
application.

(Reason.'Io assisf responding personnel in locating the emergency.event and provide clarity as to
of work that results in a to the entire fire alarm

***Secúion 1203; change and add to read as follows:

1203.1.1{No change.}
1203.1.2 {No change.}
1203.1.9 lnstallation. Emergency power systems and standby power systems shall be installed in
accordance with the lnternational Building Code, NFPA 70, NFPA 110 and NFPA 111. Existinq
installations shall be maintained in accordance with the oriqinal aoproval. except as specified in
Chapter 11.
1203.1.4 {No change.}
1203.1.5 Load Duration. Emergency power systems and standby power systems shall be designed to
provide the required power for a minimum duration of 2 hours without being refueled or recharged, unless
specified othenivise in this code.

Exception: Where the svstem is supplied with natural qas from a utility orovider and is
aporoved.

1203.1.6 through 1203.1.9 (No changes to these sections.)
1203.1.10 Critical Operations Power Svstems (COPS). For Critical Ooerations Power Svstems
necessary to maintain continuous power suoplv to facilities or parts of facilities that require continuous
operation for the reasons of public safety. emeroencv manaqement, national security. or business
continuity, see NFPA 70.
1203.2 Where Required. Emergency and standby power systems shall be provided where required by
Sections 1203.2.1 through 1203.2.ßre or elsewhere identified in this code or any other referenced code.
1203.2.1 through 1203.2.3 {No change.}
1203.2.4 Emergency Voice/alarm Gommunications Systems. Emergency power shall be provided for
emergency voice/alarm communications systems in the followinq occupancies, or as specified elsewhere
in this code, as required in Section 907.5.2.2.5. The system shall be capable of powering the required
load for a duration of not less than 24 hours, as required in NFPA 72.

Covered and Open Malls, Section 907.2.20 and 914.2
Group A Occupancies. Sections 907.2.1 and 907.5.2.2
Special Amusement Areas. Section 907.2.12 and 914.7
Hiqh-rise Buildings, Section 907.2.13 and 914.3
Atriums. Sectíon 907.2.14 and 914.4
Deep Underqround Buildinqs. Section 907.2.19 and 914.5

1203.2.5 through 1203.2.14 {No change.}
1203.2.15 Means of Egress lllumination. Emergency power shall be provided for means of egress
illumination in accordance with Sections 1008.3 and 1 104.5.1 . (90 minutes)
'|'203.2.16 Membrane Structures. Emergencv power shall be provided for exft signs in temporary tents
and membrane structures in accordance with Section 3103.12.6. (90 minutes) Standby power shall be
provided for auxiliary inflation systems in permanent membrane structures in accordance with Section
2702 of the International Building Code. (4 hours) Auxiliary inflation systems shall be provided in
temporary air-supported and air-inflated membrane structures in accordance with section 3103.10.4.
1203.2.17 {No change.}
1203.2.18 Smoke Control Systems. Standby power shall be provided for smoke control systems in the
followinq occupancies, or as specified elsewhere in this code, as required in Section 909.1 1:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

27



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

Atriums. lnternationat Buildinq Code. Section 404.7
Underoround Buildinos, /nfernafional Buldrnq Code. Section 405.g
Group l-3. International Buildina Code. Section 409.4.2
Slaqes. lnternational Buildinq Code. Seclion 410
Soecial Amusemelrt Areas las apolicable to Group A's). /nfernaflonal Buldrno Code. Section 411
Smoke Protected Seatino, Section 1030.6.2

1203.2.19 {No change.}
1-203-2.20 Covered alC,9pen Mall Buildinqs. Emerqencv power shall be provided in accordance with
Section 907.2.20 and 914.2.
1203'2.21 Airport Traffic Control Towers. A standbv oower svstem shall be orovided in airport traffic
control towers more th?n 65 ft. in heiqht. Power shall be orovided to the followirlo equiprnent

1. Pressurization equipment. mechanical equipment and liqhtinS
2. Elevator operatinq equioment.
3. Fire alarm and smoke detection systems.

1203.2.22 Smokeproof Fnclosures and Stair Pressurization Alternative. Standbv power shall be
Q,rovided for smokeproof enclosures. stair pressurization alternative
detection systems as required by the /nfernaflonal Bulldlng Code. Section 9092072.
1203.2.?3 Elev?tor Pressgrization. Standbv oower shail be provided foiõGvãor oressurizat¡on system
as required bv the lnternational Buildinq Code. Section g0g.21.5.
l?03.2.?4.Eliminafion of .Smgke Daqpers in Shaft Penetrations. Standbv power shall be provided
when eliminatinq the smoke dampers in ducts oenetrating shafts in a
Buídrnq Code. Section 717.5.3, exception 2.3.
1203.2.25 Çommon Fxhaust gvqtems for Clothes Drvers. Standbv power shall be provided for
Çommon exhaust svstems for clothes drvers located in multistorv structures in accordãnce witfr the
International Mechanical Code. Section S04.11.lIem T.

J203.2.26 Means of Eqr.esq lllumination in Existinq Buildinqs. Emeroencv power shall be provided
for means of eoress illumination in accordance with Sect¡on 1 104.5 w
(90 minutes in l-2, 60 minutes elsewhere.)
1203.3 through 1203.6 {No change.}

(Reason: These amendments were moved from chapter 6, due to retocation of the published secfions fo
this new Chapter 12 in the past edition of the code and have now been updated for this edition. Ihese
provisions provide a list to complete and match that throughout the codes. The only additionat
requirements are the reference fo GOPS in NFpA 70, and the specified Energy time duration. Other

are a reference to a code that

**Secfion 2304.1; change to read as follows:

2304-1 Supervision of Dispensing. The dispensing of fuel at motor fuel-dispensing facilities shall be
eenduêted by a qualified attendant er shall be under the supervisien ef a qualified attendant at all t¡mes er
shall-åe in accordance witn @

1. Conducted bv a qualified attendant: and/or.
2. Shall be under the suoervisíon of a oualified attendant: and/or
3. Shall be an unattended self-service facilitv in accordance with Section 2304.3.

At anv time the qualified attendant of item Number 1 or 2 above is not present, such operations shall be
considered as an unattended self-service facility and shall also comply with Section 2304i.

(Reason: Allows a facility to apply the attended and unattended requirements of the code when both are
potential ly appl icable.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

28



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

**Secfion 2401.2; delete this section in its entirety,

(Reason: This section eliminates such booths from all compliance with Chapter 24 including, but not
limited to: size, ventilation, fire protection, construction, etc. lf the product utilized is changed to a more
flammable substance, the lack of compliance with Chapter 15 could result in significant fire or deflagration
and life

**Secfion 3103.3.1; delete this section in its entirety

(Reason: This section requires a fire sprinkler system to be installed in temporary tents and membrane
structures, which is not a reasonable or enforceable requirement for a temporary use. A fire watch or fire
alarm is a more advisable for such that are tn

**Table 3206.2, footnote h; change text to read as follows:

h.N€+-+eqü#ed-Where storage areas are protected by either early suppression fast response (ESFR)
sprinkler systems or control mode special application sprinklers with a response time index of 50 (m .
s) 112 or less that are listed to control a fire in the stored commodities with 12 or fewer sprinklers,
installed in accordance with NFPA 13, manual smoke and heat vents or manuallv activated
enqineered mechanical smoke exhaust svstems shall be required within these areas.

(Reason; Allows the fire department to control the smoke and heat during and after a fire event, while
ensuring proper operation of the sprinkler protection provided. Also, gives an alternative to smoke and
heat

**Table 3206.2; add footnote j to row titled 'High Hazard' and 'Greater than 300,000' to read as
follows:

i. Hiqh hazard hiqh-piled storaqe areas shall not exceed 500.000 square feet. A 2-hour fire wall
constructed in accordance with Section 706 of the /nfernafional Buldlno Code shall be used to divide
hiqh-piled storaqe exceedinq 500,000 square feet in area.

(Reason: Ih,s,'s a long-standing legacy requirement and provides passive protection for extremely large
buildings where it would be otherwise impossible to control the spread of fire without the fire wall in place
in an uncontrolled fire event, which is much more likely in high hazard commodities, such as fires,
flammable liquids, expanded plasfics, efc.)

***Secfion 3311.1 ; change to read as follows:

Section 3311.1 Required access. Approved vehicle access for firefighting and emerqencv response
shall be provided to all construction or demolition sites. Vehicle access shall be provided to within +0e 50
feet (3048O 15 240 mm) of temporary or permanent fire department connections. Vehicle access shall be
provided by either temporary or permanent roads, capable of supporting vehicle loading under all weather
conditions. Vehicle access shall be maintained until permanent fire apparatus access roads are available.
When fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed for any structure or development, access
shall be approved prior to the time which construction has proqressed beyond comoletion of the
foundation of anv structure. Whenever the connection is not visible to approachinq fire apparatus, the fire
deoartment connection shall be indicated by an approyed siqn.

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

29



North Gentral Texas
Councll of Govemments

(Reason: lmproves access to the FDC where required, as well as coordinates with the timing of
installation amendment from Section 501

**Secfion 5601 .1.3; change to read as follows:

5601.1.3 Fireworks. The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling, and use of fireworks are
prohibited.

Exceptions:

1. Onlv when approved for fireworks displavs, the storage and handling of fireworks as allowed
in Section 5604 and 5608.

$.â The use of fireworks for approved fireworks displays as allowed in Section 5608.
... {Delete remainder of text.}

(Reason: Resfrrcfs fireworks to approved displays only, which is consisfenf with regional practice. Such rs
intended to help protect property owners and individuals from unintentional fireworks fires within the
jurisdiction, as well as to help protect individuals from fireworks injuries. lt is noted that there has been a
change in the State Law to a//ow possession of unopened fireworks in certain areas of the vehicle, and it
/s recommended that AHJ's familiarize themselves with the State Laws in this

**Secfion 5703.6; add sentence to end of paragraph to read as follows:

An approved method of secondarv containment shall be provided for underqround tank and pipino
systems.

(Reason: lncreased protection in response to underground leak problems and remediation difficulty in
Coordinates with TCEQ

**Secfion 5704.2.11.4; change to read as follows:

5704.2.11.4 Leak Prevention. Leak prevention for underground tanks shall comply with Sections
5704.211.4.'l and€704211=42 Ihrouoh 5704.2.11.4.3. An approved method of secondary containment
shall be provided for underqround tank and pipinq svstems.

(Reason: lncreased protection in response to underground leak problems and remediation difficulty in
Coordinates with

**Secúion 5704.2.11.4.2; change to read as follows:

5704.2.11.4.2 Leak Detection. Underground storage tank systems shall be provided with an approved
method of leak detection from any component of the system that is desígned and installed in accordance
with NFPA 30 and as specified in Section 5704.2.11.4.3.

Reference to IFC Secflon 5704.2.11.4.3 amendment

**Secúion 5704.2.11.4.3; add to read as follows:

5704.2.11.4.3 Observation Wells. Approved samplino tubes of a minimum 4 inches in diameter shall be
installed in the backfill material of each underqround flammable or combustible liquid storaqe tank. The

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

30



North Central Texas
Counc¡l of Governments

tubes shall extend from a ooint 12 inches below the averaqe qrade of the excavation to qround level and
shall be provided with suitable surface access caps. Each tank site shall orovide a samplinq tube at the
corners of the excavation with a minimum of 4 tubes. Samplinq tubes shall be placed in the product line
excavation within 10 feet of the tank excavation and one eveîl 50 feet routed alonq product lines towards
the dispensers, a minimum of two are required.

(Reason: Provides an economical means of checking potential leaks at each tank site. This is long-
sta nd i n g reg io n a I p ractice. )

**Secfion 5707.4; add paragraph to read as follows:

Mobile fuelinq sites shall be restricted to commercial. industrial. qovernmental. or manufacturinq. where
the oarkino area havino such ooerations is orimarilv intended for emolovee vehicles. Mobile fuelino shall
be conducted for fleet fuelinq or employee vehicles only. not the qeneral public. Commercial sites shall
be restricted to office-t!¡pe or similar occupancies that are not primarily intended for use by the public.

(Reason: The general public does not expect a hazardous operation to be occurring in a typical parking
lot or for a fuel truck to be traversing such parking lot, temporarily fueling a vehicle, and moving on to the
next area in the parking lot to fuel the next vehicle. Vehicular accidents occur in parking lots on a regular
basis, but the presence of a fuel truck, especially one in the process of fueling a vehicle with gasoline,
greatly adds to the potential risk involved in such accidents. By restricting such operations to the
occupancies in question, the employees of the busrness may be adequately notified to expect such
operations to occur in the parking lot.)

**Secflon 6103.2.1.8; add to read as follows:

6103.2.1.8 Jewelrv Repair. Dental Labs and Similar Occupancies. Where natural qas service is not
available, portable LP-Gas containers are allowed to be used to supplv approved torch assemblies or
similar apoliances. Such containers shall not exceed 20-pound (9.0 ko) water capacitv. Aoqreoate
capacitv shall not exceed 60-pound (27.2 kq) water capacitv. Each device shall be separated from other
containers bv a distance of not less than 20 feet.

(Reason: To provide a consistent and reasonable means of regulating the use of portable LP-Gas
containers in these situations. Reduces the hazard presented by portable containers when natural gas rs
already available. Please note that current State Law does not allow for the enforcement of any rules
more stringent than that adopted by the Sfafe, so this amendment is only applicable as to the extent
allowed by that State Law.)

**Secfion 6104.2; add Exception 2. to read as follows:

Exceptions:

1. {exísting text unchanged}

2. Except as permitted in Sections 308 and 6'104.3.3, LP-qas containers are not permitted ín
residential areas.

(Reason: To provide a consistent and reasonable means of regulating the use LP-Gas containers.
Reduces the hazard presented by such containers when natural gas rs already available. References
regional amendment to IFC 6104.3.3. Please note that current State Law does not allow for the
enforcement of any rules more stringent than that adopted by the Sfafe, so this amendment is onty
applicable as to the extent allowed by that State Law.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021

2021 lnternational Fire Code

31



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

**Secfion 6104.3.3; add to read as follows:
6104.3.3 Spas. Pool Heaters. and Other Listed Devices. Where natural qas service is not available, an
LP-qas container is allowed to be used to supply spa and oool heaters or other listed devices. Such
container shall not exceed 25O-qallon water capacity per lot. See Table 6104.3 for location of containers.

Exception: Lots where LP-qas can be off-loaded wholly on the property where the tank is located
mav install up to 500 qallon above qround or 1.000 qallon underground approved containers.

(Reason: Allows for an alternate fuel source. Dwelling density must be considered and possibly factored
into zoning restrictions. Reduces the hazard presented by over-sized LP-Gas containers. Please note
that current State Law does not allow for the enforcement of any rules more stringent than that adopted

the so fhis amendment is as to the extent allowed that State Law

**Secfion 6107.4 and 6109.13; change to read as follows:

6107.4 Protecting Containers from Vehicles. Where exposed to vehicular damage due to proximity to
alleys, driveways or parking areas, LP-gas containers, regulators and piping shall be protected in
accordance with NFPA 58 Section 312.

6109.13 Protection of Containers. LP-gas containers shall be stored within a suitable enclosure or
otherwise protected against tampering. Vehicle impact protection shall be provided as required by Section
6107.4.

ine+s
where-the eentainers are kept in leekablerventilated eabinets ef metal eenstruetien,

(Reason: NFPA 58 does not provide substantial physical protection [it allows raised sidewalks, fencing,
ditches, parking bumpers as 'vehicle barrier protection'l of the containe(s) from vehicular impact as is
required and has been required historicatty, as per SecÍbn 312, i.e. bottard protection. Further, the
exception to Section 6109.13 would allow for portable containers in ventilated metal cabinets to not
require any physical protection whatsoever from vehicular impact, regardless of the location of the
containers. Please note that current State Law does not allow for the enforcement of any rules more
stringent than that adopted by the Sfafe, so this amendment is only applicable as to the extent allowed by
that State

**{Appendix B Fire-FÍow Requirements For Buildings amendments}

**Table 8105.2; change footnote a. to read as follows:

a. The reduced fire-flow shall be not less 1¡¿¡ {r0O0 1.500 gallons per minute.

(Reason: The minimum fire-flow of 1,500 gpm for other than one- and two- family dwellings has existed
since the 2000 edition of the lFC, as well as the Uniform Fire Code before that. Little to no technical

justification was provided for the proposed code change at the code hearings. The board believes that the
already-allowed 75 percent reduction in required fire-flow for the provision of sprinkler protection is
already a significant trade-off. The minimum 1,500 gpm is not believed to be overly stringent for the vast
majority of public water works sysfems in this region, especially since it has exisfed as fhe requirement for
so many years. Further, the continued progression of trading off more and more requirements in the
codes for the provision of sprinkler protection has made fhese sysfems extremely operation-critical to the
safety of the occupants and properties in question. ln other words, should the sprinkler sysfem fail for
any reason, the fire-flow requirements drastically increase from that anticipated with a sprinkler-controlled
fire scenario.)

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

32



North Central Texas

**"{Appendix D Fire Apparatus Access Roads amendments}

**"Secfíon Dl02.1 ; change to read as follows:

D102.1Access and loading. Facilities, buildings or portions of buildings hereafter constructed shall be
accessible to fire department apparatus by way of an approved fire apparatus access road with an
asphalt, concrete or other approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed load of fire
apparatus weighing up to 75SOO 85,000 pounds (34450 38 556 kg).

(Reason: To address the current size of fire trucks in use - figure derived from DOT requirements for
waiver of vehicle exceeding such weight and from current maximum weights of fire trucks being
purchased by jurisdictions in North Texas.)

***Secúíon D103.4; change to read as follows:

D103.4 Dead ends. Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet (45 720 mm)shall be
provided with width and turnaround provisions in accordance with Table D103.4.

R Eeu r RE M E N rs Fo R r r^J+t*b1?;Êïl ro*o, u s Ac c E ss RoADs

For Sl: I foot = 304.8 mm.

(Reason: Ref/ecfs current increased apparatus access roadway widths as indicated in the recommended
amendment to 503.2.1.)

"**Secfíon D103.5; change ltem I to read as follows:

D103.5 Fire apparatus access road gates. Gates securing the fire apparatus access roads shall
comply with all of the following criteria:

1 . Where a single gate is provided, the gate width shall be not less than 24 24 Íeet (6096 7315.2
mm). Where a fire apparatus road consists of a divided roadway, the gate width shall be not
less than 12feet (3658 mm).

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

LENGTH

(feet)

WIDTH

(feet)
TURNAROUNDS REQUIRED

l-150 æ24 None required

151-500 æ24 12O-foot Hammerhead, 60-foot "Y" or 96-foot diameter cul-de-sac in accordance
øith Figure D103.1

501-750 26
12O-foot Hammerhead, 60-foot "Y" or g6-foot diameter cul-de-sac in accordance
ruith Figure D103.1

Over 750 Special approval required

33



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

(Reason: Ref/ecfs current increased apparatus access roadway widths as indicated in the recommended
amendment to 503.2.1.)

"**Secfíon D103.6; change to read as follows:

Dl 03.6 Signs-. Mark¡nq. Stripinq
be provided for fire apparatus access roads to identifu such roads or prohibit the obstruction thereof.
Strioinq. sions and other markinqs shall be maintained in a clean and leoible condition at all times and be
replaced or repaired when necessarv to provide adeouate visibilitv.

ll) Striping - Fire apoaratus access roads shall be continuously marked by painted lines of red traffic
oaint six inches 16") in wiclth to show the bounda ries of the lane. The words 'NO PARKING FIRE
LANE" or "FIRE LANE NO PARKING" shall appear in four inch (4") white letters at 25 feet intervals on
the red border markinos alono both sides of the fire lanes. Where a curb is available. the strioino
shall be on the vertical face of the curb.
(21 Siqns - Signs shall read "NO PARKING FIRE LANE" or "FIRE LANE NO PARKING" and shall be
12" wide and 18" hiqh (See Fiqure D103.6). Siqns shall have red letters on a white reflective
backqround. usinq not less than 2" letterinq. Siqns shall be oermanentlv affixed to a stationary post
and the bottom of the siqn shall be six feet, six inches (6'6") above finished orade. Sions shall be
spaced not more than fiftv feet (50') apart alonq both sides of the fire lane. Siqns mav be installed on
permanent buildinqs or walls or as aoproved bv the Fire Chief.

SIGN TYPE ''A' SIGN TYFE'C' SIGN TYPE "D"

18"

l2' 1v '12*Itr -t t--
FIGURE DI03.6

FIRE LANE SIGNS

(Reason: Ref/ecfs current markings for apparatus access roadways as indicated in the recommended
amendment to Section 503.3)

"**Secfíon D103.6.1 and D103.6.2; delete secfions asfollows:

mm),
Ð1046-2 Reads mere than-2èfeeLinwidth- Flre /ane signs as speeified in Seetien Ð103,6 shall be

ds mere than 26 feet wide (7925 mm) andless than 32

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

HO
PåRKII¡G

FIRE I.å}¡E

+

ito
PARI(IT{G

FIRE I¡I{E

r+

ilo
FARKII{G

FIRE LA!{E

34



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

+eet+ide-(9754-mm}

(Reason: Ref/ecfs current markings for apparatus access roadways as indicated in the recommended
amendmentto 503.3 and Dl03.6, which requiresthe signage on both srdes of thefire apparatus access
roads, regardless of width)

***Secfion D104.3; change to read as follows:
D104.3 Remoteness. Where two fire apparatus access roads are required, they shall be placed a
distance apart equal to not less than one half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of
the lot or area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses. or as approyed by the fire
code official.

(Reason: To provide some additional flexibility to the fire code official on the location of the two fire
apparatus access roads.)

***Secfíon DI05.3; change to read as follows:

D105.3 Proximity to building. Unless otheruvise approved by the fire code official. one or more of the
required access routes meeting this condition shall be located not less than 15 feet (4572 mm) and not
greater than 30 feet (9144 mm) from the building, and shall be positioned parallel to one entire side of the
building. The side of the building on which the aerial fire apparatus access road is positioned shall
be approved by the fire code official.

(Reason: To provide some additional flexibility to the fire code official on the location of the aerial fire
apparatus access roads.)

***Secfíon Dl06.3; change to read as follows:

D106.3 Remoteness. Where two fire apparatus access roads are required, they shall be placed a
distance apart equal to not less than one-half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of
the property or area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses, or as approyed bv the
fire code official.

(Reason: To provide some additional flexibility to the fire code official on the location of the two fire
apparatus access roads.)

**|Secúion D107.2; change to read as follows:

D107.2 Remoteness. Where two fire apparatus access roads are required, they shall be placed a
distance apart equal to not less than one-half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of
the property or area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses. or as approyed bv the
fire code official.

(Reason: To provide some additional flexibility to the fire code official on the location of the two fire
apparatus access roads.)

"**{Appendix L Requirements For Fire Fighter Air Replenishmenf Sysúems amendments}

***Secfion L101 .1 ; change to read as follows:

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

35



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

Section L101.1 Scope. Fire fighter air replenishment systems (FARS)shall be provided in accordance
with this appendix rn new buildinqs wh

'1. Any new buildinq 5 or more stories in heiqht.
2. Anv new buildinq with 2 or more floors below qrade.
3. Any new buildinq 500.000 square feet or more in size.

Each stairwell shall have a supply riser. SCBA fill panels shall be located on odd numbered floors
commencinq at the first level in the primary stairwell and on even numbered floors commencinq at level 2
in the remaininq stairwells. Fill panels in buildinqs over 500,000 square feet shall be located adiacent to
each standpipe connection.
The adepting erdinanee shall speeify building eharaeteristies er speeial hazards that establish threshelds
triggering a requirernent ferthe installatien ef a FARS, The requi+ement shall be based en the fire

eratiens,
ffi

iens

@ing-4f,
@
'1-Availaþility ef a fire-departrnenlbreathing air replenishment vehiele=

(Reason: Breathing air is crítical for firefighting operations. Historically, fire departments have supplied air
bottles by manually transporting air bottles up stairways or across long distances in a building, which is an
extraordinarily intensive process and takes firefighters away from their primary mrssion of rescue and
firefighting. Ihe FÁRS technology in Appendix L exr'sfs to address fhls lssue usíng in-building air supply
sysferns. Many jurisdictions in North Texas and across the country have already adopted this Appendix
and are enforcing and installing fhese sysfems to improve the life safety of firefighters and enhance theír
firefighting capabilities in an emergency incídent, which is one of the reasons for recommendíng this
Appendix for adoption - to ensure regional consistency, as well as to improve mutual emergency aid
among jurisdictions in North Texas.)

***Secfíon L104.13.1; delete thís sectíon ín its entirety.

(Reason: The amendment to Section Ll01.1 above addresses the location criteria for SCBA fill panels.)

***Secfíon L104.14; add paragraph to read as follows:

The external mobile air connection shall be located with approved separation from the Fire
Department Connection (FDC) to allow functionality of both devices bv first responders: shall be
visible from and within 50 ft. of a fire apparatus access road alonq an unobstructed path; and
shall be located in an approved siqned, secured cabinet.

(Reason: To accommodate the needs of first responders to be able to locate and utilize the required
connection to ensure air a to this similar to the of FDC's.

END

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Fire Code

36



North Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

Recommended Amendments to the
2021 lnternat¡onal Mechan ical Code

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 lnternational Mechanical Code (lMC) are
hereby amended as follows: Standard type is text from the lMC. Underlined tvpe is text inserted. tined
threugh type is deleted text frsm the lMG, A double asterisk at the beginning of a section identifies an
amendment carried over from the 2018 edition of the code and a triple asterisk identifies a new or revised
amendment of lhe 2021 edition of the code.

Note: Historically the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) has limited Chapter I
amendments in order to allow each city to insert their local policies and procedures. We now have
suggested certain items to be brought to the attention of cities considering adoption of the code that may
be of concern to several jurisdictions. lt is still intended to be discretionary to each city to determine
which Chapter I amendments to include.

***Secfíon 102.8; change to read as follows:

102.8 Referenced Codes and Standards. The codes and standards referenced herein shall be those
that are listed in Chapter 15 and such codes, when specifically adopted. and standards shall be
considered part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of each such reference. Where
differences occur between provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the provisions of this
code shall apply. Whenever amendments have been adopted to the referenced codes and standards.
each reference to said code and standard shall be considered to reference the adopted amendments.
Anv reference to NFPA 70 shall mean the National Electrical Code as adopted.

(Reason: Legal wording to recognize locally adopted codes and amendments adopted with referenced

**Secfíon 306.5; change to read as follows:

306.5 Equipment and Appliances on Roofs or Elevated Structures. Where equipment requiring
access or appliances are located on an elevated structure or the roof of a building such that personnel will
have to climb higher than 16 feet (4877 mm) above grade to access, an interior or exterior means of
access shall be provided. Exterior ladders providino roof access need not extend closer than 12 feet
(2438 mm) to the finish qrade or floor level below and shall extend to the eoulprnenf and apoliances' level
service space. Such access shall . . . {bulk of section to read the same}. . . on roofs having a slope
greater than four units vertical in 12 units horizontal (33-percent slope). ... {remainder of text unchanged}.

(Reason: To assure access to roof appliances and provide options to not extend exterior ladders to
Gonsr.sfenf with IFGC amendments

**Secfíon 306.5.1 ; change to read as follows:

306.5.1 Sloped Roofs. Where appliances, equipment, fans or other components that require service are
installed on a roof having a slope of three units vertical in 12 units horizontal (25-percent slope) or greater
and having an edge more than 30 inches (762 mm) above grade at such edge, a catwalk at least 16
inches in width with substantial cleats spaced not more than 16 inches aoart shall be orovided from the
roof access to a level olatform at the appliance. The level platform shall be provided on each side of the
appliance to which access is required for service, repair or maintenance. The platform shall be not less

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

1 Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Mechanical Code



than 30 inches (762 mm) in any dimension and shall be provided with guards. The guards shall extend
not less lhan 42 inches (1067 mm) above the platform, shall be constructed so as to prevent the passage
of a 21-inch-diameter (533 mm) sphere and shall comply with the loading requirements for guards
specified inlhe lnternationalBuilding Code...{remainderof textunchanged}.

Io assure safe access to roof Consistent with IFGC amendments

**Secfion 501.3; add an exception to read as follows:

501.3 Exhaust Discharge. The air removed by every mechanical exhaust system shall be discharged
outdoors at a point where it will not cause a public nuisance and not less than the distances specified in
Section 501.3.1. The air shall be discharged to a location from which it cannot again be readily drawn in
by a ventilating system. Air shall not be exhausted into an attic, crawl space, or be directed onto
walkways.

Exceptions:

1. Whole-house ventilation-type attic fans shall be permitted to discharge into the attic space of
dwelling units having private attics.

2. Commercial cooking recirculating systems.

3. Where installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and where mechanical or
natural ventilation is otherwise provided in accordance with Chapter 4, listed and labeled
domestic ductless range hoods shall not be required to discharge to the outdoors.

4. Toilet room exhaust ducts mav terminate in a warehouse or shoo area when infiltration of
outside air is present.

Provide a reasonable alternative in areas where a volume of outside air is

END

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

2 Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Mechanical Code



North Gentral Texas
Council of Governments

Recommended Amendments to the
2020 National Electrical Gode

North Central Texas Council of Governments

The following articles, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2020 National Electrical Code (NEC)
are hereby amended as follows: Standard type is text from the NEC. Highlighted with gray
shading is text inserted. tined threugh type is deleted text frem NEè A double asterisk (.;) at
the beginning of an article identifies an amendment carried over from the 2017 edition of the
code and a triple asterisk (***) identifies a new or revised amendment with the 2020 code.

**Article 100; add the following to definitions:

Engineering Supervision. Supervision by a Qualified State of Texas Licensed Professional
Engineer engaged primarily Ín the design or maintenance of electrical installations;

IREASON FOR CHANGE: To better define the qualifications for engineering supervision. This
term is used twenty-four times in the 2017 National Electrical Code./

"*Article 110.2; change the following to read as follows:

110.2 Approval. The conductors and equipment required or permitted by this Code shall be
acceptable only if approved. Approval of equipment may be evident by listing and labeling of
equipment by a Nationally Recognized Testing Lab (NRTL) with a certification mark of that
laboratory or a qualified third party inspection agency or a field evaluation by a Field Evaluation
Body accredited by either the lnternatíonal Code Council lnternationalAccreditation Service
4C354 orANS| NationalAccreditation Board prograrns.and approved by the AHJ.

Exception: Unlisted equipment that is relocated to another location within a jurisdiction or is field
modified is subject to the approval by the AHJ. This approval may be by a field evaluation by a
NRII or qualified third-party inspection agency or a field evaluatíon by a Field Evaluation Body
accredited by either: the ICC IAS 4C354 or ANAB programs 'a nd approved by the AHJ

rhe+H&

North Central Texas Councit of Governments 1

2020 NEC Regional Amendments
NCTCOG Executive Board approval: November 19, 2020



lnformational Note No. 1: See 90.7, Examination of Equipment for Safety, and 110.3,
Examination, ldentification, lnstallation, and Use of Equipment. See definitions of Approved,
ldentified, Labeled, and Lrsfed.

lnformational Note No. 2: Manufacturer's self-certification of equipment may not necessarily
comply with U.S. product safety standards as certified by an NRTL.

lnformational Note No. 3: National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 790 and 791 provide an
example of an approved method for qualiffing a lhird-party lnspection agency.

IREASON FOR CHANGE: To add clart$¡ and províde more posîtive optionsfor enforcement and
approval of unlisted equipment)

***Article 400.8 Field ldentification Required: Change the following to read as follows

4O8.4 Field ldentification Required.

(A) Circuit Directory or Circuit ldentification.
Every circuit and circuit modification shall be legibly identified as to its clear, evident, and
specific purpose or use. The identification shall include an approved degree of detail that allows
each circuit to be distinguished from all others. Spare positions that contaln unused overcurrent
devices or switches shall be described accordingly. The identification shall be included in a
circuit directory that is located on the face or inside ofl or in an approved location adjacent and
permanent[y atfíxed the panel door in the case of a panelboard and at each switch or circuit
breaker in a switchboard or switchgear. No circuit shall be described in a manner that depends
on transient conditions of occupancy.

FOR CHANGE: To add clarity and pravíde rnore positîve optíons for en:forcement and

***Article 410.118: Change the following to read as follows

4'10.118 Access to other boxes.
Luminaires recessed in the ceilings, floors, or walls shall not be used to access outlet, pull, or
junction boxes or conduit bodies, unless the box or conduit body is an integral part of the listed
luminaire.

REASO/V FAR CÍIANGE: To add c[aríty and provide more posílive optíons for enforcement and
approval. This wíll allaw access fo ôoxes not integralwith the luminaíre. This measurement
alígns with the lirnited access above a lay-inceilíng measurenentin 1'10.26(AX4).
)

**"Article 422.31 B: Change the following to read as follows

North Centrat Texas Council of Governments 2
2020 NEC Regional Amendments
NCTCOG Executive Board approval: November 19, 2020



422.31 B Appliances Rated over 300 Volt-Amperes

(B) Appliances Rated over 300 Volt-Amperes. For permanently connected appliances rated over
300 volt-amperes, the branch-circuit switch or circuit breaker shall be permitted to serve as the
disconnecting means where the switch or circuit breaker is within sight from and is readily
accessible to the appliance it serves or is capable of being locked in the open posítion in
accordance with 110.25 and is readily accessible to the appliance it serves.

lnformational Note No. l: For appliances employing unit switches, see 422.34.

fnforrnational Note No 2: The following means of access are considered to constitute readily
accessible for this code change when conforming to the additional access requirements of the I

Cod,es;
(1) A permanent staír;
(2t A pull-down stair with a minimum 300 lb. (136 kg) capacity.
(3) An access door from an upper floor level.

REÁSON FOR CHANGE: To add clarity and provide more positive optíons for enforcement and
approval)

**Article 500.8 (A) (3); change to read as follows:

500.8 Equipment.
Articles 500 through 504 require equipment construction and installation that ensure safe
performance under conditions of proper use and maintenance.

lnformational Note No. 1: lt is important that inspection authorities and users exercise more than
ordinary care with regard to installation and maintenance.

lnformational Note No. 2: Since there is no consistent relationship between explosíon properties
and ignition temperature, the two are independent requirements.

lnformational Note No. 3: Low ambient conditions require special consideration. Explosion proof
or dust-ignition proof equipment may not be suitable for use at temperatures lower than -25"C
(-13"F) unless they are identified for low{emperature service. However, at low ambient
temperatures, flammable concentrations of vapors may not exist in a location classified as Class
l, Division 1 at normal ambient temperature.

(A) Suitability. Suitability of identified equipment shall be determined by one of the following:

(1) Equipment listing or labeling;
(2) Evidence of equipment evaluation from a qualified testing laboratory or inspection

agency concerned with product evaluation; or,
(3) Evidence acceptable to the authority having jurisdiction such as a manufacturer's self-

evaluationoranengíneeringjudgmentsignedand
sealed by a gualifìed Ræistered licensed Professional Engineer in the State of Texas.

lnformational Note: Additional documentation for equipment may include certificates
demonstrating compliance with applicable equipment standards, indicating special conditions of
use, and other pertinent information.

North Centrat Texas Council of Governments 3
2020 NEC Regional Amendments
NÇTCOG Executive Board approval: November 19, 2020



IREASON FOR CHANGE: Carry over from prevíous amendment with change to better define
the qu alifications for an engíneering j udg ment.)

*"Article 505.7 (A) changed to read as follows:

505.7 Special Precaution.
Article 505 requires equipment construction and installation that ensures safe performance
under conditions of proper use and maintenance.

lnformational Note No. 1: lt is important that inspection authorities and users exercise more than
ordinary care with regard to the installation and maintenance of electrical equipment in
hazardous (classified) locations.

lnformational Note No. 2: Low ambient conditions require special consideration. Electrical
equipment depending on the protection techniques described by 505.S(A) may not be suitable
for use at temperatures lower than -20"C (-4'F) unless they are identified for use at lower
temperatures. However, at low ambient temperatures, flammable concentrations of vapors may
not exist in a location classified Class l, Zones 0, 1, or 2 at normal ambient temperature.

(A) lmplementation of Zone Classification System. Classification of areas, engineering
and design, selection of equipment and wiring methods, installation, and inspection shall
be performed by a qualified pers€ns eegistered licensed Professional Engineer in the
State of Texas.

IREASON FOR CHANGE: Carry over from previous amendment with change to better define
the qualifications for an engineering judgment.)

***Article 695.6 A 1: Change the following to read as follows

695.6 (A) Supply Gonductors.

(1) Services and On-Site Power Production Facilities.
Service conductors and conductors supplied by on-site power production facilities shall be
physically routed outside a building(s) and shall be installed as service-entrance conductors in
accordance with 230.6, 230.9, and Parts lll and lV of Article 230. Where supply conductors
cannot be physically routed outside of buildings, the conductors shall be permitted to be routed
through the building(s)where installed in accordance with
230.6(1) or (2).

ired te meet Zsg.s
$-eQ

IREASON FOR CHANGE: To add clarity and províde more posítive options for
enforcement and approval. All Fíre Pump rooms are nat Fire Rated as on all4 sides.
There are Fault Currents that could exceed 150,000-190,000 amps and protection of
fåese Seruice Conductorsis essenfia I and conflict wíth other codes specífícally
n0.7aØ)ft).)

North Central Texas Council of Governments 4
2020 NEC Regional Amendments
NCTCOG Executive Board approval: November 19, 2020



***Article 71.15 A: Change the following to read as follows

710.15 General

710.f 5(A) Supply Output.
Power supply to premises wiring systems fed by stand-alone or isolated microgrid power
sources shall be permitted te have less eapaeity than the ealeulated lead, The eapaeity ef the

the largest single utilizatien equipment eenneeted te-fþe system, Galeulated general lighting
lead have adequate capacity to r,neet the cafcu[ated

load in gccordance úith Article 220.

lnfermatienal Nete: Fer general use-leads the system eapaeity ean be ealeulated using the sum
ef the eapae¡ty ef the firm seurees; sueh as generaters and ESS inverters, Fer speeialty leads

eapaeity ean be ealeulated using the
PV er wind inverters; er the eembined eapaeiV ef beth firm

M

CÊ/Á/VCE: To add and províúe mor,e positíve options for enforcenent and,
would not be iequired to meet any load demanded

North Central Texas Council of Governments 5
2020 NEC Regional Amendments
NCTCOG Executive Board approval: November 19, 2020



North Central lexas
Councll of Govemments

Recommended Amendments to the
2021 lnternat¡onal Plumbing Gode

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 lnternational Plumbing Code are hereby
amended as follows: Standard type is text from the lPC. Underlined type is text inserted. tineC-threugh
@Adoubleasteriskatthebeginningofasectionidentifiesanamendment
carried over from the 2018 edition of the code and a triple asterisk identifies a new or revised amendment
with the 2021 edition of the code.

Note: Historically NCTCOG has limited Chapter I amendments in order to allow each city to insert their
local policies and procedures. We now have suggested certain items to be brought to the attention of
cities considering adoption of the code that may be of concern to several jurisdictions. lt is still intended
to be discretio to each to determine which C f amendments to include

***Table of Contents, Chapter 7, Section 713; change to read as follows:

714 713 Enoineered Gemputerized Drainage Design *7-12

Editorial to make with amendment to Section 714.1

***Secfion 102.8; change to read as follows:

102.8 Referenced codes and standards. The codes and standards referenced in thís code shall be
those that are listed in Chapter 15 and such codes, when specificallv adopted. and standards shall be
considered as part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of each such reference.
Where the differences occur between provisions of this code and the referenced standards, the
provisions of this code shall be the minimum requirements. Whenever amendments have been adopted
to the referenced codes and standards. each reference to said code and standard shall be considered to
reference the adopted amendments. Anv reference to NFPA 70 shall mean the National Electrical Code
as adopted.

(Reason: Legal wording to recognize locally adopted codes and amendments adopted with referenced
codes

***Secúíon 305; change to read as follows:

305.1 Protectlon against contact. Metallic piping, except for cast iron, ductile iron and galvanized steel,
shall not be placed in direct contact with steel framing members, concrete or cinder walls and floors or
other masonry. Metallic piping shall not be placed in direct contact with corrosive soil. Where sheathing is
used to prevent direct contact, the sheathing shall have a thickness of not less than 0.008 inch (8 mil)
(0.203 mm) and the sheathing shall be made of aooroved material plastie. Where sheathing protects
piping that penetrates concrete or masonry walls or floors, the sheathing shall be installed in a manner
that allows movement of the piping within the sheathing.

Allows for other materials to be

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

1 Approved July 2021
2021 lnternational Plumbing Code



**Section 305.4.1 ; changed to read as follows:

305.4.1 Sewer depth. Building sewers that eenneet te private sewage dispesal systerns shall be a
Building

sewers shall be a minimum of 12 inches (304 mm)below grade.

(Reason: Provides sewer depth that is common in this region. Deleted reference to private sewage
because a code is not in this

***Secfion 306.2.4; added to read as follows:

***306.2.4 Plastic sewer and DWV piping installation. Plastic sewer and DWV pioinq installed
underground shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions. Trench
width shall be controlled to not exceed the outside the pipe diameter plus 16 inches or in a trench which
has a controlled width equalto the nominaldiameter of the diameter of the pipinq multiplied by '1.25 plus
12 inches. The oipinq shall be bedded in 4 inches of oranularfilland then backfilled compactinq the side
fill in 6-inch lavers on each side of the pipinq. The comoaction shall be to minimum of 85 percent
standard proctor densitv and extend to a minimum of 6 inches above the too of the oioe.

To follow manufacturer backfill requirements and to be clear to out in the field

**Secúion 413.4; change to read as follows

413.4 Required location for floor drains Publie laundries and eentral washing faeilities. Floor
drains shall be installed in the followinq areas:

1. ln public laundries and in the central washing facilities of multiple family dwellings, the rooms
containing automatic clothes washers shall be provided with floor drains located to readily drain
the entire floor area. Such drains shall have a minimum outlet of not less than 3 inches (76 mm)
in diameter.

2. Commercial kitchens. ln lieu of floor drains in commercial kitchens. the Code Official may accept
floor sinks.

3. Public restrooms.

(Reason: To make more compatible with local health code practices.)

**Secúion 608.17.5; change to read as follows:

608.17.5 Gonnections to lawn irrigation systems.
The potable water supply to lawn irrigation systems shall be protected against backflow by an
atmospheric-type vacuum breaker, a pressure-type vacuum breaker, a double-check assembly or a
reduced pressure principal backflow preventer. A valve shall not be installed downstream from an
atmospheric vacuum breaker. Where chemicals are introduced into the system, the potable water supply
shall be protected against backflow by a reduced pressure principal backflow preventer.

(Reason: To recognize regional practices.)

Secúion 703.6; Delete

(Reason: not a standard practice in this region)
ïiEiì$SBF*.Ë¡r1#t' ¡?iffi

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

2 Approved July 2021
2021 lnlernational Plumbing Code



**Secfion 704.5; added to read as follows:

704.5 Single stack fittings. Sinqle stack fittinqs with internal baffle. PVC schedule 40 or cast-iron sinole
stack shall be desiqned bv a reoistered enqineer and comolv to a national recoqnized standard.

(Reason: to allow owners, installers, inspectors, and design professiona/s to ready identify product
markers to determine meet all standards

***Secfion 712.4.3; add Section 712.4.3 to read as follows:

712.4.3 Dual Pump Svstem. All sumps shall be automaticallv discharqed and. when in anv "oublic use"
occupancy where the sump serves more than 10 fixture units. shall be provided with dual pumps or
ejectors arranqed to function indeoendently in case of overload or mechanical failure. For storm drainaqe
sumos and pumpinq systems. see Section 1 I 13.

To address dual To reference for storm

**Secfion 713, 713.1; change to read as follows:

SECTION 713
ENGIN EERED G€$IPUIERIZEÐ DRAINAG E DESIGN

713.1 Design of drainage system. The sizing, design and layout of the drainage system shall be
pe+mitte¿ te-be-designed by a reqistered enoineer usinq approved ryuler design methods.

Code was too

**Secfion 903.1.1; change to read as follows:

@ 903.1.1 Roof extension unprotected. Open vent pipes that extend through a
roof shallterminate not less than six (6) inches (152 mm) above the roof. Where a reef is te be used fer

el< er similar purpeses, epen vent pipes
shall terminate net less thanlfeet (2134 mm) abeve the reef,

(Reason: To provide regional guideline on standard installation method for this area and address
refe re n ce n u m be r correcti o n.

*Section 1109; delete this section.

***Secfion 1202.1; delete Exceptions I and 2.

(Reason: State law already specffies that Med Gas sysfems must comply with NFPA 99.)

END

North Central Texas Council of Governments
Amendments

3 Approved July 2021

2021 lnlernational Plumbing Code



North Central Texas
Gouncll of Governments

Recommended Amendments to the
2021 lnlernational Energy Conservation Gode

And the energy provisions of the
2021 lnternational Residential Gode

North Central Texas Council of Governments Region
(Climate Zone2 & 3 of the IECC)

The following sections, paragraphs, and sentences of the 2021 lnternational Energy Conservation Code
(IECC) are hereby amended as follows: Standard type is text from the IECC. Underlíned tvpe is text
inserted.Adouble(**)asteriskatthebeginningofasection
identifies an amendment carried over from the 2018 edition of the code and a triple (***) asterisk identifies
a new or revised amendment with the 2021 code. Section numbers in parenthesis represent the
corresponding numbers of the energy provisions of the 2021 lnternational Residential Code for parallel
amendments.

2021IECC Provisions of the 2021 IRC

**€ecfion 105.2 Required lnspections; Changed numbering and to read as follows:

R105.2.1 Footíng and foundation inspection.
lnspections associated with footings and foundations shall veriñ7 compliance with the code as to R-value,
location, thickness, depth of burial and protection of insulation as required by the code
and approved plans and specifications.

RI 05.2.2 F raming and A!l_&!ü91, roug h-in inspection.
lnspections at framing and rough-in shall be made before application of interier finish insulation and shall
verify compliance with the code as to: types ef insulatien and eerrespending R values and their eerreet
leeatien and preper instillatien; feneetFation preperties sueh as U faeter and SHGG and preper instillatien;
air leakage controls as required by the code; and approved plans and specifications.

Rl 05. 2.3 I nsu lation and Fenestration rous h-in inspection.
lnspections at framinq and rouqh-in shall be made before application of interior finish and shall verifu
compliance with the code as to: types of insulation and corresponding R-values and their correct location
and oroper installation: fenestration orooerties such as U-factor and SHGC and oroper ínstallation.

R1 05.2.34 Plumbing rough-in inspection.
lnspections at plumbing rough-in shall verify compliance as required by the code and approved plans and
specifications as to types of insulation and corresponding R-values and protection and required controls.

R105.2.4ë Mechanical rough-in inspection.
lnspections at mechanical rough-in shall verify compliance as required by the code and approved plans
and specifications as to installed HVAC equipment type and size, required controls, system insulation and
corresponding R-value, system air leakage control, programmable thermostats, dampers, whole-house
ventilation, and minimum fan efficiency.

Exception: Systems serving multiple dwelling units shall be inspected in accordance with Section
c105.2.4.

R1 05.2.5A Final inspection.

North CentralTexas Council of
Governments Amendments

1 Approved October 2021
2021 lnlernational Energy Conservation Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

The building shall have a final inspection and shall not be occupied until approved. The final inspection
shall include verification of the installation of all required building systems, equipment and controls and
their proper operation and the required number of high-efficacy lamps and fixtures.

**Secfion UùAN02 General; add Section Cl02.1.2 and Rl02.1.2 (N1101.4.1) to read as follows:

C102.1.2 Alternative compliance. A buildinq certified by a national. state, or local accredited eneroy
efficiencv proqram and determined bv the Enerov Svstems Laboratorv to be in compliance with the
energy efficiencv requirements of this section may, at the option of the Code Off¡cial, be considered in
compliance. The United States Environmental Protection Aqencv's Enerqv Star Proqram certification of
enerqv code equivalencv shall be considered in compliance.

R1O2-1.2 lN1l01.4.ll Alternative comoliance A buildinq certified bv a national. state. or local
accredited enerqv efficiencv proqram and determined bv the Eneroy Svstems Laboratorv to be in
comoliance with the enerqy efficiencv requirements of this section mav, at the option of the Code Official.
be considered in compliance. The United States Environmental Protection Agencv's Eneroy Star
Prooram certification of enerqv code equivalencv shall be considered in comoliance. Reqardless of the
program or the path to comoliance, each 1- and 2-family dwellinq shall be tested for air and duct leakaqe
as prescribed in Section R402.4.1.2 (N1102.4.1.2) and R403.3.3 (N1103.3.3) respectively.

(Reason: This amendment is added to allow alternative compliance in accordance with Texas HB 1365,
79th Legislature. Codified in Chapter 388 Texas Building Energy Performance Standards: 5355.003(i).
The last sentence to Section R102.1.2 (N1101.4.1) was added to ensure that every house rs fesfedrn
accordance with the of the

Section R202 (N1101.6) Definitions; add the following definition:

**PROJECTION FACTOR. The ratio of the horizontal depth of the overhang, eave or permanently
attached shading device, divided by the distance measured vertically from the bottom of the fenestration
glazing to the underside of the overhang, eave or permanently attached shading device.

(Reason: The amendment to Section 402.3.2 (N1102.3.2) Glazed fenestration SHGC was proposed by
the TAB. ESL determined the proposal to be not /ess resfricfive than the 2015 IECC. This added
definition ls necessa4z as part of that amendment. The amendment will provide additional options for
SHGC selection

Section R202 (N1101.6) Definitions; add the following definítion:

.*DYNAMIC GLAZING. Any fenestration product that has the fully reversible ability to change it
performance properties, including U-factor, solar heat gain coefficient (SHGC), or visible transmittance
(VT).

(Reason: This term is referenced in Section R402.3.2. This definition of DYMANIC GLAZING rs a/so
found in the Commercial yislons of the code

***Table 402.1.2 Maximum Assembly/Climate Zone items: amend fable as follows.

Climate Zone Fenestration
U-Factof

Ceiling
U-Factor

2 .40 026-0.29

North CentralTexas Council of
Govern ments Amendments

2 Approved October 2021
2021 lnternational Energy Conservation Code



3 030 0.32 o3&0.29

North Central Texas

***Table 402.1.3 lnsulation/Climate Zone items: amend table as follows.

Climate Zone Fenestration
U-FactoP'¡

Ceiling
R-Value

Wood Frame
Wall R-Value

SIab R-Value
& Depth

2 .40 4+42 13or0+10 0

3 0J0 0.32 4942 19 or 13+53ci,
0+15

10ei, 2 ft 0

(Reason: Amended table to meet current building techniques, market conditions and product availability.
Amended to avoid conflict between North Texas termite zone and s/ab R value in code.)

***Secfion C402.5.2 Dwelling and sleeping unit enclosure testing. Added the underlined to read as
follows

C402.5.2 Dwelling and sleeping unit enclosure testing. The building thermal envelope shall be tested in
accordance with ASTM E779. ANSI/RESNET/ICC 380, ASTM 81827 or an equivalent method approved
by the code official. The measured air leakage shall not exceed 0.30 cfm/ft2 (1.5 Us m2) of the testing
unit enclosure area at a pressure differential of 0.2 inch water gauge (50 Pa). Where multiple dwelling
units or sleeping units or other occupiable conditioned spaces are contained within one building thermal
envelope, each unit shall be considered an individual testing unit, and the building air leakage shall be the
weighted average of all testing unit results, weighted by each testing unit's enclosure area. Units shall be
tested separately with an unguarded blower door test as follows:
1. Where buildings have fewer than eight testing units, each testing unit shall be tested.
2. For buildings with eight or more testing units, the greater of seven units or 20 percent of the
testing units in the building shall be tested, including a top floor unit, a ground floor unit, a middle floor
unit, and a unit with the largest testing unit enclosure area. For each tested unit that exceeds the
maximum air leakage rate, an additional two three units shall be tested, including a mixture of testing unit
types and locations.

(Reason: For many multifamily (R2 classifications) projects, it is very costly and time consuming to test
each dwelling unit for projects where there may be dozens of dwelling units in each building. Considering
that the same fradesman generally constructs a building, it is reasonable to deem that construction
practices are consistent and that if a reasonable sampling of units fesfed pass fhen all units would pass.
These amendments are in line with RESNET

"**Secfion R402.4.1 Building thermal envelope; add section R402.4.1.4 to read as follows

R402.4.1.4 Samolinq options for R2 multifamilv dwellinq units. For buildinqs with eiqht or more testinq
units that must be tested as reouired bv R402.4.1.2 or R402.4.1.3, the qreater of seven units or 20
percent of the testinq units in the buildinq shall be tested. includinq a top floor unit, a qround floor unit. a
middle floor unit. and a unit with the larqest testina unit enclosure area. For each tested unit that exceeds
the maximum air leakaqe rate, an additional three units shall be tested. includinq a mixture of testinq unit
types and locations. Where buildinqs have fewer than eiqht testino units. each testinq unit shall be
tested.

(Reason: For many multifamily (R2 classifications) projecfs, ft ls very costly and time consuming fo fesf
each dwelling unit for projects where there may be dozens of dwelling units in each building. Considering

North CentralTexas Council of
Governments Amendments

3 Approved October 2021
2021 lnternational Energy Conservation Code



ìlorth Central Texas
Councll of Govemments

that the same tradesman generally consfrucfs a building, it is reasonable to deem that construction
practices are consistent and that if a reasonable sampling of units fesfed pass then all units would pass
These amendments are in line with the commercial provisions of the commercial 2021 IECC and
RESNET

***Secfíon R403.3 Ducts; add section R403.3.8 to read as follows

R403.3.8 Sampling options for R2 multifamily dwellino units. For buildings with eight or more testinq units
that must be tested as required bv R403.3.5. the qreater of seven units or 20 oercent of the testinq units
in the buildino shall be tested, includinq a too floor unit. a qround floor unit, a middle floor unit, and a unit
with the larqest testinq unit floor area. For each tested unit that exceeds the maximum duct leakaqe rate.
an additional three units shall be tested. includino a mixture of testinq unit types and locations. Where
buildinqs have fewer than eiqht testinq units, each testinq unit shall be tested.

(Reason: For many multifamily (R2 classifications) projects, it is very costly and time consuming to test
each dwelling unit for projects where there may be dozens of dwelling units in each building. Considering
that the same tradesman generally constructs a building, it is reasonable to deem that construction
practices are consisfent and that if a reasonable sampling of units fesfed pass fhen all units would pass.
These amendments are in line with the commercial provisions of the commercial 2021 IECC and
RESNET

***Secfion R403.6 Mechanical Ventilation; add section R403.6.4 to read as follows

R403.6.4 Samplinq options for R2 multifamilv dwellinq units. For buildinqs with eiqht or more testinq units
that must be tested as required bv R403.6.3, the qreater of seven units or 20 percent of the testinq units
in the buildinq shall be tested. includinq a top floor unit. a qround floor unit, a middle floor unit, and a unit
with the larqest testinq unit floor area. For each tested unit that does not meet the minimum ventilation
rate, an additional three units shall be tested. including a mixture of testing unit tvpes and locations.
Where buildinqs have fewer than eiqht testinq units, each testinq unit shall be tested.

(Reason: For many multifamily (R2 classifications) projects, it is very costly and time consuming to test
each dwelling unit for projects where there may be dozens of dwelling units in each building. Considering
that the same tradesman generally constructs a building, it is reasonable to deem that construction
practices are consistent and that if a reasonable sampling of units fesfed pass fhen all units would pass.
These amendments are in line with the commercial provisions of the commercial 2021 IECC IECC and
RESNEI sa m pling gu idelin es.)

***R405.2 Performance-based compliance. Added to underlined to read as follows.

R405.2 Performance-based compliance. Compliance based on total building performance requires that a
proposed design meets all of the following:

1. The requirements of the sections indicated within Table R405.2.

2. The building thermal envelope greater than or equal to levels of efficiency and solar heat gain
coefficients in Table R402.1.1 or R402.1.3 of the 2009 lnternational Energy Conservation
Code.

3. An annual energy cost that is less than or equal to the annual energy cost of the 2021
standard reference design or 8% less than the annual energy cost of the 2018 standard
reference design. Energy prices shall be taken from a source approved by the code official,
such as the Department of Energy, Energy lnformation Administration's State Energy Data

North CentralTexas Council of
Governments Amendments

4 Approved October 2021
2021 lnternational Energy Conservation Code



North Central Texas
Councll of Governments

System Prices and Expenditures reports. Code officials shall be permitted to require time-of-
use pricing in energy cost calculations.

Exception: The energy use based on source energy expressed in Btu or Btu per square foot
of conditioned floor area shall be permitted to be substituted for the energy cost. The source
energy multiplier for electricity shall be 3.16. The source energy multiplier for fuels other
than electricity shall be 1.1.

(Reason: At the time of the approval of these recommended amendments, software to calculate and
show compliance with section R405 of the 2021 IECC was not available. The underlined amendment
allows an alternative to show untilsoftware is

***Section R401.2.5 Additional Energy efficiency; deleted in its entirety.

(Reason: The deletion ls based on the Complexity of the section and lack of tools to verify compliance
and due to conflict with 86th

***Section R408 ADDITIONAL EFFICIENCY PACKAGE OPTIONS; deleted in its entirety.

(Reason: The deletion is based on the omission of R401.2.5 and R408 no longer applies and due to
conflict with 86th Session

*** Section R402.4.6 Electrical and Communication outlet boxes. Delete after the first sentence to
read as follows.

***R402.4.6 Electrícaland communication outlet boxes (air-sealed boxes). Electricaland communication
outlet boxes installed in the building thermal envelope shall be sealed to limit air leakage between
conditioned and unconditioned spaces. Mtn eatlet bexes shall be tested in

¡en
nate

p,944 ' /s) et a prse
mmanieatien eaflet

øexee snal øe ;neta et¡ens ana w¡tn any s

Allow for alternatives and Avoid

***Secfion R404.2 lnterior Lighting Controls; deleted in its entirety.

The deletion is to eliminate confusion as the intent does not reflect what is written

**TABLE R406.4 (N1106.4) MAXIMUM ENERGY RATING INDEX; amend to read as follows

TABLE R406.4 (N1106.4) 1

MAXIMUM ENERGY RATING INDEX
CLIMATE ZONE ENERGY RATING INDEX

2 *63
3 5?63

This table is effective until August 31,2022.

TABLE R406.4 (N1106.q2
MAXIMUM ENERGY RATING INDEX

North CentralTexas Council of
Governments Amendments

5 Approved October 2021
2021 lnternational Energy Conservation Code



North Central Texas
Councll of

The table is effective from September 1,2022 to August 31,2025

TABLE R406.4 (N1106.4) 3

MAXIMUM ENERGY RATING INDEX

CLIMATE ZONE ENERGY RATING INDEX
2 52 57
3 *57

The table is effective from September 1,2025 to August 31,2028.

TABLE R406.4 (Ní106.43
MAXIMUM ENERGY RATING INDEX

CLIMATE ZONE ENERGY RATING INDEX
2 æ55
3 5+55

This table is effective on or after September 1,2028

(Reason: The tables reflect the values and timetable set fo¡ûh in HB 3215, ïVh Regular Sessrbn Codified
in 388 Texas P e rfo r m a n c e Sta n d a rd s :

NOTE : HB 3215 was signed into law by the Governor on June 14,2O2L as part ol the ÙVh Regular
Sessíon Codified in Chapter 388 Texqs Building Energy Performonce Standords: 9388.003 (i), (j), and
(k). HB 3215 now allows a Home Energy Rating System lndex (ex. HERS lndex) utilizing
ANSI/RESNET/ICC Standard 301 (as it existed on January I,2O2I) shall be considered in compliance wíth
State law provided that:

o The home includes compliance with the Mandotory requirements of 20L8 IECC Section
R406.2.

o The home includes complionce with Building thermol envelope provisions of Toble
R402.1.2 or Table R402.1.4 of the 2078 IECC

END

CL¡MATE ZONE ENERGY RAT¡NG INDEX
2 æ59
3 52 59

North Central Texas Council of
Governments Amendments

6 Approved October 2021
2021 lnternational Energy Conservation Code



Agenda ltem # 11



JOINT ELECTION SERVICES CONTRACT

("Election Services Contract")

ELECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE COLLIN COUNW ELECTIONS ADMINISTRATOR
("Contracting Election Officer")

AND THE POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS LISTED BELOW
("Participating Political Subdivisions")

CITY OF ALLEN

CITY OF ANNA
CITY OF BLUE RIDGE

CITY OF CARROLLTON

CITY OF CELINA

CITY OF DALLAS

CITY OF GARLAND

TOWN OF FAIRVIEW

CITY OF FARMERSVILLE

CITY OF FRISCO

CITY OF LUCAS

CIW OF McKINNEY

CITY OF MURPHY

CITY OF NEVADA

ÏOWN OF NEW HOPE

CITY OF PARKER

CITY OF PLANO

TOWN OF PROSPER

CITY OF RICHARDSON

CITY OF SACHSE

TOWN OF ST. PAUL

CITY OF WYLIE

COLLIN COLLEGE

ALLEN INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

ANNA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

CELINA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMMUNITY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

FARMERSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

FRISCO INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

LOVEJOY IN DEPEN DENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

McKINNEY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

MELISSA INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

PLANO INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

PRINCETON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROSPER INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

T



NORTH PARKWAY MUNICIPAL MANAGEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

BEAR CREEK SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT

COPEVILLE SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SEIS LAGOS SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT

WESTMI NISTER SPECIAL UTI LITY DISTRICT

FOR THE CONDUCT OF A JOINT ELECTION

TO BE HELD ON SATURDAY, MAY 6,2023

TO BE ADMINISTERED BY THE COLLIN COUNTY ELECTIONS ADMINISTRATOR

2



7. ADMINISTRATION AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY

a. Bruce Sherbet ("Bruce Sherbet") is the duly appointed County Elections Administrator ("Elections
Administrator") of Collin County, Texas and the Department Head of the Collin County Elections
Department. As such, Mr. Sherbet is the Election Administrator of Collin County, Texas and authorized
by Subchapter D of Chapter 31 of Title 3 of the Texas Election Code to enter into this Election Services
Contract with the contracting authority of the Participating Political Subdivisions.

b. The contracting authorities of the Participating PoliticalSubdivisions listed on the cover pages of this
Election Services Contract is hereby participat¡ng in the Joint Election to be held in Collin County, Texas
on Saturday, May 6, 2023, and is hereby contracting with the Elections Administrator of Collin County,
Texas to perform the election services set forth in this Election Services Contract under Subchapter D of
Chapter 31 of Title 3 of the Texas Election Code.

2, DUTIES AND SERVICES OF THE CONTRACTING ELECTION OFFICER

a. The Contracting Election Officer shall be responsible for performing the followíng duties and shall
furnish the following services and equipment:

i. The Contracting Election Officer will prepare and publish the required Notice of Election and
post the required orders and resolutions to the Collin County Elections Department website.

ii. The Contracting Election Officer shall arrange for appointment, notification (including writ of
election), training and compensation of all presiding judges, alternate judges, the judge of the
Central Count Station and judge of the Early Voting Ballot Board.

lli. The Contracting Election Officer shall be responsible for notification of each Election Day and
Early Voting presiding judge and alternate judge of his or her appointment. The presiding
election judge of each Vote Center will use his/her discretion to determine when additional
workers are needed, during peak voting hours.

iv. The Contracting Election Officer will determine the number of clerks to work in the Central
Count Station and the number of clerks to work on the Ballot Board.

1. Election judges shall attend the Contracting Election Officer's school of instruction
(Election Law Class). A training event calendar will be provided.

2. Election judges and alternate judges shall be responsible for picking up and returning
election supplies to the county election warehouse located at 2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite
102, McKinney. Compensation for this pickup and delivery of supplies will be 525.00.

v. The Contracting Election Officer shall compensate each election judge and worker. Each judge
shall receive 515.00 per hour, each alternate judge shall receive 514.00 per hour for, and each
clerk shall receive 51.3.00 per hour for services rendered. Overtime will be paid to each person
working over 40 hours per week.

b. The Contracting Election Officer shall procure, prepare, and distribute vot¡ng machines, election kits and
election supplies.

i. The Contracting Election Officer shall secure election kits, which include the legal
documentation required to hold an election and all supplies.

ii. The Contracting Election Officer shall secure the tables, chairs, and legal documentation
required to run the Central Count Station.

iii. The Contracting Election Officer shall provide all lists of registered voters required for use on
Election Day and for the Early Voting period required by law.

3



iv. The Contracting Election Officer shall procure and arrange for the distribution of all election
equipment and supplíes required to hold an election.

1,. Equipment includes the rental of ES&S ExpressVote Universal voting machines (EVS

6.1.1.0), ES&S ExpressTouch curbside voting machines (EVS 6.1-.1.0), ES&S DS200 ballot
counters (EVS 6.1.L.0), ES&S Model DS450 and DS850 High-Speed Scanners/Tabulators
(EVS 6.1.1.0), ADA compliant headphones and keypads, voting signs and election supply
cabinets.

2. Supplies include paper ballot cards, Early Voting and Election Day supply kits, provisional
ballot kits, security seals, pens, tape, markers, etc.

c. The Contracting Election Officer, Bruce Sherbet, shall be appointed the Early Voting Clerk.
i. The Contracting Election Officer shall supervise and conduct Early Voting by mail and in person

and shall secure personnel to serve as Early Voting Deputies.
ii. The Contracting Election Officer shall select the Early Voting Polling Locations and arrange for

the use of each.
¡¡i. Early Voting by personal appearance for the Participating Polítical Subdivisions shall be

conducted during the early voting dates and times and at the locations listed in Exhibit "A"
attached and incorporated by reference into this Election Services Contract,

iv. All applications for an Early Voting mail ballot shall be received and processed by the Collin
County Elections Administration Office located at 2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite L02, McKinney,
Texas 75069.

7. Applications for maíl ballots erroneously mailed to the Participating Political
Subdivisions shall immedíately be faxed to the Contracting Officer for timely processing.
The original application shall then be forwarded to the Contracting Election Officer for
proper retention.

2. All Federal Post Card Applications (FPCA) will be sent a mail ballot. No postage is

required.
v. All Early Voting ballots (those cast by mail and those cast by personal appearance) shall be

prepared for countíng by the Early Voting Ballot Board in accordance with Section 87.000 of the
Texas Election Code. The Contracting Officer shall appoínt the presiding judge of this Board.

d. The Contracting Election Officer shall select the Election Day Vote Centers and arrange for the use of
each.

i. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall assume the responsibility of remitting their portion
of cost of all employee servíces required to provide access, províde security or provide custodial
services for the Vote Centers.

ii. The Election Day Vote Centers are listed in Exhibit "8", ãttached and incorporated by reference
into this Election Services Contract.

e. The Contracting Election Officer shall be responsible for establishing and operating the Central Count
Station to receive and tabulate the voted ballots in accordance with Section 127.OOI of the Election
Code and of this agreement. The Central Count Station Manager shall be Bruce Sherbet. The Central
Count Station Judge shall be Kathi-Ann Rivard. The Tabulation Supervisor shall be Brian Greisbach.

i. The Tabulation Supervisor shall prepare, test and run the County's tabulation system in

accordance wíth statutory requirements and county policies, under the auspices of the
Contracting Election Officer.

ii. The Public Logic and Accuracy Test of the electronic voting system shall be conducted in
accordance with Election Law. The Contracting Election Officer will post the required Notice of
Logic and Accuracy testing.

4



iii. Election night reports will be available to the Participating Political Subdivisions at the Central
Counting Station on election night. Provisional ballots will be tabulated after election night in
accordance with state law.

iv. The Contracting Election Officer shall prepare the unofficial canvass report after all precincts
have been counted, and will provide canvassing documents to the Participating Political
Subdivisions as soon as possible after all returns have been tallied.

v. The Contracting Election Officer shall be appointed as the custodian of the voted ballots and
shall retain all election materials for a period of 22 months.

1,. Pending no litigation and as prescribed by law, the voted ballots shall be shredded 22
months after the election.

f. The Contracting Election Officer shall conduct a partial manual count as prescribed by Section 127.20I
of the Texas Election Code and submit a written report to the Participating Political Subdivisions in a

timely manner. lf applicable, a written report shall be submitted to the Secretary of State as required by
Section t27.2Ot of the aforementioned code.

3. DUTIES AND SERVICES OF THE PARTICIPATING POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS

a. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall assume the following duties:
i. The Participating Political Subdivisions will prepare, adopt, and publish all legally required

election orders, resolutions, and other documents required by, or of, their governing bodies.
The Participating Political Subdivisions are required to send Collin County Elections Department
a copy of any election order or resolution related to this Joint Election within three business
days of publishing, adopting or ordering it.

¡i. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall provide the Contracting Election Officer with an
updated map and street index of their jurisdiction in an electronic (shape file preferred) or
printed format as soon as possible but no later than Monday, February 27,2A23.

iii. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall procure and provide the Contracting Election Officer
with the ballot layout and Spanish interpretation in an electronic format.

1. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall deliver to the Contracting Election Officer as

soon as possible, but no later than 5:00 p.m. Monday, February 27,2023, the official
wording for the Participating Political Subdivisions' May 6, 2023 Joint Election.

2. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall approve the ballot proofs format within 24
hours of receiving the ballot proof and prior to the final printing.

a. lf the Participating Political Subdivisions fail to approve the ballot proofs within
24 hours of receiving the proofs, the Contracting Election Officer will presume
that the ballot proofs have been approved by the Participating Political
Subdivisions. Any costs incurred by making any changes to the ballot (designing,
printing, programming, etc.)from this point forward will be the responsibility of
the Participating Political Subdivisions.

iv. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall compensate the Contracting Election Officer for all
associated costs including any additional verified cost incurred in the process of running this
election or for a manual count, thís election may require, consistent with charges and hourly
rates shown on Exhibit "C" for required services.

b. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall pay the Contracting Election Officer 90% of the estimated
cost to run the said election prior to Friday, March 3I,2023. The Contracting Election Officer shall place
the funds in a "contract fund" as prescribed by Section 31.1.00 of the Texas Election Code. The deposit
should be made payable to the "Collin County Treasury" with a note "for election services" included
with the check documentation and delivered to the Collin County Treasury, 2300 Bloomdale Rd., #3138,
McKinney, Texas 75071.

5



c. The Participating Political Subdivisions shall pay the cost of conducting said election, less partial
payment, includíng the 1O% administrative fee, pursuant to the Texas Election Code, Section 3L.100,
within 30 days from the date of final billing. Additionally, all payments ín excess of the final cost to
perform the election will be refunded to the participating Political Subdivisions.

4. COST OF SERVICES.

a. See Exhibit "C"

5. GENERAL PROVISIONS

a. Nothing contained in this Election Services Contract shall authorize or permit a change in the officer with
whom or the place at which any document or record relating to the Particípating Political Subdivisions'
May 6, 2023 Joint Election are to be filed, or the place at which any function is to be carried out, or any
nontransferable functions specified under Section 31.096 of the Texas Election Code.

b. Upon request, the Contracting Election Officer will provide copies of all invoices and other charges
received in the process of running said election for the Participating Political Subdivisions.

c. lf the Participating Pof itical Subdivisions cancel their elections pursuant to Sect¡on 2.053 of the Texas
Election Code shall pay the Contracting Officer a contract preparation fee of $75.00 and will not be liable
for any further costs incurred by the Contracting Officer.

d. The Contracting Officer shall file copies of this contract with the County Judge and the County Auditor of
Collin County, Texas.

6



WITNESS BY MY HAND THIS DAY OF 2023,

WITNESS BY MY HAND THIS DAY OF 2023

By Attest
Ben Ponce, Mayor
City of Nevada

Bruce Sherbet, Elections Administrator
Collin County, Texas

Deuce Waters, City Secretary
City of Nevada



Exhibit A (Anexo A) Collin County (Condodo de Collin)

May 6, 2023 Joint General and Special Election - Early Votíng Locations, Dates and Hours
(6 de mayo de 202i Elección generql y especiol conjunta - Lugores de Votación Temprona, Fechas y Horas)

lmportant Note: Elíqible Collin County registered voters (with an effective date of registration on or before May 6, 2023)

may vote at any early vot¡ng locat¡on.

(Notø importante: Los votontes registrados eÌegibles del Condodo de Collin (con una fecha efectiva de registro en o ontes del

6 de mayo de 2023 pueden votar en cualqu¡er lugar de votación onticipodo.)

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

April 23

No Voting
(23 de obril)
(Sin votor)

April24
Early Voting
(24 de obril)
(Votación

adelontoda)

8am - 5pm

April25
Early Votíng
(25 de abril)
(Votøción

adelantoda)

8am - 5pm

April 26
Early Voting
(26 de obril)
(Votoción

adelantadø)

8am - 5pm

April2T
Early Voting
(27 de obril)
(Votación

adelantoda)

8am - 5pm

April 28

Early Voting
(28 de obril)
(Votoción

adelontada)

8am - 5pm

Apríl 29

Early Voting
(29 de abril)
(Votación

adelontada)

8am - 5pm

April 30

No Voting
(30 de abril)
(Sin votor)

May 1

Early Voting
(1de moyo)
(Votoción

odelantado)

7am -7pm

May 2

Early Voting
(2 de mayo)
(Votación

odelontoda)

7am - 7pm

May 3
No Votíng

(3 de mayo)
(Sin votor)

May 4
No Votíng

(4 de moyo)
(Sin votor)

May 5

No Voting
(5 de mayo)
(Sin votar)

May 6

Election Day
(6 de mayo)

(Día de
elección)

7am -7pm

Polling Location
(Lugar de Votoción)

Room Name
(Nombre de la

hobitación)

Address
(Direccíón)

C¡ty
(Ciudod)

Zip Code
(Códiso
postal)

Collin County Elections
(Main Early Voting Location)

Voting Room 2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite L02 McKinney 7s069

Allen ISD Service Center Main Lobby 1451 N. Watters Rd Allen 75002

Allen Municipal Courts Facility Community Room 301 Century Pkwy Allen 7sor3

Anna Municipal Complex Lobby 120 W. 7th St. Anna 75409

Blue Ridge ISD Administration BuÌldÌng
Board of Trustees

Board Room
318 School St Blue Ridge 75424

Carpenter Park Recreation Center South Lobby 6701 Coit Rd Plano 75024

Children's Health StarCenter Activity Room 6993 Stars Ave. McKinney 7s070

Christopher A. Parr Library Programs Room 6200 Windhaven Pkwy Plano 75093

Collin College Celina Campus Atrium 2505 Kinship Pkwy Celina 75009

Collin College Farmersville Campus Atrium 501 S. Collin Pkwy Farmersville 75442

Collin College Frisco Campus BuildingJ, Room 113 9700 Wade Blvd Frisco 75035

Revised February 6, 2023 L lPage



Collin College Higher Education Center Atrium 3452 Spur 399 McKinney 7s069

Collin College McKinney Campus Atrium, Hallway D 2200 University Dr McKinney 7507r

Collin College Plano Campus Atrium D Square 2800 Spring Creek Pkwy Plano 75074

Collin College Wylie Campus Lobby 391 Country Club Rd Wylie 75098

Copeville Special Utility District Conference Room 76120 FM 7778 Nevada 75173

Dowell Middle School Library (01.00) 301 S. Ridge Rd McKinney 75072

Evans Middle School Library (4114) 6998 W. Eldorado Pkwy McKinney 75072

Farmersville City Hall Council Chambers 205 S. Main 5t. Farmersville 75442

Frisco Fire Station #5 Training Room 14300 Eldorado Pkwy Frisco 75035

Frisco Fire Station #8 Training Room 14700 Rolater Rd Frisco 75034

Haggard Library Programs Room 2501 Coit Rd. Plano 75075

Harrington Library
Thelma Rice Sproles
Program Room

1501 18th St. Plano 75074

John & Judy Gay Library Meeting Room 6861 W. Eldorado Pkwy McKinney 75070

Lavon City Hall Gymnasium 120 School Rd Lavon 7s166

Lovejoy ISD Administration Building
Portable #1 Training
Room

259 Country Club Rd. Allen 75002

Lucas Community Center Community Room 665 Country Club Rd. Lucas 75002

Maribelle M. Davis Library Programs Room 7501 lndependence Pkwy. A Plano 75025

McKinney Fire Station #5 Community Room 6600 Virginia Pkwy McKinney 7507t

McKinney Fire Station #7 Community Room 86L lndependence Pkwy McKinney 75072

McKinney Fire Station #9 Community Room 4900 Summit View Dr McKinney 7507I

McKinney Fire Station #10 Community Room 1150 Olympic Crossing McKinney 7507t

McKinney High School PAC Lobby 1400 E. Wilson Creek Pkwy McKinney 75069

McKinney North High School Auditorium Lobby 2550 Wilmeth Rd McKinney 7507t

Melissa City Hall
Municipal Court Room,
1st Floor

34LL Barker Ave. Melissa 75454

Michael J. Felix Community Center Rooms A and B 3815 E. Sachse Rd Sachse 74048

Revised February 6, 2023 2lPage



Murphy Community Center
Homer and Marie
Adams Rooms

205 N. Murphy Rd. Murphy 75094

New Hope Town Hall Council Chambers 121 Rockcrest Rd McKinney 7507L

Old Settler's Recreation Center
North Multi-Purpose
Room

tzOLE. Louisiana St. McKinney 75069

Parker City Hall Council Chambers 5700 E. Parker Rd Parker 75002

Plano ISD Administration Center Lobby 2700w.15th st. Plano 75075

Princeton Community Center Community Room 416 N. 4th St. Princeton 75407

Prosper Town Hall Community Room 250 W. F¡rst St Prosper 75078

Renner Frankford Branch Library Programs Room 6400 Frankford Rd Dallas 75252

Richardson Public Library Story Time Room 900 Civic Center Dr Richardson 75080

Roy & Helen Hall Memorial Library Lobby L01 E. Hunt St. McKinney 75069

ïerry Pope Administration Building
Community ISD Board
Room

611 N. FM 1138 Nevada 75r73

The Grove at Fr¡sco Commons Community Room 8300 McKinney Rd. Frisco 75034

Wylie Senior Rereation Center Dining Room 800 Thomas 5t Wylie 75098

*Polling locations are subject to change. For the most current list of locations, please visit the Elections webpage at
www.collincou ntvtx.sovlelections.
(*Las lugares de votación estón sujetos a combios. Parq obtener lo lista más actualizødø de ubicqciones, visite lo pógino web
de Elecci on e s en www.colli ncou ntvtx. aov/e lection s.)

Applications for ballot by mail may be mailed and must be received no later than the close of business on April 25,2023,
to:
(Los solicitudes de boleta por correo pueden env¡orse por correo y deben recibirse a más tordar el 25 de qbril de 2023 para:)

Bruce Sherbet, Early Voting Clerk
2010 Redbud Blvd. Suite 102

McKinney, Texas 75069
972-547-1900

www.collincou ntvtx.gov

Revised February 6, 2023 3lPage



Applications for ballot by mail may also be faxed or emailed and must be received no later than the close of business on

April 25, 2023. For an application for ballot bv mail submítted bv telephonic facsimile machine or electronic transmission

to be effective, the hard copv of the application must also be submitted bv mail and be received bv the earlv voting clerk
not later than the fourth business dav after the transmission bv telephonic facsimile machine or electronic transmission

is received. (Texas Election Code 84.007)

(Las solicitudes de boleto por correo también pueden enviarse por fax o correo electróníco y deben recibirse antes del cierre
de operociones el 25 de qbril de 2023. Para que uno solicitud de boleta por correo envioda por móquina de fax o tronsmisión
electrónica seo efectivo, la copía impreso de la solicitud tqmbién debe presentorse por correo y ser recibida por el secretario
de votoción anticipoda q más tardar el cusrto dío hóbil posterior a lq recepción de lø transmisión por fax o móquino
electrónica de fax. (Código Electorql de Texas 84.007,).)

Fax - 972-547-1996, Email - absenteemailballotine@collincountulx.gov

Revised February 6, 2023 4lPage



20.23 ELECTION

CATENDAR
March 25" 2023 - Citv of Melissa Special Election

Last Day to Register to Vote (Postmarked) February 23,2023
EarlyVoting March 13-18; 20-21,2023
First Day to Apply for Ballot by MaillFPCA (Received, not Postmarked) January 1,2023
Last Day to Apply for Ballot by Mail/FPCA (neceivea, not postmarked - llth day berore ED) March 14,2023
FPCA 41thDayDeadline February B,ZO23
Cure Date (6th Day after Election Day) March 31,2023

Mav 6. 2023 - Citv and School Elections
Last Day to Register to Vote (Postmarked)
Early Voting
First Day to Apply for Ballot by Mail/FPCA (Received, not Postmarked)
Last Day to Apply for Ballot by Mail/FPCA (neceiveoo not postmarked - llth day before ED)

FPCA 45rhDayDeadline

Cure Date (6th Day after Election Day)

Apnl 6,2023
Aprrl 24-29; May l-2, 2023

January 1,2023
April25,2023
March 22,2023
May 12,2023

June 10. 2023 - Citv Runoff Elections
Last Day to Register to Vote (Postmarked) May 11,2023
Early voting May 30-31; June 1-3; June 5-6,2023
First Day to Apply for Ballot by MailÆPCA (Received, not Postmarked) January 1,2023
Last Day to Apply for Ballot by Mail/FPCA (neceiveo, not postmarked - llth day berore ED) }r4ay 30,2023
FPCA 45th Day Deadline April26,2023
Cure Date (6th Day after Election Day) June 16,2023

November 7.2023 - General and Special Elections
Last Day to Register to Vote (Postmarked) October 10,2023
EarlyVoting Oct 23-Nov 3,2023
First Day to Apply for Ballot by MailÆPCA (Received, not Postmarked) January 1,2023
Last Day to Apply for Ballot by Mail/FPCA (neceivea, not posrmarked - llth day berore ED) October 27 ,2023
FPCA 45th Day Deadline September 23,2023
Cure Date (6th Day after Election Day) November 13,2023

December 12. 2023 - Citv Runoff Elections
Last Day to Register to Vote (Postmarked) November 13,2023
Early Voting Nov 27-30; Dec l-2;Dec 4-8,2023
First Day to Apply for Ballot by MailÆPCA (Receivedo not Postmarked) January 1,2023
Last Day to Apply for Ballot by Mail/FPCA (neceivea, not postmarked - n* day before ED) December 1,2023
FPCA 45thDay Deadline October 28,2023
Cure Date (6th Day after Election Day) December 18,2023

Revised 12-15-2022



Exhibit B (Anexo B) Collin County (Condado de Collin)

Election Day Vote Centers for the May 6, 2023 Joint General and Special Election -7 am - 7 pm*
(Centros de votación del día de los elecciones poro las Elecciones Generales y Especiales Conjuntas

del 6 de moyo de 2023 - 7 om - 7pm*)

lmportant Note: ElÍqible Collin County registered voters (with an effectÍve date of registration on or before May 6, 20231 may
vote at any early voting location.
(Nota importante: Los votontes registrodos elegibles del Condado de Collin (con una fecha efectiva de registro en o ontes del 6
de moyo de 2023 pueden votar en cuolquier lugar de votocíón onticipoda.)

Polling Locat¡on
(Lugor de Votación)

Room Name
(Nombre de lo

habitøción)

Address
(Dirección)

City
(Ciudqd)

Zip Code
(Códîso
postal)

Aldridge Elementary School Gym 720 Pleasant Valley Ln. Richardson 75080

Allen ISD Service Center Main Lobby 1451 N. Watters Rd. Allen 75002

Allen Municipal Courts Facility Community Room 301 Century Pkwy Allen 750L3

Anna Municipal Complex Lobby 120 W. 7th St Anna 73409

Armstrong Middle School Small Gym 3805 Timberline Dr Plano 75074

Bethany Elementary School Gym 24L8 Micarta Dr Plano 75025

Blue Ridge ISD Administration Building
Board ofTrustees
Board Room

318 School St Blue Ridge 75424

Bowman Middle School
Cafeteria Foyer in

Corridor H
250L Jupiter Rd Plano 75074

Carpenter Middle School Small Gym 3905 Rainier Rd Plano 75023

Children's Health StarCenter Activity Room 6993 Stars Ave McKinney 75070

Christopher A. Parr Library Programs Room 6200 Windhaven Pkwy Plano 75093

Collin College Celina Campus Atrium 2505 Kinship Pkwy Celina 75009

Collin College Farmersville Campus Atrium 501 5. Collin Pkwy Farmersville 75442

Collin College Frisco Campus BuildingJ, Room 113 9700 Wade Blvd Frisco 75035

Collin College Higher Education Center Atrium 3452 Spur 399 McKinney 75069

Collin College McKinney Campus Atrium, Hallway D 2200 University Dr McKinney 7507L

Collin College Plano Campus Atrium D Square 2800 Spring Creek Pkwy Plano 75074

Collin College Wylie Campus Lobby 391 Country Club Rd. Wylie 75098

Cof lin County Elections Voting Room 2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite 102 McKinney 75069

Copeville Special Ut¡l¡ty D¡strict Conference Room 16120 FM 7778 Nevada 75r73

Revised February 6, 2023 llPage



Dowell Middle School Library (0100) 301 S. Ridge Rd. McKinney 75072

Evans Middle School Library (4114) 6998 W. Eldorado Pkwy McKinney 75072

Fairview Town Hall Council Chambêrs 372 Town Pl Fairview 7s069

Farmersville City Hall Council Chambers 205 S. Main St Farmersville 75442

Frisco Fire Station #5 Training Room L4300 Eldorado Pkwy Frisco 75035

Frisco Fire Station #8 Training Room 14700 Rolater Rd Frisco 7so34

Haggard Middle School Main Entry Vestibule 2832 Parkhaven Dr Plano 75075

Hendrick Middle School Front Foyer 7400 Red River Dr Plano 75025

Huffman Elementary School 5510 Channel lsle Dr Plano 75093

John & Judy Gay Library Meeting Room 6861W. Eldorado Pkwy McKinney 75070

Lavon City Hall Gymnasium 120 School Rd. Lavon 75L66

Lovejoy ISD Administration Building
Portable #1 Training
Room

259 Country Club Rd. Allen 75002

Lucas Community Center Community Room 665 Country Club Rd. Lucas 75002

McKinney Fire Station #5 Community Room 6600 Virginia Pkwy McKinney 75071

McKinney Fire Station #7 Community Room 861 lndependence Pkwy McKinney 75072

McKinney Fire Station #9 Community Room 4900 Summit View Dr McKinney 7507r

McKinney Fire Station #10 Community Room 1150 Olympic Crossing McKinney 75071

McKinney High School PAC Lobby 1400 E. Wilson Creek Pkwy McKinney 75069

McKinney Nonh High School Auditorium Lobby 2550 Wilmeth Rd McKinney 7507L

Melissa City Hall
Municipal Court Room,

Lst Floor
3411 Barker Ave Melissa 75454

Michael J. Felix Community Center Rooms A and B 3815 E. Sachse Rd Sachse 74048

Miller Elementary School Gym 5651 Coventry Dr Richardson 75082

Murphy Community Center
Homer and Marie
Adams Rooms

205 N. Murphy Rd Murphy 75094

New Hope Town Hall Council Chambers 121 Rockcrest Rd McKinney 75071

Old Settler's Recreation Center
North Multi-Purpose
Room

720I E. Louisiana St. McKinney 75069

Parker City Hall Council Chambers 5700 E. Parker Rd. Parker 75002

Revised February 6, 2023 2lPage



Princeton Community Center Community Room 416 N. 4th St. Princeton 75407

Prosper Town Hall Community Room 250 W. First St. Prosper 7s078

Renner Frankford Branch Library Programs Room 6400 Frankford Rd Dallas 75252

Richardson Public Library Story Time Room 900 Civic Center Dr Richardson 75080

Robinson Middle School Gym 6701 Preston Meadow Dr Plano 75024

Rose Haggar Elementary School Gym 17820 Campbell Rd. Dallas 75252

Schimelpfenig Middle School Front Foyer 2400 Maumelle Dr Plano 7s023

Senior Recreation Center Meeting Room 1400 S. College St. McKinney 75069

Terry Pope Administration Building
Community ISD Board
Room

611 N. FM 1138 Nevada 75r73

The Grove at Frisco Commons Community Room 8300 McKinney Rd Frisco 75034

Tom Muehlenbeck Recreation Center Meeting Room A 5801 W. Parker Rd Plano 75093

Wilson Middle School F113 1001 Custer Rd Plano 75075

Wylie Senior Recreation Center Dining Room 800 Thomas St. Wylle 75098

*Polling locations are subject to change. For the most current list of locations, please visit the Elections webpage at
www.collincountvtx.govlelections.
(*Los lugores de votación están sujetos a cambios. Pqro obtener la listq mós sctualizads de ubicaciones, visite lo págino web de
E I e cci o n e s e n www. co I I i n co u ntvtx. a ov,/e I e cti o n s. )

Applications for ballot by mail may be mailed and must be received no later than the close of business on April 25,2023,tol.
(Las solicitudes de boletq por correo pueden enviorse por correo y deben recibirse o más tordor el 25 de obrit de 2023 pora:)

Bruce Sherbet, Early Voting €lerk
2010 Redbud Blvd. Suite 102

McKinney, Texas 75069
972-547-1900

www.collincountvtx.sov

Applications for ballot by mail may also be faxed or emailed and must be received no later than the close of business on April
25,2023. For an application for ballot bv mail submitted bv telephonic facsimile machine or electronic transmission to be
effective, the hard copy of the application must also be submitted bv mail and be received bv the earlv votine clerk not later
than the fourth business dav after the transmission bv telephonic facsimile machine or electronic transmission is received.
(Texas Election Code 84.007)
(Los solicitudes de boleto por correo también pueden enviorse por fax o correo electrónico y deben recibirse antes del cierre de
operaciones el 25 de abril de 2023. Paro que uno solicitud de boletq por correo envioda por máquina de fax o tronsmisión
electrónica sea efectivo, la copia impreso de lo solicitud tombién debe presentorse por correo y ser recibida por el secretorio de
votoción anticipodø o más tardar el cuarto dío hábil posteríor o lo recepción de lq trqnsmisión porfox o móquina electrónico de

fox. (Código Electorql de Texas 84.007,).)

Fax - 972-547-1996, Email - absenteemailballoting@collincountvtx.sov

Revised February 6, 2023 3lPage



Collin Countv Joint General a Special Election - Mav 6.2023

Listed below are important dates to mark on your calendar for the May 6, 2023 uniform election date.

Contracts - Contracts will be delivered to all jurisdictions no later than Tuesday, February 7,2023.

Order of General Election - Deadline for political subdivisions to order a general election - Friday, February 17,2023.
Please send your Order of Election to kbreaux@co.collin.tx.us no later than Tuesday, February 21,2023.

Order of Special Election to Fill a Vacancv - Deadline to order a special election to fill a vacancy - Saturday, February
25,2023.

Executed Contracts - Executed contracts should be returned by Tuesday, March 7,2023

Candidate Filing Deadline for a Regular Election - (Note: dates are different for a "to fill a vacancy" election, depending
on when the notice to file was posted. See Election Advisory No.2022-37 - May 6,2023 Election Law Calendar.

o Candidate filing deadline for Regular Election - Friday, February L7,2023 at 5 pm.
r Write-ln Candidates filing deadline for General Election Tuesday, February 21,2023 at 5 pm (Sec. L44.006,

146.054 (b) (2)). Candidate Withdrawal - Last day for a candidate or write-in candidate to withdraw name
from the ballot - Friday, February 24,2023 at 5 pm

Election Cancellation - The recommended first day to cancel your election is Friday, February 24,2023.|f your election
can be cancelled, please email a copy of your Certification of Unopposed Candidates to Kaleb (kbreaux@co.collin.tx.us)
as soon as possible. NOTE: NEW LAW: SB 1 (202L, 2"d C.S) amended Sections 2.053 and 2.056 of the Texas Election Code
to make this cancellation process mandatory, rather than discretionary. For additional information, consult the outline
on Cancellation of Election for Local Political Subdivisions.

Ballot - Email ballot materials to Kaleb at kbreaux@co.collin.tx.us.
o Recommended deadline for Drawing for Place on Ballot - Monday, February 27,2023. Sec. 52.094 (Note:

The ballot drawing notice must be posted 72 hours prior to the drawing).
¡ Deadline to receive final ballot wording - Monday, February 27,2023.

o Please provide all office titles, candidate names (in order of drawing) and if applicable, all
propositions as they are to appear on the ballot. All ballot wording must be provided in both English
and in Spanish. Ballot wording can be delivered as early as available, but not later than 5 pm on the
Monday, February 27, 2023.

o The Election Code does not provide direction on how to list multiple write-in candidates for the
same office on the List of Declared Write-in Candidates. lf there are two or more declared write-in
candidates in any one race, the Secretary of State recommends that you list them in alphabetical
order or conduct a ballot drawing pursuant to Section 52.-OaG) and (c) of the Code.

Notes on Ballot lavout: Please see chapter 52. BALLoT FoRM, coNTENT, AND PREPARATIoN, subchapter A.

PREPARING THE BALLOT for ballot I ayout and wording regulations.

Ballot Proofing - Please respond with revisions or an approval signature within 24 hours of receiving your ballot proof,
¡ Ballot Proofing Note: lf you fail to approve the ballot proof within 24 hours of receiving the proof the Elections

Office will presume that the ballot proof has been approved. Any costs incurred by making any changes to the
ballot (designing, printing, programming, etc.) from this point forward will be the responsibility of the
jurisdiction.

Pollins Locations - Our deadline to finalize polling locations is Tuesday, March L4,2023. Delivery schedules will be
supplied once the locations have been confirmed.

1



Deposits - The 9O% deposit for election services is due by Friday, March 3t,2023. Please use the deposit amount shown
on your Estimated Cost of Election Services. The deposit should be made payable to the "Collin County Treasury" with a

note "For election services" included with the check documentation and delivered to:
Collin County Treasury

2300 Bloomdale Rd., #3138
McKinney, Texas 75071

Notice of Bond Elections - Entities holding bond elections must provide additional notice per Section 4.003 (f) added by
58637. A debt obligation order under Section 3.009 must be posted: 1-. (Elections Department will post) On Election Day

and during Early Vot¡ng by personal appearance, in a prominent location at each polling location. 2, (Entity will handle)
Not later than the 2L't day before Election Day, in 3 public places... 3. (Entity and County will post) During the 21 days

before Election Day, on the entities website... See full notation for Bond Notices and the required information for the
Order/Notice of Bond Election in the SoS Election Law Calendar. Elections Department will place the bond notice
materials you provide in each EV and ED polling location. Materials to be posted in the polling locations is needed by
Tuesday, April 11, 2023. (Equipment delivery will begin on Wednesday, April L9, 2023.)

Notice of Election - Section 4.002. AUTHORITY RESPONSIBLE FOR GIVING NOTICE: Except as otherwise provided by law,
the following authority shall give notice of an election: (1) the county judge of each county wholly or partly in the
terr¡tory covered by the election, for an election ordered by the governor; (2) the presiding oflicer of the governing body
of o political subdivision, for an election ordered by the presiding officer or the governing body; and (3) the authority
ordering the election, for an election ordered by any other authority. The last day of period during which notice of
election must be published is Saturday, April 15, 2023. (NOTE: lf your jurisdiction happens to be a part of more than one
county, the Notice of Election must be published in each County. Collin County Elections will post one Notice of Election
in the Dallas Morning News. The notice will include every politicaljurisdiction included in the joint election.)

F¡rst Dav to Ma¡l M¡l¡tarv/Overseas and FPCA Ballots - Wednesday, March 22,2023.

Public Logic & Accuracv ([&Al and Tabulation Equipment Test - Friday, April 14, 2023 (ant¡c¡pated]

Earlv Votins Dates and Times
Monday, April 24, 2023 - Friday, April 28, 2023
Saturday, April 29, 2023
Monday, May 1-, 2023 - Monday, May 2,2023

8am-5pm
8am-5pm
7 am-7 pm

Website lnformation - Beginning Tuesday, April 25, 2023, the daily Early Voting Rosters will be posted to the Collin
County Election lnformation page no later than L0 am, to reflect the previous day's voters. The rosters will show names
of voters who have voted in person or whose voted mail ballot has been returned to the Elections Department. (Section

87.121)

Ballot Stvle Reports - A "Jurisdiction Turnout" report indicating how many voters have voted within your jurisdiction
will be distributed daily to the jurisdiction contact emaíl on file, beginning Tuesday, April25,2023.

Election Reportine and Special Reports
¡ Unofficial early votíng results will be posted to the Collin County Election Website at 7 pm on election night and

Election Day results wilf be posted beginning at 8:30 pm and continue in 30 minute increments until complete.
ln addition we will email the results to the jurisdiction contact email on file.

o After the election night results are at IOO%o, no further election results will be posted on the Election website
until all provisional and overseas ballots have been counted.

o A list of voters who voted on Election Day will be posted on the Elections Website the day after the election by
L0 am.

2



Election Canvass
o First possible day to canvass the election (Sec. 67.003)-Tuesday, MaV 9,2O23.

o Monday, May 8, 2023 - Deadline to receive "late domestic ballots" mailed within the United States from
non-military voters and from any military voters who submitted an Application for Ballot By Mail ("ABBM")
(not a Federal Postcard Application - "FPCA"), if the carrier envelope was placed for delivery by mail or
common or contract carrier AND bears a cancellation mark of a Postal Service or a receipt mark of a

common or contract carrier or a courier indicating a time not later than 7 pm at the location of the election
on Election Day.

o Tuesday, May 9, 2023 - The first possible day to conduct official local canvass of returns by governing
authority of the political subdivision. However, the canvass may not be conducted untilthe ballot board has
verified and counted all provisional ballots, if a provisional ballot has been cast in the election, AND counted
all timely received mailed domestic ballots cast from addresses within the United States, and all timely
received mailed ballots cast from outside the United States. Notice of canvass must be posted at least 72
hours continuously before the canvass is conducted.

o Thursday, May t,t,2023 - The last day to receive ballots from non-military and any military voters cast¡ng

ballots from outside of the United States, who submitted an ABBM, (not an FPCA) AND who placed their
ballots in delivery by 7:00 pm on election day as evidenced by a postal service cancellation mark or a receipt
mark of a common or contract carrier or a courier (Secs. 86.007; IOL.OS7;101.001).

o Friday, May 12, 2023 - Last day that a voter can cure the¡r lD related Provisional ballot or mail ballot defect
at our office (Sec. 65.054(b), 65.05a1(a))

o Monday, May 15, 2023 - Last day that the Early Voting Ballot Board may convene to qualífy/county mail
ballots cast (Sec. 87.L25(a)l or Provisional ballots cast (Sec. 65.051(a), L.006). New Law: 581703 allows the
EV Ballot Board until the 9th day after the election to qualify and count any provisional or overseas ballots.

o Last day to canvass the election (Sec. 67.003) - Wednesday, May 17,2023.

Voter Registration
o Last day to register to vote - Thursday, April 6,2O23.
¡ A list of eligible registered voters will be delivered to each entity on Friday, April 14, 2023 (allowing all

registration activity to be processed.) lf you have a Drop Box, SFT site you would like your file loaded to please

contact Kaleb at kbreaux@co.collin.tx.us.

Voter Registration Applications should be mailed to Registrar of Voters, 2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite L02, McKinney, TX

75069, or faxed To972-547-!995, or emailed to voterregistration@collincountvtx.gov. (lf faxed or emailed, the original
application must be mailed and received within 4 business days.

Ballot bv Mail
¡ Last day to receive an application for ballot by mail (received, not postmarked) is close of business on Tuesday,

April25,2O23.

Ballot by Mail Applications should be mailed to Bruce Sherbet, Early Voting Clerk, 20L0 Redbud Blvd., Suite 102,
McKinney, TX 75069, or faxed to 972-547-L996 or emailed to absenteemailballotins@collincountvtx.eov. (lf faxed or
emailed, the original application must be mailed and received within 4 business days.

Runoff Election - June tO,2023 (if applicablel

Ballot Proofins - Anticipated ballot proofing for the runoff election will be within a week of the canvass

Polling Locations - Will be based on jurisdictions' offices/races in the Runoff

Earlv Votins Dates and Times
Tuesday, May 30, 2023 - Saturday, June 3, 2023
Monday, June 5, 2023- Tuesday, June6,2O23

8am-5pm
7 am-7 pm

3



Voter Registration
¡ Last day to register to vote - Thursday, May l]-,2O23
r A list of eligible registered voters will be delivered to each entity on Friday, May 12,2023 (allowing all

registration activity to be processed.) lf you have a Drop Box, SFT site you would like your file loaded to please
contact Kaleb at kbreaux@co.collin.tx.us.

Voter Registration Applications should be mailed to Registrar of Voters, 2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite 102, McKinney, TX
75069, or faxed to 972-547-L995, or emailed to voterresistration@collíncountvtx.sov. (lf faxed or emailed, the original
application must be mailed and received within 4 business days.

Ballot bv Mail
o Last day to receive (not postmarked) close of business on Tuesday, May 30, 2023.

Ballot by Mail Applications should be mailed to Bruce Sherbet, Early Voting Clerk, 2010 Redbud Blvd., Suite 102,
McKinney, TX 75069, or faxed to 972-547-L996 or emailed to absenteemailballotins@collíncountvtx.sov. (tf faxed or
emailed, the original application must be mailed and received within 4 business days.

Public Losic and accuracv & Tabulation Equipment Test - TBD

Website lnformation - Early Voting rosters will be posted to the Collin County Election lnformation page no later than
10 am daily to reflect the previous day's voters. The rosters will show names of voters who have voted in person or if a
mail ballot has been received back into our office. (section 87.12Lit

Ballot Stvle Reports - A "Jurisdiction Turnout" report indicating how many voters have voted within your jurisdiction
will be distributed daily to the jurisdiction contact email on file.

Election Reportins and Special Reports
¡ Unofficial early voting results will be posted to the Collin County Election Website at 7 pm on electíon night and

Election Day results will be posted beginning at 8:30 pm and continue in 30 minute increments until complete.
ln additional we will email the results to the jurisdiction contact email on file,

o After the election night results are at t11%o, no further election results will be posted on the Election website
until all provisional and overseas ballots have been counted.

o A list of voters who voted on Election Day will be posted on the Elections Website the day after the election by
L0 am.

Election Canvass
o First day to canvass the election if your entity has NO Provisional Ballots and NO Overseas ballots that have not

been received to be counted. (Canvass notice must be posted T2hours before the canvass is conducted.) -
Tuesday, June 13, 2023

¡ Last day that a voter can cure their lD related Provisional ballot or mail ballot defect at our office (Sec. 65.054(b),
65.0541(a))- Friday, June 16, 2023

¡ Last day that the Early Voting Ballot Board may convene to qualify/county mail ballots cast (Sec. 87.L25(a)) or
Provísional ballots cast (Sec. 65.051(a), 1.006). Monday, June 19, 2023.

o Last day to canvass the election (Sec. 67.003) - Wednesday, June 21,2029.

4



Exhibit "C"

Collin County Election Services
May 6, 2023 Joint Election

City of Nevada
Registered Voters

Percentaqe
1,011

0.0523334%

Estimated
Election

Estimated
Entity
ExpensesCost Per Unit

Kits - Mail Ballots
Postage
Paper Ballot Printing Services
Paper Ballot Shipping (per box)
Ballot Stock - BOD

1.15 $
0.88 $
0.31 $

30.00 $
0.10 $

4,830.00
3,696.00

420.00
8,946.00

0.22
4.68

$

$

$

$

$

$

2,s3
1.93

Mail

General Election Expenses
Subtotal

Mileage
Van / Car Rental
Election Night Receiving Cover
Polling Place Rental
Notice of Election
Security - EV
Security - ED
Early Voting Ballot Board
FICA - Election Workers
County Employee/lT Overtime - EV
Process Pollworker Checks - EV
Process Pollworker Checks - ED
Drayage Per Location - ED
Drayage Per Location - EV

Subtotal

Coding Servies
Balotar Programming

Subtotal

Election Judge OT - EV
Alternate Judge OT - EV
Clerk OT - EV (5 per location)
ES&S Support Staff / Field Techs - EV
Equipment Assembly - EV

$ 500.00 $

$ 28,800.00 $

$ 3,037.51 $
$ 8,050.00 $
$ 9,700.00 $

$ 1,700.00 $
$ 5,000.00 $
$ 12,383.00 $

$ 53,195.35 $
$ 20,800.00 $
$ 735.00 $
$ 885.00 $
$ 21,240.00 $
$ 17,640.00 $
$ 183,665.86 $

Per Election
Per Election
Per Election
Per Election
Per Election
Per Election
Per Election
Per Election
Per Election
Per Election

$ 1.50

$ 1.50

$ r 80.00

$ 180.00

0.26
15.07
1.59
4.21
5.08
0.89
2.62
6.48

27.84
10.89
0.38
0.46

11.'t2
9.23

96.12

25 Days
Per Election

22.50
21.00 $
19.50

40 Days
50.00

41,250.00
1,200.00 $

42 $

33,075.00 $
30,870.00 $

171,990.00 $
I I 0,160.00 $

2,450.0Q $

$

$

$

$

$

$
$

$
$
$

$

21.59
0.63

22.22

17.31

16.16
90.01

57.65
1.28

182.41

ming

PersonalEa Voti

Subtotal

Election Day/Post Election Vendor Support
Notice of lnspection/Tabulation Test

Subtotal

Ballots - Card Stock ExpressVote - EV
Ballots - Card Stock ExpressVote - ED
Test Ballots
Kits - ED

15 Days
Per Election

.00

43,200.00 $
1,500.00 $

44,700.00 $

25,600.00
12,800.00
1j02.00
2,499.00

$
$

$

$

$
$

$

$

$
$

0.32
0.32
0.29
1.00

22.61
0.79

23.39

$
$
$

$ 5

13.40
6.70
0.58
1.31

Election and Tabulation

Supply Cost



City of Nevada
Registered Voters

Percenta
1,011

0.05233340/0

Estimated
Election
Expenses

Estimated
Entity
ExpensesCategory

Kits - EV
Kits - Provisional EV
Kits - Provisional ED
Polling Place Maps - EV
Polling Place Maps - ED
Signs Metal (5 per location)
Signs Wood
Ballot Card Stock - Provisional - EV (50 PL)
Ballot Card Stock - Provisional - ED (50 PL)
Ballots - Sample - EV ('l per location)
Ballots - Sample - ED (1 per location)
Ballots - Sample All Race - EV (50 per location)
Ballots - Sample All Race - ED (50 per location)
Printer Labels - EV (1 roll per location)
Printer Labels - ED (1 roll per location)

Subtotal

Cabinet Security - EV
Cabinet Security - ED
Computer Cabinet - EV
DS200 Ballot Counter - EV
DS200 Ballot Counter - ED
ExpressVote - EV (9 per location)
Expres Vote - ED (9 per location)
ExpressTouch - EV
ExpressTouch - ED

Subtotal

Election Judge - EV
Election Judge - ED
Alternate Election Judge - EV
Alternate Election Judge - ED

Clerk - EV (3 per location)
Clerk - ED (3 per location)
Judge Delivery - EV
Judge Delivery - ED

Cost Per Unit

$ 19.00

$ ss.to
$ 38.10
$ zs.oo
$ 25.00
$ 5.00

$ 2.00
$ 0.14

$ 0.14

$ 0.29
$ o.zs
$ o.ez
$ 0.87
$ s.oo
$ 5.00

1,121.00
1,866.90
2,247.90
1,225.00
1,475.00
2,700.QQ

216.00
514.50
619.50

21.32
25,67

3,197.25
3,849.75

245.00
295.00

0.59
0.98
1.18
0.64
Q.77
1.41

0.11

0.27
0.32
0.01

0.01

1.67
2.01

0.13
0.1 5

32.25

5.13
6.18
1.28
9.52

14.10
46.1 6

55.58
5.13
6.18

149.25

31.54
1.26

29.44
1.17

164.01

6.53
1.28
1.54

236.78

$
$

$

$

$
$
$

$

$

$
$

$

$

$

$
$

$

$

$
$

$

$

$
$

$

$

$
$
$

$

$
$ 61 620.78

$

$

$
$

$

$
$
$

$

$
$

$

$

$
$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

200.00
200.00

50.00
350.00
350.00
200.00
200.00
200.00
200.00

$ 9,800.00 $

$ r 1,800.00 $
$ 2,450.00 $
$ 18,200.00 $

$ 26,950.00 $
$ 88,200.00 $
$ 106,200.00 $
$ 9,800.00 $

$ 11,800.00 $
$ 28s,200.00 $

60,270.00
2,400.00

56,252.00
2,240.00

313,404.00
12,480.00
2,450.00
2,950.00

452,446.00

15.00 $
15.00 $
14.00 $
14.00 $
13.00 $
13.00 $
50.00 $
50.00 $

Equipment

Personnel

Subtotal

Cost (minimum)
10% Administrative Fee
Total Cost
90% deposit due Friday, March 31, 2023
Less Deposit
Less Payment
Final Amount Due

$ 1,427,573.64 $ 2,500.00
$ 250.00
$ 2,750.00
$ 2,475.00

Election Expense s 747.10



Agenda ltem # 12



City of Nevada
424E FM 6, Nevada TX75173

972 853-0027 Fax 97 2 853-0027
APPLICATION FOR PLAT

OFFICE USE ONLY

Casc Number:
r"", frqt{'.W
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
lægal Description: Attach a metes and bounds description of subject property and a

survey plat.

Adclress of Property: 18969 Community Drive, Nevada ,TX

General Location: FM 1138 N and Community Drive

Proposed Name of Subdivision Replat Tract 2A-L & Tract 2A-2 of Community Corners

Acreage of Subdivision; 5.001 ac

S ubmittal D ate 2j¿\ à**2Á>\
Received By: >-l¿-tAú z A>7

2

Residential and Commercial Density:
(based on gross acreage)

Number ol Lots:

Owner
Owner(s BRUCE DORFF

Present Zoning of Subject Property: E.T.J.

Applicant
Applicant: CARROLL CONSULTING GROUP tNc"

4¿¿t"rr. 18969 COMMUNITY DRIVE

NEVADA,TX75173
Adclress; PO BOX 11

LAVON, TX 75165

Telephone: Telephone

FaxFax

E-mait: BRUCEDORFF@GMAIL.COM E-mait: ORDERS@LAN DSURVEYTX.COM

Person preparing Ptat: BART CARROLL

Name of Firm: CARROLL CONSULTING GROUP, lNC.

Address: PO BOX 1L

.469-600-257t

phone: 469-6OO-257L Fax E-mail: ORDERS@ LANDSURVEYTX.COM



DesignatÍon of Agent Form

I hereby authodze the person designated below, to act in the capacity as my agent fbr the
application, processing and representation ofthis request. The designated agent shall be
the principal contact person with the city (and vice versa) in processing and responding to
requirements, infbrmation requests or other issues relative to this request.

s

of Applicant
(if different from designated agent)

Printed Name

SAM CARROLL

2.e 23

L/2612A23

ßþ,su Þa

Signature of Agent

Phone:
Fax:
Cell Phone

Printed Name Date

Address of Agent: PO BOX 11, LAVON, TX 75166

469-6AA-257L



Collin Gounty ETJ Platting Verification

Last Narne* First Name* phone #t
Carroll Samuet 4696002371

Project Address I Legal Descriptíon * (?)

18696 Community Drive/ TractZ{of Community Corners

C¡ty ETJ 
* (?) project Type *

Nevada Residential_ subdivision

Scope Of Work *

Dividing 5.001 acre lot inlo 2lots. 1 - 3.000 acre and 1 -2.001acre lot. The 2.001 acre lot has an existing metal
building home.

Submit Form, Print, and Sign

I affirm that the statements and information contained in this application fully describe the proposed project and are true to
my knowledge and belief.

Applicant Signature Date Signed

ETJ Form #

2423-01A749

Email*

sam@landsurveytx.com

CITY PLATTING OFFICIAL USË ONLY BËLOW LINE

I am the designated city platiing official for the ciiy of _. I certify by checking the appropriate box
below that:

Ü tn* proposed development above has met the city platting requirements under its subdivision ordinances.

I fne proposed development above is not required to be platted by the city under its subdivision ordinances

City Platting Official Prínted Name City Platting 0fficial Signature Date Signed



I HAYTER

fu_h4

ENGINEERING

Russell Newton
Planning & Zoning Commission Chair
City of Nevada
424 FM 6
Nevada, TX75173

February 1,7023

Community Corners Traet2A-I andZ{-2 Replat
HEI Job Number 385001-86.11

Dear Mr. Newton,

Hayter Engineering has reviewed the Community Corners Tract 2A-l and 2A-2 Replat. Our
review was for general conformance and shall not relieve the developer or the developer's surveyor
or design engineer of full responsibility for the adequacy and integrity of the survey and design,
or for conformance to Local, State, and Federal codes.

Construction plans and specifications were not submitted and as such Hayter Engineering's review
was of the replat only. After review, Hayter Engineering has determined that this replat meets the
City's Subdivision Ordinance Requirements. Assuming all necessary fees have been paid to the
City, it is our recommendation that the City of Nevada approve the Community Corners Tract2[-
I and2Ã-2 Replat.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to give me a call (903.785.0303) or send an email
(cdonnan@hayteren g. com).

Sincerely,

HAYTER ENGINEERING, INC.

RE

Christopher M. Donnan, P.8., CFM
Principal/Project Manager

i .:,, ' 
j_ -":

Practical lnfrastructure Solutions
4445 SE Loop 286 | Paris, TX 75460 | hayterens.com

-i;,\¡1¡.,,f- l.),,,.,:,i_ì¡lt ; ).iìFIL)L/L:r :ia)i;: t..r |:l::!- l/(rii I r\ ;ra:f: ,1ri-r:i I



I

)a67-?5 | l'-e l urwr z¡. zo¿:

$åL¡:

CARROLL CONSULTING GROUP, INC.
P.O. BOX 11 UWN. IEXÂS 751ôô
Phoñe (9?2) 742-a411 IBPEÉ REGISÌM¡ON NO. F-2164å

lÊXÆ ÊlRU RECrSltulìON NO.r 10007200

oau,€ ûùrMci a !¡Lrr üsEú:ñl
Ìhù lidoßEnad, ù. Cny Sócr.to'y ór th Cny or Nlvodd, lo¡.r, horoby

Õr rtuC¡ &-r & l&Cl â I or
4ùWUNÌ COÞffS. a¿{.r,, ri¡J: *ur ìursli.ó l-
ùo ¿ir C¡Lr..r t0___ uñc trr

úid .oid Couñ.ìl
M.Fr 1ô ñôt¡ tù.

whÈ,.u:, 8ru.! a,É,. J û*l ôr r.hd .ilúorôd h rr J 544, aôro ao!ñly.
:rl, Ì,r lr. plr,or ¡ ü¡rL 2À a :9 J: cØ-._ntr cdoórL
,. Þoi Ad 20r¡. rceq \õ0. P,.i F(¿r,.¿. co.:i- coLnq r.r.: Fdk,.rt; renô* d rd-
€o9b¡hq or o &D ori( .¡d b.i.9 s.ì¡ Ler 24 rh¿
d ÌÈr¡ rE d &rd lccì I or Còñftriiy CÒ40r3 CÒtLn Coúil/, tcx.. occôd,ôq ro ù.

1r Õ, .r__-.., i:n.,,r
r. P.s¿ !.¿, u.9

rft-c. Nó¡F cr'?.tæ loL j!,ç.r. .?il .t Ø\t1, | ./?
!,..¡ q r ¡. :. -.,r, ", 

.;r 'Bi,
corñ-"! co'ruÈ, ih o, N.\.d., ro¡or ùlcor¿;ng rô rhs Fl.ì ¡hr.iol ñô. !ô12-$: Þbr
n*6.úr, .ùrûi ca{ûù, leñr rr'.*d r4c !r re.! ,B-r. pof ie .:1/r. .ft. e,r
rNC ¡PLs 5llç", 3tårl li.r r.r thé nonÞicß iur..r or ìEd rg-t on. h. i;{¡.i*._,-' d n€r tB-t or..ia

aroit r¡..o' ¡.ô ó¡ NLd r.c.r rn-¡ .ccn Nc tr15 rr2!,.
699.55 t.or br,i9 lh. ôdlhiqrr qornd or !o. T,ocr rB ¡ oñd th. e.urno..r.rr.!r ór lrccr'lå-5

.ôôr4ú;s lr¿ns &¿ tcôr ra-l 3tt9a ,..r ra o r12- f!¡ pir laca¿-cac iNc RPrs 1r1!' lÀ. ìhe ndñæsr
È.0m r.?o ltrl or ionc cm!!Êd o¿ó D.bo¡c¡ 0, rroikû òy oùa /e.o.¡¿d 2oo5ùôr6oæ&i4ro,
orrèbr ¡?ubr( nô.ô¡¡{,

Ii.i.c gouth å3 45 59- €o.r or.ñç rh. ñodh
Þ c 1/2' ro¡ ph ro!¡d vili ydor roÞ e1r@d .CCG ÌNC RF"S 5j?9. ?a oñd rhÈ nr¡r*rqoñôr rr &ì. tqrr :a:

lh.¡.. sôùrh 0r ?10¡- *os' oroâs rh. .óe: in! oj e.,d I'oct a.nd thá {€sr rñò ot rr.cr 28, o dìsronô. ôt 166.90 ,.er ro o i/t'nôn

rùer.ù $úrh !3S!¿'Ê.st or¡ñç ürÉ nodÞcr !!¡c !r loir tulr ¡À oró so,J TrRr 23, o ü,s{on* Òr 692.20 t*,

^( 
ra¡s 5.?t-

ô¡ .Ì Tô(, îq Jd r !ü,ð rra.: ;9, ,ip.r .nû o_À, o+b. .. r.;.,
10'a & rßil ro-e ôt coñrudly corìr,s,.ñ o¡driùñ to cori cordr. rr,os ô(",ú,;q ,.cor¿d r vor;r,. zot?.
Foçe 25. p:út Âæ!rs., Co[ñ Coudy, l¿¡.3 ro th¿ rEnt *û' õ clnrot oiøê or OA!9¡1,. o 

'odìús 
or 7]j.go

:!6¡, o ihorõ b.orinç ôr $!rÞ €6St1- üosi o¡c or iæ55 rêt,

Thc.ô. sovù{ès(dy ao€ 5oid iurys
rt so¡d r.od ì0-\ !¡l ltc dß{onc. d iæ.65 rc.r 1. ! r,,r- fo!

rù... Ne'. esat\r" w.3r oroñ9 ihe iJrh à, r¡.4õdh rir. Õr 3dà focr :o-À
o dbru'ru oi 13507 J &ç,ñ¡h9 01d conroinnq 2l7,a4r lquars rë{ or 5.aol &hr or róid.

c,flrn¿aít ð¡ ccMPLaìroN

PFC.C.Ì. - PUr R!CoRÐS, CôiUñ CôU¡¡" l&S
cÞ Ra c.r - cFr6r{ PUa!É REcoRþs, c&|N cNn, fErÆ

aL. coRNms I0 aÉ r/: ,RÛN PrN sll sf,i rÊLros cf
s.À{?iD 1'cc rñc RPLS 5129' uNlass oraüws€ ilo80.

wÆ!Lo, N ÊìasPÊE
&èF. lV ô{ \.Éd., r.r., C.1.

I

\ (k¡ a ñe¡s
)ÉBC&H O iNKS

usr ì3i*10åcæærro \\\\

i..

\
\

CRÂPHIC SCAL!ì

;ãri=bh;:
(tf&)

\
N¡Ì, rnfReFOR KNõÌ {! MeN & IH€s¿ FFESE{rSÌ

\ l:ìi I retotù rô t¡. Þebrì. u& rorav.r n .o.ei it, .ñy)

tr', crJ,Lr!9nrc h oid rn thr StoG or l.¡ur o si' Jarc !d'.nol, qpF,cc 6¡uG ¡cna, ino,i
,! ¡c&.rù* ro ù. loeqdne brkrÀnn! ùid ùir.Òirddçô¿

9_

ü3 <, PC 2Aa \

r, j!ñc¡ 3i^.. ¿úròr. cþ horcq .onìlr r¡ot I p&ror.d eùdr, or r¡c ßñd tro
ff*i'l:'^,i'* **' ,ú rü s.òr"!b.

ptoti.iìùy. Ûi\ &/t¡ë.t :4rt ,.1 àc tct.t@¿
lit ¿â/ Þttpo,¿ aìd s,ù h.t è. usú ï rased
.. t¿/ùd uþ., B o tuù :utß! d¿¿'n.82t.

P',i!r,(.!L L¿ñú:J,!ùø Nù. 5lt9

tà¿ stur. oJ I.\d! REPLAT

TRACT 2A-1 & TRACT 2A_2
COMMUNITY CORNERS

5-OO1 ACRES OF LAND AND
BÊING A REPLAT OF TRACT 2A

OF TRACÎ 2A & 28
COMMUNI-IY CORNERS

PLAÎ BK, 2022, PG, 560
CIIY OF NËVADA E,T,J.
COLLIN COUNry, TEXAS

/

,..+ 
-\\___\. \-

': 'r
-- rucr,r 

_-_--
1

MÉ

ôr joñtu ¡q Lo.-i,1
:¡¿. aÞ Õq!v,r5 eh aJq4ri i.¡!,

.iffi

lÎM\.a-l
\ ¡@'f

_...;' ...

ì

Irdtlt
eg''

t-,,

i
I

\

Rq 4-2 \



Agenda ltem # 13



Documents will be
avùilable at the City

Council meeting.


